
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74356 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Kate Arscott 
Tel: 24 74189 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Thursday, 8th January, 2009 at 9.45 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.15 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

B Cleasby - Horsforth 

G Driver - Middleton Park 

J Elliott - Morley South 

R D Feldman - Alwoodley 

W Hyde (Chair) - Temple Newsam 

B Lancaster - Moortown 

J McKenna - Armley 

V Morgan - Killingbeck and Seacroft 

K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood 

E Taylor - Chapel Allerton 

C Townsley - Horsforth 

 
Co-opted Members (Voting) 

Mr E A Britten - Church Representative (Catholic) 
Prof P H J H Gosden - Church Representative (Church of England) 
Mr R Greaves - Parent Governor Representative (Secondary) 
Mr I Falkingham - Parent Governor Representative (Special) 
Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor Representative (Primary) 

 
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting) 

Ms C Johnson - Teacher Representative 
Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
Mrs S Hutchinson - Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership 
Ms J Morris-Boam - Leeds VOICE Children and Young People Services 

Forum Representative 
Ms T Kayani - Leeds Youth Work Partnership Representative 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information 
Rules (in the event of an Appeal the press and 
public will be excluded.) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 No exempt items or information have 

been identified on this agenda. 
 

 



 

C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration.  
 
(The special circumstance shall be specified in the 
minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.  
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 11TH DECEMBER 2008 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 11th December 2008. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development, which invites 
the Board to consider a possible topic for scrutiny. 
 

7 - 8 

8   
 

  SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN IN LEEDS:  AN 
OVERVIEW OF OUR LEEDS SAFEGUARDING 
CHILDREN BOARD AND THE WIDER CURRENT 
CONTEXT 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Director 
of Children’s Services on the Leeds Safeguarding 
Children Board and the wider current context. 
 

9 - 56 



 

D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND THE CHILDREN 
AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S PLAN PRIORITIES 
UPDATE (LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN FOCUS) 
 
To receive a report from the Director of Children’s 
Services, which updates the Board on the key 
developments across Children’s Services and 
outlines progress against specific priorities 
contained within the Children and Young People’s 
Plan. 
 

57 - 
70 

10   
 

  LEEDS STRATEGIC PLAN PERFORMANCE 
REPORT FOR QUARTER 2 2008/09 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Policy, Performance and Improvement, which 
outlines progress against improvement priorities 
relevant to the Board at Quarter 2 2008/09.  
 

71 - 
108 

11   
 

  RECOMMENDATION TRACKING 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development, which 
requests Members to confirm the status of 
recommendations from previous inquiries. 
 

109 - 
136 

12   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development, which outlines the Scrutiny 
Board’s work programme for the remainder of the 
current municipal year. 
 

137 - 
162 

13   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To note that the next meeting of the Board will be 
held on Thursday 5th February, 2009 at 9.45 am 
with a pre-meeting for Board Members at 9.15 am. 
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th January, 2009 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN'S SERVICES) 
 

THURSDAY, 11TH DECEMBER, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor W Hyde in the Chair 

 Councillors B Cleasby, G Driver, R D Feldman, 
B Lancaster, V Morgan, K Renshaw and E Taylor 
 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (VOTING): 
 

 Mr E A Britten - Church Representative 
(Catholic) 

 Prof P H J H Gosden - Church Representative 
(Church of England) 

 Mrs S Knights - Parent Governor 
Representative (Primary) 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS (NON-VOTING): 
 

 Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
 Mrs S Hutchinson - Early Years Development & 

Childcare Partnership 
Representative 

 Ms C Johnson - Teacher Representative 
 Ms J Morris-Boam - Leeds Voice Children and 

Young People Services Forum 
Representative 

 
52 Chair's Opening Remarks  
 

The Chair welcomed all in attendance to the December meeting of the 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services).  In particular, the Chair welcomed Ms C 
Johnson to her first meeting of the Board. 
 

53 Late Items  
 

In accordance with his powers under Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chair admitted to the agenda a report of the 
Inclusion Consultation Working Group, which was to be considered as part of 
agenda item 9.  The working group had not yet met at the time of agenda 
despatch and the report needed to be considered by the Board to determine 
whether further action was required (Minute No. 59 refers). 
 

54 Declaration of Interests  
 

Councillor Driver declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 8, 
Scrutiny Inquiry – Education Standards – Entering the Education System, due 
to being Chair of the Children’s Centre at Windmill Primary School  (Minute 
No. 58 refers). 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th January, 2009 

 

Councillor Lancaster declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 8, 
Scrutiny Inquiry – Education Standards – Entering the Education System, due 
to being a Member of the Pre-School Learning Alliance (Minute No. 58 refers). 
 
Councillor Renshaw declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 8, 
Scrutiny Inquiry – Education Standards – Entering the Education System, due 
to being a Governor at Rodillian High School (Minute No. 58 refers).  
 
Mrs S Hutchinson declared a personal interest in relation to agenda item 8, 
Scrutiny Inquiry – Education Standards – Entering the Education System, due 
to being a provider of Early Years and Governor at Allerton Primary School 
(Minute No. 58 refers). 
 
A further declaration of interest was made at a later point in the meeting 
(Minute No 58 refers). 
 

55 Apologies for Absence  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillors Elliott, J McKenna, 
Townsley, Mr Falkingham and Ms Kayani. 
 

56 Minutes - 13th November 2008  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th November 2008 
be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

57 Breeze Youth Promise  
 

Further to Minute No. 40 of the meeting held on 16th October 2008, the Head 
of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which introduced the 
Breeze Youth Promise.  Appended for Members’ information was a report in 
response to the Board’s recommendations and a copy of the Breeze Youth 
Promise. 
 
The Chair welcomed the following officers to the meeting:- 
 
- Deborah Howe, Children’s Involvement Advocate; and 
- Dave Ashwell, Youth and Voluntary Sector Engagement Manager. 
 
The Board was informed that consultation had been undertaken with young 
people on the Breeze Youth Promise.  Feedback from the consultation 
indicated more local services were needed and further detail was required 
about the range of services on offer.  The Children’s Involvement Advocate 
reported that the final version was being finalised by ROAR and the Youth 
Council.  The Board was informed that the Youth Council had established a 
Task Group to meet with Breeze, which involved discussing ways to develop 
the Promise and hold service providers to account. 
 
Members’ queries and comments were then invited and the main areas of 
discussion were:- 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th January, 2009 

 

 

• Publicising the Promise. 

• Engaging with young people and improving participation.   

• Ensuring that young people had a safe place to go. 

• Improving affordable access to services, particularly for those in 
deprived areas. 

• Involving Elected Members and raising awareness of local services on 
offer. 

 
The Board agreed that the appropriate way to continue to monitor delivery of 
the Promise would be for the working group on involving young people in 
scrutiny to meet with the young people’s Breeze Youth Promise group. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers for their attendance at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and information appended to the report be 
noted. 
 
(Councillor Cleasby joined the meeting at 10.30 am, during the consideration 
of this item). 
 

58 Scrutiny Inquiry - Education Standards - Entering the Education System  
 

Further to Minute No. 16 of the meeting held on 17th July 2008, the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report which introduced the 
evidence to be considered as part of the first formal session of the Board’s 
inquiry into Education Standards – Entering the Education System. 
  
Appended to the report was a copy of the draft terms of reference together 
with a background report for the Board’s consideration. 
  
The following officers attended the meeting and responded to Members’ 
questions and comments:- 
  

-  Andrea Richardson, Quality and Standards Manager (Early Years); 
-  Liz Bradley, Early Years Foundation Stage Improvement Manager; 

and 
-  Christine Halsall, Head of Primary School Involvement. 

 
The evidence which had been submitted was introduced and presented to the 
Board by relevant officers.  A question and answer session then ensued and 
the main areas of discussion were as follows:- 

 

• The new statutory framework for assessment. 

• The need to ensure continuity between settings, particularly early years 
into school. 

• Engaging with cross sector agencies and providers. 

• The need to maintain standards at all stages of transition. 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th January, 2009 

 

• The process for assessing children with additional needs, particularly 
those with complex needs. 

• Concern that some of the figures provided in the report were unclear. 

• The need to improve standards for children at risk of becoming NEET 
(Not in Education, Employment or Training) from a very early age. 

• The need to improve services for families. 

• Concern that there had been a poor response to the transitional reports 
issued to schools by some Early Years providers. 

• The need for governance arrangements of Children’s Centres to be 
representative of a broad range of services in all cases.  

• The need for a greater focus in the report on the main practicalities, 
locality working and evidence of joined up working. 

• The differences between a traditionally more holistic approach within 
early years settings, and schools’ focus on the standards agenda. 

 
The Chair thanked the officers for their attendance.  Members were advised 
that the next session of the Board’s Inquiry was March 2009. 
 
RESOLVED – That the issues raised at the first session of the Inquiry, be 
noted. 
 
(Mrs S Knights declared a personal interest in this item due to being Chair of 
Leeds Citywide Family Forum). 
 

59 Recommendation Tracking – Inclusion consultation  
 

Further to Minute No. 40 of the meeting held on 17th July, 2008, the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report, which updated 
Members on progress against the recommendation on inclusion consultation. 
 
Appended for Members’ information was a report of the Inclusion Consultation 
Working Group. 
 
The Board was advised that the Working Group recommended convening 
another meeting in January 2009 to consider further progress against the 
recommendation. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and information appended to the report be 
agreed. 
 

60 Work Programme  
 

A report was submitted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development, 
which detailed the Scrutiny Board’s work programme for the remainder of the 
current municipal year. 
  
Appended to the report for Members’ information was the current version of 
the Board’s work programme, an extract from the Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions for the period 1st December 2008 to 31st March 2009, which related 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Thursday, 8th January, 2009 

 

to the Board’s remit, together with the minutes from the Executive Board 
meeting held on 5th November, 2008. 
 
The Board was informed that an item on safeguarding had been added to the 
work programme for January 2009.  Due to the increased workload, Members 
agreed where possible to receive the quarterly updates in January 2009 for 
noting purposes only.  Members also agreed to schedule an additional 
meeting of the Board on 7th May 2009.   
 
RESOLVED – That subject to the comments raised at the meeting, the work 
programme be approved. 
 

61 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

Thursday 8th January 2009 at 9.45 am with a pre-meeting for Board Members 
at 9.15 am. 
  
  
(The meeting concluded at 11.28 am). 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 8 January 2009 
 
Subject: Request for Scrutiny 
 

        
 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 A request for scrutiny has been received from Mr Mike Shaw, chair of governors at 

Meadowfield Primary School. Mr Shaw has been invited to attend the Board meeting 
to briefly outline the reason for his request. 

1.2 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules state that a Board “…..shall consider a request 
from any (other) source to conduct an Inquiry.  All such requests for an Inquiry must 
be submitted in writing to the Proper Officer. The Proper Officer shall add the request 
to the agenda for the next Ordinary Meeting of the relevant Scrutiny Board. The 
Proper Office shall acknowledge all such requests for an Inquiry. At the next Ordinary 
Meeting, the Scrutiny Board shall consider any request for an Inquiry which the Proper 
Officer has added to the agenda.  

1.3 Where the request has not come from the Executive or the Council, the person or 
body making the request will be invited to attend the Board’s meeting to explain the 
reasons for the request. The Scrutiny Board Chair will decide how much time will be 
given to the person or body for addressing the Scrutiny Board. The Proper Officer will 
inform whoever submitted the request and any other relevant parties about the 
decision of the Scrutiny Board.” 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 
Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



2.0 OPTIONS FOR INVESTIGATIONS AND INQUIRIES 
 
2.1 The Scrutiny Board is required to consider whether an Inquiry into this matter is 

appropriate and if so, what form that Inquiry shall take. 
 

2.2 When deciding whether the Board will pursue a request for Scrutiny, it is important for 
Members to consider the request in the context of the Board’s terms of reference, its 
existing Work Programme and commitments. 

3.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

3.1 The Board is asked to consider the request for Scrutiny and to consider whether 
further investigation is to be undertaken. 

 
 
Background papers 
 
Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules 
 

Page 8



 
Report of the Director of Children’s Service 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 11th January 2009 
 
Subject:  Safeguarding Children In Leeds:  An Overview of our Leeds 

Safeguarding Children Board and the wider current context 
 

     
 
 
1.0 Background 
 

1.1 ‘Safeguarding’ describes the multi-agency responsibility of all those who work 
with children and young people to ensure that they are safe, protected and 
well cared for, giving them the best chance to develop and grow up healthy, 
and well prepared for adulthood. 

 

1.2 Safeguarding children and young people is a shared responsibility across all 
those working in children’s services in Leeds.  Putting safeguarding at the 
heart of children’s services work underpins much of the policy and legislation 
that the government introduced through and since the 2004 Children Act.  In 
Leeds this shared responsibility is clearly reflected in the Children and Young 
People’s Plan which states that: 
 
‘Fundamental to achieving our aims is the need for building a culture of 
safeguarding in everything we do – to ensure we all work to make children 
and young people safe and to promote their wellbeing. Safeguarding is an 
essential part of everyone’s responsibility across the partnership’. 

 
1.3 The Children Act 2004 heralded a broader approach to safeguarding children 

and young people. It widened the previous focus on the ‘child protection’ of 
children and young people suffering, or at risk of suffering, significant harm to 
include preventative and universal services and community safety. 
Significantly, every agency delivering services to children and young people 
(or coming into contact with them in the course of their work) were made 
responsible for contributing to the ‘safeguarding and promotion of their 

Specific Implications For: 
 

Equality and Diversity      
 
X  

  

Community Cohesion      
 
X  

 

Narrowing the Gap          
 
X  

 

Electoral Wards Affected:  All 

 

Originator: Adam Hewitt / 
Bryan Gocke 

 
Tel: 0113 24 76940  

Agenda Item 8

Page 9



welfare.’  Children and Young People’s Social Care was no longer to be 
viewed as the sole agency with responsibility for their safety. 

 
1.4 The Act required each local authority to establish a Local Safeguarding 

Children Board (LSCB), replacing Area Child Protection Committees. Detailed 
guidance was provided in Chapter 3 of Working Together to Safeguard 
Children 2006. 

 
1.5  The LSCB is the key statutory mechanism for agreeing how the relevant 

organisations in each local area will co-operate to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children and young people and for ensuring the effectiveness of 
that work. The LSCB therefore helps to co-ordinate and performance manage 
safeguarding functions across multiple agencies. 

 
1.6  The Leeds Safeguarding Children Board is part of the wider children’s trust 

arrangements in Leeds.  It works alongside the Children Leeds Partnership 
and Integrated Strategic Commissioning Board to help ensure that 
safeguarding considerations inform planning, development and 
commissioning of services.  However, the Board also maintains a degree of 
independence (reflected in the appointment of an Independent Chair not 
connected with the local authority) to help it undertake its monitoring role 
objectively. 

 
1.5 As it is the responsibility of the LSCB to take the overview of safeguarding 

work across partner agencies in Leeds, this report provides more detail about 
the Board’s work, the current national context and the position in Leeds in 
relation this.  The report is complemented  by two appendix, the first is the 
Board’s Annual Review completed in July 2008, it gives a sense of the range 
of the work the Board is involved in, how this links to safeguarding activities 
and awareness within services, and some of the areas of work the Board is 
currently developing.  The second document is the Board’s business plan, 
which again demonstrates the range of safeguarding work taking place in 
Leeds and how this is managed by the Board over the year.  These 
documents and further information about safeguarding Leeds are available on 
the Leeds LSCB website: http://www.leedslscb.org.uk/. 

 
1.6 In Leeds it is recognised that the effective safeguarding of children and young 

people comes both from the practices people undertake and also the culture 
that underpins this practice.  As such the Safeguarding Board’s work, and 
wider safeguarding considerations aim to address not only the practical side 
of people’s work, but also the support and guidance they receive to do this 
more effectively. 

 
2.0 The Development of the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board 
 
2.1 Leeds made the transition to LSCB in April 2006, appointing a board manager 

in April 2007. A 3 year business plan (2007 – 10) was agreed by the Board in 
July 2007, focusing on the objectives and functions detailed in guidance. The 
plan was refreshed in July 2008 to take account of increasing expectations 
and responsibilities and continues to be updated on a quarterly basis. The 

Page 10



Annual Review 2007/08 (attached at appendix 1) reported on progress made 
and identifies areas for further attention.  Key areas of progress included 
updating safeguarding procedures across the region (working with regional 
partners) and initiating an audit process of partner agency compliance with 
Section 11 of the Children Act 2004 (‘Duty to Safeguard’).   Areas the Review 
identified for further development include the monitoring of incidents of 
domestic violence and continuing to adapt serious case review processes in 
light of changing Ofsted expectations (discussed further below).    

 
2.2 Leeds appointed an Independent Chair of the LSCB in July 2007. Working in 

liaison with the Director of Children’s Services and the Executive Lead 
Member, she has brought an external objectivity to the work of the Board and 
a clarity about its role in holding partner agencies to account for their 
safeguarding activity. 

 
2.3 The refreshed LSCB Business Plan 2008/09 has taken account of the 

recommendations made in the third Chief Inspectors’ report on safeguarding 
and progress is being made against objectives outlined therein. 

 
2.4 An audit of partner agency compliance with s(11) of the Children Act 2004 

(‘duty to safeguard’) has been initiated, indicating good progress overall and 
identifying areas for improvement. An audit of Third Sector agencies is 
ongoing. 

 
2.5 By the end of 2007/08 the LSCB had recognised the increasing importance 

being attached to the undertaking of and learning the lessons from Serious 
Case Reviews and staffing resources within the LSCB support team have 
been reconfigured to support the increased workload involved. 

 
2.6 A multi agency standing Serious Case Review Panel has been established, 

meeting on a monthly basis, to consider serious child care incidents in Leeds 
and to make recommendations about undertaking reviews to the Independent 
Chair. 

 
2.7 Since 2007 five Serious Case Reviews have been initiated in Leeds, two 

being accepted by the Board in July and one in November 2008. To date 
Ofsted have supplied details of their evaluation on one of these, judged to be 
‘adequate.  ’ Two Serious Case Reviews are in the final stages of completion 
and will be presented to the Board at its meeting in January 2009 

 
2.8 The importance of external objectivity in undertaking reviews has been 

acknowledged in procedures developed by the Board. Four of the Overview 
Reports of these reviews have been commissioned from consultants external 
to Leeds. Multi agency implementation of action plans resulting from serious 
case reviews are monitored by the LSCB Performance Management sub 
group. 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



3.0 Recent National Developments 
 
3.1  In July 2008 ‘Safeguarding Children: the third Chief Inspectors’ report on 

Arrangements to Safeguard Children’ was published, with a response from 
the Department for Children, Schools and Families, ‘Safeguarding the young 
and vulnerable’ in November. 

 
3.2 The recommendations seek to further embed the reforms initiated by the 

Children Act 2004 with an emphasis on ensuring consistent implementation 
by all partner agencies. Particular attention is given to the safeguarding needs 
of children and young people who are particularly vulnerable e.g. ‘looked 
after’, in the Secure Estate and those living in the context of parental mental 
health problems, substance mis-use and domestic violence. 

 
3.3 LSCBs are charged with improving the consistency with which decisions to 

undertake Serious Case Reviews are taken and the implementation of 
lessons learnt from the process. 

 
3.4 In the autumn of 2008 the DCSF announced  plans to undertake a national 

review of the effectiveness of LSCBs and of the impact of Serious Case 
Reviews (where a child has died or suffered a serious injury and abuse or 
neglect is viewed as having been a factor in the death) on improving 
safeguarding services for children and young people. These have 
subsequently been included in Lord Laming’s independent review of progress 
being made across the country in implementing effective arrangements for 
safeguarding. 

 
3.5 Events in Haringey in November 2008, following the criminal trial with respect 

to the death of ‘Baby P’, have shone a national spotlight on safeguarding 
services, inspection arrangements undertaken by Ofsted, the independence 
of LSCBs and the outcomes of Serious Case Reviews. 

 
3.6 A decision was taken that Ofsted, the Healthcare Commission and the Chief 

Inspector of Constabulary should carry out an urgent inspection of 
safeguarding in Haringey.  The findings were critical of several elements of 
safeguarding practice.  Like many authorities, Leeds is checking its own 
practice in light of the findings and the wider context of the Baby P case.  

 
  
4.0 The Current Position of the Safeguarding Board In Leeds 
 
4.1 Leeds has contributed to the Laming Review of safeguarding through the 

submission of the Association of Directors of Children’s Services, outlining 
areas of good practice and identifying barriers to the implementation of 
improvements. 

 
4.2   Key partner agencies in Leeds are undertaking reviews of their safeguarding 

services in the light of concerns raised about Haringey by Ofsted. Children 
and Young People’s Social Care are auditing the cases of children and young 

Page 12



people subject to a Child Protection Plan, to assess compliance with 
procedures and identify areas for improvement. 

 
4.3 The LSCB, through its standing sub groups, is considering the implications of 

issues arising from Haringey and undertaking a ‘stocktake’ of its compliance 
with its statutory responsibilities. A full review is an agenda item at the LSCB 
meeting in January 2009. 

 
5.0 Conclusions 
 
5.1  Safeguarding is a priority for all Children’s Services in Leeds and a 

responsibility of all those working with children and young people across the 
city.  Recent national developments have highlighted the importance of this 
and raised the profile of safeguarding work. 

 
5.2 The Leeds Safeguarding Children Board has a key role in taking an overview 

of safeguarding work across the city.  This report (and its appendix) 
demonstrates the variety of responsibilities this incorporates.  The Board has 
made good overall progress and impact since its introduction in Leeds.  In 
light of recent national developments it is therefore well placed to carry out the 
learning, monitoring and advisory role that will be essential to ensure lessons 
from these developments contribute to stronger safeguarding practice in the 
future.  

 
 
Background papers 
 
None 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



1

LSCB

ANNUAL REVIEW JULY 2008

1.0 OVERVIEW FROM INDEPENDENT CHAIR

This, the second annual review of Leeds Safeguarding Children Board, demonstrates the
significant progress which has been made towards achieving the ambitious objectives which
were outlined in the first year of the Board’s three year Business Plan. Attendance of both
statutory and non-statutory partners at Board and Sub Group meetings has continued to be
excellent and it is this level of commitment alongside high quality business support which has
made the progress possible.

This report details the range of important work which has been developed and progressed.
This has included the development of an E safety strategy, establishing independent
processes for Serious Case Reviews, a collaborative approach across West Yorkshire to
reviewing childhood deaths which became a statutory requirement from 01.04.08 and
improving recruitment and selection practices. In order to demonstrate its commitment to
safer recruitment, the LSCB has decided that all members must have enhanced CRB checks
and the constitution is being amended to reflect that.

A Joint Area Review (JAR) took place during 2007 and as part of that process the LSCB
Manager, Sub Group Chairs and myself were interviewed by inspectors who concluded that
good progress had been made in developing the LSCB which they described as being well
managed. They also indicated that the comprehensive Business Plan set out an appropriate
plan of work. Positive comments included the LSCB being proactive in reviewing and
updating inter agency policies and procedures, good arrangements for information sharing
between agencies, the good quality and coverage of safeguarding training with action plans
from Serious Case Reviews being incorporated effectively into that and the analysis of its
impact on practice.

Despite the progress which has been made, the overall judgment for safeguarding was
adequate which needs to be improved upon to ensure that children and young people in
Leeds receive services which are assessed as good. The Business Plan is being updated to
reflect the findings of the JAR, the Government’s Staying Safe Action Plan (aimed at
improving children’s safety) and the Third Joint Chief Inspectors’ Review on Arrangements to
Safeguard Children (launched on 8 July 2008) to which the LSCB contributed via a Chairs’
Survey and interview. Areas to be addressed include improved arrangements for
safeguarding those who are at risk of sexual exploitation, in danger of forced marriages and
those missing from home and education.

As well as the Board being responsible for monitoring the effectiveness of services in Leeds,
for which it is refining its performance management framework, it is important that it is able to
measure its own effectiveness. During the coming year performance measures will be
developed which will help us to assess how well we are doing and to what extent we are

Page 15



2

impacting positively on the safeguarding agenda. That should be assisted by strengthening
arrangements for service users to contribute their views.

Whilst there are many challenges ahead there is a good foundation on which to build and
with the continued support of all those involved, directly or indirectly, in the Board’s work I am
confident that the progress will be maintained.

Judith Dodd
Independent Chair
14.07.08

2.0 REVIEW OF 2007/08 AND PLANNING FOR 2008/09

The Business Plan 2007/08 was structured specifically to focus on facilitating compliance
with chapter 3 of Working Together 2006 which sets out the objectives and functions of Local
Safeguarding Children Boards. It has been reviewed and updated on a quarterly basis by the
Board, its Executive, Sub Groups and Area Safeguarding Children Groups.

Overall progress against the business plan has been good, with key systems and processes
in place on or before the Working Together deadline on 1 April 2008 for transition from the
arrangements of the previous ACPC. The Business Plan (see appendix 1) details progress
made and areas requiring further attention. Consistent with Working Together 2006
guidance, the board has focussed initially on protective and preventative activities and
responsibilities. Consideration will be given in 2008/09 to further engagement with wider
safeguarding issues affecting children and young people in Leeds.

2.1 Co-ordination of activity to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and
young people.

2.1.1 Policies and Procedures
2007/08 saw consolidation by the LSCB Policy and Procedure sub group of work undertaken
to update interagency safeguarding procedures, available on the LSCB website from 3 July
2007. New model child protection procedures for Third Sector agencies have been
developed and disseminated. An E safety task group has been established and has initiated
the production of an E Safety strategy in line with BECTA guidance. A multi agency working
party has undertaken work to agree consistent, common thresholds to underpin inter agency
assessments of need, interventions and joint working. The resultant electronic document
‘Levels of Need’ is available on the Children Leeds website. The group will act as a reference
point through 2008/09 for agreement between agencies about the delivery of services to
meet identified levels of need.

The Policy and Procedure Sub Group has identified the following areas of work for 2008/09:
considering the impact on procedures of the introduction of Contact Point; reviewing joint
protocols between adult and children’s services; and revising West Yorkshire Safeguarding
Procedures with respect to the process for undertaking serious case reviews.

Leeds recognised the concerns that children and young people have about bullying a
number of years ago and has developed an anti bullying strategy incorporating wide publicity
and a training programme. Using the ‘Tell Us’ survey the LSCB Performance Management
sub group will review the effectiveness of the strategy in the Autumn 2008.

Page 16



3

2.1.2 Protection of Children and Young People
The Board has promoted the development of services to protect children and young people
who are suffering, or at risk of suffering significant harm. A notable initiative has been the
audit undertaken by the National Children’s Bureau , reviewing the effectiveness of
collaborative work between adult and children’s services to children and young people living
in the context of parental substance misuse and / or mental health problems. Work will
continue in 2008/09 to develop joint working protocols and to consider the needs of such
children and young people who are living in acute stress and are at risk of becoming ‘looked
after’ by the local authority.

The LSCB has promoted a focus on the child in the revision of the Leeds Domestic Violence
Strategy. Discussions are taking place between West Yorkshire Police and Children and
Young People’s Social Care regarding the monitoring of domestic violence incidents with a
view to assessing the risk to children and young people of repeat notifications.

2.1.3 Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups

The Board has sought to highlight the needs of groups of children and young people who are
potentially more vulnerable than the general population. Collaboration on a West Yorkshire
basis has produced an inter agency protocol for responding to children and young people
who are missing from home. A LSCB task group has been established to consider how
agencies in Leeds can best meet the needs of this group and will be making
recommendations to the Board in 2008/09 based on the Young Runaways Action Plan
(DCSF 2008).

The safeguarding needs of children and young people who are disabled continue to be
addressed in the LSCB training programme and a section on intimate care has been
included in interagency procedures. The Performance Management Sub Group will review
the effectiveness of protective services for this vulnerable group in 2008/09.

The LSCB is aware that the size of the looked after population in Leeds is higher than
comparators and is keen to monitor the implementation of plans to gradually reduce the
number over the coming years. Issues of threshold application, the effectiveness of
preventive services and the quality of care provided to looked after children and young
people will be key factors in this.

Children and young people who are unaccompanied asylum seekers represent a particularly
vulnerable group. Children and Young People’s Social Care has established a dedicated
Independent Reviewing Officer post to ensure compliance with reviewing regulations relating
to children who are ‘looked after.’ The Performance Management Sub Group will monitor
outcomes for this group in 2008/09.

2.1.4 Training

The Learning and Development sub group, supported by the training and development
officer has maintained and enhanced an LSCB interagency safeguarding training programme
which is well attended and continues to receive positive evaluations from participants. Follow
on workshops from the city wide neglect conference were held in the autumn of 2007,
allowing participants to explore issues in greater detail. The Joint Area Review in 2007
identified ‘the quality of, and access to, safeguarding training’ as a significant strength.

Priorities for training identified for 2008/09 include: report writing for serious case reviews;
the implications of the establishment of the Independent Safeguarding Authority; the
introduction of new Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health guidance on the physical
signs of sexual abuse; and collaborative working between adult and children’s services.

Page 17



4

2.1.5 Recruitment

Revised recruitment and selection procedures were included in the up date of interagency
safeguarding procedures which have been available on the LSCB website since July 2007.
In order to support their implementation a training programme run by accredited National
College for School Leadership trainers was rolled out in the autumn of 2007 and regular
events have been included in the LSCB training programme for 2008/09. Compliance of
partner agencies with the new procedures is being monitored through an audit of
responsibilities set out under s(11) of the Children Act 2004.

2.1.6 Allegations Concerning Staff
Although data about allegations against people who work with children and young people
has been maintained in Leeds for a number of years, 2007/08 was the first year for which
figures were required to be submitted to the DCSF. The new requirements for data collection
do not allow for ready comparison with previous years but the number of allegations (80)
indicates little change. The largest number of referrals were from Children & Young People’s
Social Care, Education and the Secure Estate. This is consistent with previous years and
with the experience that allegations are more likely to be made against workers in sole
charge of young people over longer periods of time. Although comparative national data has
yet to be published, information shared within the region suggests that Leeds has a
comparatively high number of allegations reported to the Local Authority Designated Officer,
which is likely to be indicative of well embedded policies and procedures.

Allegations of physical abuse comprised 67% of the total and 90% of the allegations within
the Secure Estate were linked to incidents of authorised physical intervention or restraint.
Allegations of emotional abuse were exclusively against staff who were, in effect, exercising
parental roles (e.g. foster carers, residential workers) and it is encouraging that these are
being referred as potential child protection issues and thus subject to external scrutiny.

It has proved difficult to differentiate between ‘unfounded,’ ‘unsubstantiated’ and ‘malicious’
allegations. A substantial number of allegations (in excess of 50%) were unwitnessed,
denied or impossible to prove or disprove, hence them being ‘unsubstantiated.’

2.1.7 Children and Young People who are Privately Fostered
Since June 2007 considerable work has been undertaken to raise the private fostering profile
with numerous briefings to a wide range of people and organisations. Publicity material,
including posters and leaflets on private fostering for staff, private foster carers and parents
has been produced and disseminated widely. Further work is needed to identify private
fostering arrangements not listed and to record any information collected accurately on
Children & Young people’s Social Care’s electronic recording system. A better analysis of
data is required as is the need to improve monitoring of all work undertaken in respect of
private fostering.

The National Minimum Standards for Private Fostering 2005 were used as a template for the
development of a three year plan to ensure minimum requirements are achieved. New
procedures have been written and implemented for conducting private fostering
assessments, and arrangements have been made for reviewing and monitoring of the
service.

Despite this above activity numbers of identified private fostering arrangements remain very
low and it is difficult to know what the actual or potential figures might be. However, it is

Page 18



5

hoped that continued local and national awareness raising will increase notification of private
fostering arrangements in the future.

Information from other Local Authorities confirms that successful publicity is better by using
a “drip, drip” approach as big campaigns have not resulted in wide scale identification of
private fostering arrangements.

2.1.8 Interagency Child Protection Processes
The transition from ‘Child Protection Register’ to ‘a list of children subject to a child protection
plan’ was accomplished in the autumn of 2007, alongside enhanced expectations about the
multi agency sharing of information prior to child protection conferences. A review of the role
of conference chairs resulted in a process being implemented whereby chairs, in exceptional
circumstances, can overrule a conference decision if they feel that it is not consistent with the
information shared. When a decision is overruled in these circumstances a multi agency
review meeting is held within one month.

2.1.9 Planning and Commissioning of Services

The Board has engaged in the formalisation of governance arrangements within Children
Leeds and has established links with bodies in the city who contribute to safeguarding
activity. Inputs into the annual refreshing of the Children and Young People’s Plan have
contributed to ensuring that ‘safeguarding’ remains a key component.

Work is ongoing to ensure that tendering and contracting processes for services
commissioned by Leeds City Council include appropriate consideration of safeguarding
issues.

2.1.10 Licensing Act 2003 & Gambling Act 2006

The LSCB support team receives all licence applications and has engaged with the Licensing
Authorities where concerns have been raised in relation to children and young people. A
more structured approach to reviewing and monitoring all applications is to be considered in
2008/09.

2.1.11 Raising Awareness of the Need to Safeguard and Promote the Welfare of
Children and Young People
The work of the Area Safeguarding Children Groups in the 5 wedges of the city has been
crucial in raising awareness amongst practitioners and first line managers about an
interagency approach to children and young people grounded in ‘safeguarding and
promoting welfare.’ They facilitate interagency support groups which enable specific issues
to be considered (e.g. learning the lessons from serious case reviews) and allow the
networking to take place which is a necessary requirement for effective inter agency
collaboration.

The Third Sector sub group (voluntary, community and faith organisations) acknowledges the
particular challenges faced by small independent organisations in adopting and embedding a
culture of safeguarding. Work is being undertaken on a communication strategy specifically
for this sector and links have been made with Leeds VOICE. A series of workshops have
been run for agencies to consider the implications of the ‘duty to safeguard’ as outlined in
s(11) of the Children Act 2004 and support is being provided to agencies in the completion of
the LSCB self audit tool. A city wide conference for Third Sector organisations is being
planned for 2008/09.

Page 19



6

Presentations about the role of the LSCB to groups of professionals in various agencies have
been delivered by the LSCB manager and to multi agency audiences through the Open
Forum events in 2007.

The development of a LSCB communication strategy to widen information available to all
agencies and the public is viewed as a priority for 2008/09. Work is ongoing to update the
LSCB website to support this initiative.

2.1.12 Responding to Unexpected Child Deaths
Leeds played a central role in the development of a West Yorkshire protocol for responding
to unexpected child deaths, with the PCT establishing a ‘rapid response’ service that was
operational on 1 April 2008. The operation of this service will be monitored through 2008/09.

Where the deaths of children have attracted media attention, close co-operation between
agencies and communications officers has ensured that press statements are drafted and
agreed in a timely manner.

2.2 Ensuring the Effectiveness of Work in Leeds to Safeguard and Promote the
Welfare of Children and Young People

2.2.1 Partner Agency Compliance with Statutory Safeguarding Requirements
The Performance Management sub group has developed a self evaluation audit tool to
review compliance with the requirement of ‘a duty to safeguard’ (s11 Children Act 2004). A
phased audit process has been initiated, commencing with agencies which are represented
on the Board. An initial analysis of the returns from these key agencies involved in
safeguarding children and young people has been presented to the Board, indicating a high
overall level of compliance overall and identifying common areas for improvement, including:
the availability of information for children and young people, safer recruitment practices,
initiating Common Assessments, and establishing robust information systems. The audit tool
requires agencies to outline improvement plans, progress against which will be audited in
2008/09.

The second phase of the audit has engaged with Third Sector agencies, supported through
workshops run by the Third Sector sub group in conjunction with the Children and Young
People’s Forum. Initial findings will be available in the Autumn 2008, allowing the broadening
of a multi agency overview and identifying the support needs of the Third Sector.

The performance management framework has been refined and will provide a structure to
collate outputs and outcomes from partner agencies and facilitate an overview of the
effectiveness of safeguarding activity in Leeds. The sub group has identified priorities for
2008/09 that includes: children and young people who are ‘looked after;’ thresholds for
assessment and intervention; safeguarding children with disabilities; and children who are
missing.

2.2.2 Serious Case Reviews
In the light of the revised West Yorkshire Inter Agency Safeguarding Procedures the Board
has reviewed and developed processes to undertake serious case reviews, giving particular
attention to the need for appropriate independence in the role of overview report author, the
composition of standing and overview panels and decision making regarding the undertaking
of a review. Increased involvement by Ofsted and Government Office in monitoring and
evaluating Serious Case Reviews has prompted the Board to recognise that dedicated
capacity to manage the process is required within the LSCB support team.

Page 20



7

In 2007/08 the LSCB progressed one Serious Case Review and commissioned four others,
one of which has been undertaken in collaboration with the MAPPA Strategic Board.
Overview reports for two reviews were received by the LSCB in July 2008, with three cases
still being progressed. Partner agencies continue to contribute to reviews undertaken by
other Local Safeguarding Children Boards.

A biennial review of serious case reviews in Leeds (2005 – 07) was received by the Board,
identifying areas for improvement that included: communication between agencies;
responding to cases of neglect; supervision of staff; undertaking assessments; and the
application of thresholds.

Action plans resulting from serious case reviews are monitored by the Performance
Management sub group and lessons learned considered by all sub and area groups.
Dissemination of messages from reviews occurs in city wide and area events for practitioners
and first line managers.  In the annual review process all sub and area groups identified
learning the lessons from serious case reviews as being a priority for 2008/09.

2.2.3 Child Death Overview Panel

The Board took a lead role in the development of a West Yorkshire Protocol for the collection
and analysis of information about all child deaths and developed processes and procedures
that enabled a system to be operational on 1 April 2008. Panel meetings occur on a monthly
basis and a first annual report providing analysis and identifying trends will be available to
the Board in the Autumn of 2009.

2.3 Development of the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board

2.3.1  Governance Arrangements within the Children’s Trust Arrangements
The Board has engaged in events arranged by Children Leeds, inputting information about
the purpose, role and independence of the LSCB. A review of the Board constitution, terms
of reference etc for all constituent groups has been undertaken with revisions to be received
in 2008/09.

The Independent Chair of the LSCB has regular meetings with the Director of Children’s
Services and the Lead Member in order to ensure they are briefed appropriately about
relevant safeguarding issues.

2.3.2 Links with Bodies in Leeds who Contribute to Safeguarding
Representation and involvement with the other bodies such as Safer Leeds, the Integrated
Strategic Commissioning Board etc has been established. Further development of these
links will occur in 2008/09 to ensure effective communication and influence.

2.3.3 Participation of Children, Young People, Parents and Carers

The East Area Safeguarding Children group in conjunction with a local children’s centre is
piloting the establishment of a parents / carers reference group and links are being made to
established participation process for children and young people in Leeds such as the Youth
Council. Developing an effective participation strategy is a key task for the Board in 2008/09.

2.3.4  Organisational Structure

A review of constituent components of the Board indicates that the current structure is fit for
purpose. Capacity issues remain a challenge for members in all groups, but motivation and
energy levels are high. There is a commitment from staff in all partner agencies to improve
safeguarding outcomes for children and young people in Leeds.

Page 21



8

2.3.5 Resourcing the Work of the Board and the LSCB Support Team (see appendix 2)
The Board reviewed resource requirements in autumn 2007, increasing the annual budget
from £157,000 to £305, 000 for 2008/09 in order to ensure compliance with the requirements
for LSCBs outlined in Working Together 2006. The uplift was largely borne by Children’s
Services and Health partner agencies . The budget will be reviewed in the Autumn 2008 in
the light of the developing understanding of the role and cost of the Board’s safeguarding
activities. The annual financial statement for 2007/08 indicates a slight under spend of
£8,000 over the year.

The increased demands in relation to undertaking serious case reviews has resulted in
changes to planned recruitment to the development worker post. A decision to include
management of serious case reviews in the job role has implications for the degree of
support that can be offered to small Third Sector agencies.

In establishing itself, the LSCB support team has been hampered by delays in recruitment to
development, administrative and training officer (maternity leave) posts. Agency workers are
being used in 2008/09 to ensure key tasks are undertaken and developed whilst recruitment
processes bear fruition.

2.3.6 LSCB Business Plan 2007 – 10 (see appendix 1)
The plan was established with a high level of input from LSCB members throughout its
structure. It is reviewed on a quarterly basis by all constituent groups, allowing progress to be
monitored and adjustments made in accordance with changing priorities.

Bryan Gocke, LSCB Manager
31 July 2008

Page 22



1

LSCB Annual Review July 2008

Appendix 1 : ANNUAL REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN 2007 – 2008

Format based on Working Together 2006, Chapter 3:

• Objective 1 : To co-ordinate work in Leeds by each person or body to safeguard and promote the welfare of
children and young people.

• Objective 2: To ensure the effectiveness of work by each person or body in Leeds to safeguard and promote the
welfare of children and young people.

• Objective 3: To develop the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board

This is a review, received and accepted by the Board on 22 July 2008, of the first year of the LSCB Business Plan 2007 –
10.

Progress towards targets

In order to easily monitor progress the LSCB has adopted a traffic light system for the business plan:

GREEN = Task is completed, everything is in place and up to date.

AMBER = Work is planned and being undertaken

RED = Work has yet to be planned / started

P
a
g
e
 2

3



2

Objective 1
1.1 Developing policies and procedures for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)/Agencies

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1.1.1 To develop

consistent
common

thresholds to
underpin inter

agency
assessments and

joint working

1) Production of Common
Thresholds guidance -
‘Levels of Need & Service
Delivery’

To Policy &
Procedure sub
June 2008

To LSCB
July 2008

Levels of Need &
Service Delivery
Working Party

GREEN
Levels of Need
document on
Children Leeds
website Sep
2008

1.1.2 To develop
an e safety
strategy for Leeds
in line with BECTA
guidance.

1) Convene an e safety
strategy group as a sub group
of the LSCB

Feb 2008 LSCB Manager +
Corporate IT GREEN

P
a
g
e
 2

4



3

2) Identify LSCB e safety
champion

Jan 2008 Champion = Til
Wright (Education
Leeds)

GREEN

3) Develop e safety policies
and procedures

Nov 2008 Strategy group +
Policy & Procedure
sub

AMBER
Outline Strategy
developed Jun 08

4) Development &
implementation of strategies
for communication, awareness
raising, training

Sep 2008 Strategy group +
LSCB sub groups AMBER

5) To deliver internet safety
training (based on NSPCC
package)

2008/09 Learning &
Development sub

GREEN Included in
2008/09
programme.

1.1.3  Implement
revised inter
agency
safeguarding
procedures

1) Launch Safeguarding
Procedures via LSCB website

2 July 2007 LSCB Manager
GREEN

New procedures
accessible on
website from
02/07/07.

1.1.4 To ensure

that 3rd sector
single agency
policies and
procedures are
consistent with

1) To update model child
protection policies and
procedures

April 2008 3rd Sector sub
supported by Policy
& Procedure sub.

GREEN
Available from
Mar 2008

P
a
g
e
 2

5



4

inter-agency
Safeguarding
procedures

Objective 1
1.2 Ensure that effective response work is undertaken to protect children and young people who are suffering or at risk
of significant harm:

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)/Agencies

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1) To ensure an appropriate
focus on the child in the
revision of the Domestic
Violence Plan

Revised DV
plan to LSCB
April 2008

Safer Leeds,
C&YPSC & DCSU GREEN

1.2.1  In the
context of
domestic violence

2) To review operation of the
system of Police notification / 
referral to Children & Young
People Social Care

Jan 2008 C&YPSC & West
Yorkshire Police GREEN

3) To develop a monitoring
system for Police notifications
of DV

Oct 2008 C&YPSC & West
Yorkshire Police

AMBER Options for
hosting this
function currently
being considered

4) To ensure DV indicators in
LSCB performance
management framework

Sep 2008 DCSU &
Performance
Management sub

AMBER

P
a
g
e
 2

6



5

1.2.2  In the
context of parental
substance misuse
and parental
mental ill-health

1) To consider the
recommendations of the
National Children’s Bureau
case file audit

LSCB July
2007

Nation Children’s
Bureau GREEN

Integrated
Strategic
Commissioning
Board updated
June 2007

LSCB accepted
recommendations
July 2007

P
a
g
e
 2

7



6

2) To progress
recommendations of
National Children’s Bureau
audit:

• Establish Steering
Group

• Develop action plan

• Development of joint
working protocols

October 2007

Nov 2007

Jan 2009

LSCB Manager

NCB & Steering
Group

NCB & Steering
Group

GREEN

GREEN

AMBER NCB contracted
to complete
protocols

1.2.4  In the

context of bullying
1) To consider the Anti-
Bullying Strategy and its
implementation

Presentation to
LSCB July
2007

Anti Bullying
Strategy Group GREEN

Strategy &
recommendations
accepted by
LSCB July 2007
Action Plan
received by
Board 16/10/07

P
a
g
e
 2

8



7

2) To identify an LSCB Anti
Bullying Champion

Sep 2007 Champion = Til
Wright(Education) GREEN

3) To receive monitoring and
evaluation information re:

• Prevalence

• Effectiveness of the
strategy

Oct 2007

Oct 2008

Performance
Management sub

GREEN

AMBER

Tell Us survey

1.2.5  In the

context of sexual
exploitation

1) W. Yorks protocol for
protecting children and young
people from sexual
exploitation to be completed

July 2008 Policy & Procedure
sub GREEN

Included in W.
Yorks
interagency
procedures

1) To develop policy and
procedure re sexually harmful
behaviour

July 2007 Policy & Procedure
sub GREEN

Included in W.
Yorks
interagency
procedures

1.2.6 Sexually

concerning/harmful
behaviour

2) To progress proposal for a
co-ordinator / development
worker

2008/09 Sexually Harmful
Behaviour Group
& LSCB Manager

AMBER

Objective 1
1.3 Ensure the safeguarding and promotion of wellbeing of groups of C&YP who are potentially more vulnerable than the
general population

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)/Agencies

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1.3.1 Children

who are looked
1) To monitor the number and
nature of allegations and

Sep 2008 Performance
Management sub AMBER

Included in
performance

P
a
g
e
 2

9



8

after complaints made by LAC management
framework

1.3.2 Children and

young people who
have run away

1) W. Yorks Protocol to be
completed

Sep 2008 W.Yorkshire
Consortium & Policy
& Procedure sub

AMBER
Mar 2008 final
draft completed

2) To review services for
C&YP who have run away

• Establishment of a task
group

April 2008 CP Co-ordinator
DCSU

GREEN

Jan 08 CHIVA
presentation

1) To include section on
intimate care in interagency
procedures

April 2008 Policy & Procedure
sub GREEN

Included in W.
Yorks
interagency
procedures

1.3.4 Children and
young people who
are disabled

2) To continue to deliver
safeguarding training re
children with disabilities

Ongoing Learning &
Development sub

GREEN In LSCB training
programme 08/09

P
a
g
e
 3

0



9

3)To monitor that where
appropriate, Children &Young
People who are disabled and
subject to a Child Protection
Plan have had an integrated
needs assessment

Ongoing Snr Child protection
Co-ordinator
C&YPSC

GREEN

1) To ensure that UASC are
monitored through LAC
systems

Oct 2007 Snr Child protection
Co-ordinator
C&YPSC

GREEN
Dedicated
Independent
Reviewing Officer
post for UASC in
place from OCT
2007

1.3.5 Children &
young people who
are
unaccompanied
asylum seekers

2) To monitor the
effectiveness of the
arrangements to ensure good
outcomes for UASC

Sep 2008 Performance
management sub AMBER

Included in
performance
management
framework

1.3.6 Children

who are missing
education

1) To monitor through updates
from CME Strategy Group

Sep 2008 Performance
Management sub AMBER

Included in
performance
management
framework

P
a
g
e
 3

1



10

1) To contribute to the
refreshed Children & Young
People Plan

June 2007 and
annually
thereafter

Chief Officer
C&YPSC & LSCB
Manager

GREEN
1.3.7 Ensure

safeguarding
interventions
promote progress
for C&YP across
all 5 ECM
outcomes

2) Awareness raising for
professionals through
conferences, training and local
fora.

Ongoing LSCB Manager GREEN • Local forum
events

• Social Work
Conference

• Neglect
Workshops

Objective 1
1.4 Training of staff who work with children or in services affecting the safety and welfare of children and young people

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

P
a
g
e
 3

2



11

1) Monitor take up and
completion rate of E Academy
package

April 2008 Learning &
Development sub

GREEN Arrangements
developed to
improve
monitoring of
completion rates

1.4.1 To ensure

the effectiveness
of on-line training
packages

2) Collate and analyse
participant evaluations

Sep 2008 LSCB Training &
Development Officer AMBER

1) Monitor number of
participants

April 2008 Learning &
development sub GREEN

2) Collate and analyse
participant evaluations:

July 2008 LSCB Training &
Development Officer AMBER

1.4.2 To ensure
the quality and
effectiveness of
LSCB training

3) To review adequacy of
available resources for LSCB
training

Sep 2007 Learning &
Development sub GREEN

£10K included in
budget for 08/09

1) To audit the compliance of
partner agencies re the
delivery of safeguarding
training

April 2008 Learning &
Development sub

GREEN

1.4.3 To analyse

the quality and
effectiveness of
single agency
training

2) To receive data from
partner agencies about the
number of participants trained
at level 1a/2a

Ongoing Learning &
Development sub GREEN

P
a
g
e
 3

3



12

1) To respond to training
needs identified by the LSCB

Ongoing Learning &
Development sub GREEN

2) To adapt the programme to
meet changing need

Ongoing Learning and
Development sub GREEN

1.4.4 To continue

to develop the
LSCB training
programme

3)To explore training needs of
3rd Sector

Ongoing Learning &
Development sub +
3rd sector sub GREEN

4) To increase awareness &
improve access for 3rd Sector
agencies to LSCB training.
- Leeds VOICE + LSCB
websites to be linked

April 2008 Learning &
Development sub +
3rd Sector sub +
Leeds VOICE

GREEN

1.4.5 To deliver
follow on
workshops based
on the neglect
conferences of
2006/07

1) To plan, organise and
deliver workshops

November
2007

Learning &
Development sub GREEN

Workshops
delivered
08/10/07

Objective 1
1.5 Recruitment and Supervision of persons working with children

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

P
a
g
e
 3

4



13

Progress

1) Revised Recruitment
procedures to be launched as
part of the W. Yorks
procedures

2 July 2007 Policy &
Procedure sub GREEN

New procedures
accessible on
website from
02/07/07.

1.5.1 To

implement policies
and procedures
based on national
guidelines

2) To audit partner agency
compliance with
interagency recruitment &
selection procedures

July 2008 Performance
Management
sub

GREEN
Included in S(11)
audit Jan – Jun 2008

1) Support the development
of the training package

July 2007 Learning &
Development
sub (6 NCSL
trainers)

GREEN

• Training package
revised for use in
Leeds

• Programme of 10
sessions Oct –
Dec 2007

1.5.2 To endorse

the delivery of
National College
for School
Leadership
 training

2) Establish and deliver
training to 3rd Sector

Dec 2007 and
then ongoing

Learning &
Development
sub

GREEN
Sessions accessible
by 3rd Sector staff

1.5.3 All LSCB
members to have
an up to date CRB
check

1) Monitoring system to be
established and operated

Jan 2008 LSCB chair &
LSCB Manager GREEN

1.5.4 To ensure 1) To review implementation of Nov 2007 Performance GREEN Completed

P
a
g
e
 3

5



14

high quality
supervision of all
practitioners and
1st line managers
engaged in
safeguarding
activity

action plans from SCR child
‘H’

2) To review effectiveness of
supervision practices across
all partner agencies

July 2008

management
sub

Performance
management
sub

GREEN S(11) Audit Jan –
Jun 08

Objective

1.6 Investigation of allegations concerning staff

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

P
a
g
e
 3

6



15

Officer(s) Amber, Green) Implications/
Progress

1.6.1 To ensure

agency
compliance with
national guidance

1) To audit compliance
with procedures in
partner agencies

July 2008 Performance
management
sub

GREEN
S(11) audit Jan –
Jun 08

1) Monitoring system to be
established

Nov 2006 Snr Child
protection Co-
ordinator
C&YPSC

GREEN
1.6.2 To monitor
outcomes of
investigations
about allegations
against staff 2) Reporting of trends and

analysis to LSCB
July 2008 Snr Child

protection Co-
ordinator
C&YPSC

GREEN

Objective 1
1.7 Safety and Welfare of Children who are privately fostered

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

P
a
g
e
 3

7



16

Progress

1) Produce and implement
written procedures and
guidance

Nov 2007 C&YPSC
GREEN

Implemented Oct 07

2) Monitor notification and
compliance with procedures

Initial report July 2008 C&YPSC GREEN

1.7.1 To co-

ordinate the
implementation of
measures to
strengthen the
notification,
assessment and
support of private
fostering
arrangements

3) Raise public and
professional awareness via a
communication strategy.

Dec 2007 C&YPSC
GREEN

Nov 2007 leaflets
and posters
distributed

Objective
1.8 Interagency Child Protection processes

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

P
a
g
e
 3

8



17

1.8.1 To replace

the Child
Protection Register
by a list of children
subject to plans of
protection

1) Systems and processes to
be revised

March 2008 Snr Child
Protection Co-

ordinator
C&YPSC

GREEN
Completed Nov 2007

1)Restructuring of Children &
Young People Social Care
Child Protection Unit

Oct 2008 C&YPSC
AMBER

2) Review the role of
conference chairs

July 2007 Snr Child
protection Co-
ordinator
C&YPSC

GREEN
Implemented Sep
2007

3) Review information sharing
processes prior to Child
Protection conferences

April 2008 Snr Child
protection Co-
ordinator
C&YPSC

GREEN
W. Yorks
interagency
procedures revised

1.8.2 To ensure

effective child
protection systems
and processes

4) Audit of conference reports
and minutes

Oct 2008 Snr Child
protection Co-
ordinator
C&YPSC

AMBER

P
a
g
e
 3

9



18

5) Audits of conference
decisions and
recommendations

Oct 2008 Snr Child
protection Co-
ordinator
C&YPSC

AMBER

1) Outcomes to be included in
child protection plans

Oct 2008 Snr Child
protection Co-
ordinator
C&YPSC

AMBER
Increased planning
being undertaken in
CP Conferences

1.8.3 To promote
an outcomes
approach to child
protection
interventions

2) Work to be undertaken with
Children & Young People
Social Care 1st & 2nd line
managers through
workshops

Mar 2008 Jan Horwarth
GREEN

P
a
g
e
 4

0



19

Objective 1
1.9 Board Participation in the planning and commissioning of services

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1) Governance issues to be
explored with Children Leeds

July 2007 LSCB Manager
GREEN

Event with ISCB +
Children Leeds held
06/07/07

1.9.1
Formalisation of
input into
Children’s Trust
arrangements
planning and
commissioning
processes

2) To identify & establish links
& LSCB representation on
appropriate bodies

March 2008 LSCB Manager
& DCSU GREEN

1) Drafts provided for overview
and ‘stay safe’ sections

June 2007 and
annually
thereafter

LSCB Manager
GREEN

Completed June
2007

1.9.2 Ensure

safeguarding
issues are
included in the
Children & Young
People’s Plan

2) Liaison with Director of
Children’s Services Unit

June 2007 Chief Officer
C&YPSC GREEN

Completed June
2007

P
a
g
e
 4

1



20

1.9.3 Ensure

commissioned
services are
compliant with
safeguarding
requirements

To review:

• Commissioning processes

• Contract templates

Oct 2008

Oct 2008

LSCB Manager,
C&YPSC, LCC
Corporate
Procurement

AMBER

Liaison ongoing with
Safer Leeds + LCC
Procurement
services

1) To develop links with Adult
Safeguarding Board

April 2007 Child protection
Co-ordinator
DCSU

GREEN
1.9.4 Ensure
effective co-
ordination of child
and adult services 2) To progress the

recommendations of the
National Children’s Bureau
case file audit (see 1.2.2)

Jan 2009 NCB & Steering
Group

AMBER
LSCB accepted
recommendations
July 2007

Protocols being
developed

Objective 1
1.10 Discharging responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 & Gambling Act 2006

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1) To determine and
implement the most effective
way to influence licensing
decisions

March 2008 LSCB Manager RED To be addressed
2008 / 09

1.10.1 To monitor

the impact on
children of
licensing
applications

2) details of applications to be
monitored

Ongoing LSCB Manager AMBER Applications logged

P
a
g
e
 4

2



21

Objective 1
1.11 Communicating and raising awareness of the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1) To facilitate participation of
children and young people and
their families

Oct 2008 LSCB Manager
& DCSU AMBER

• Links with
existing groups

• NE ASCG pilot
with Children’s
Centre

2) Identify key messages July 2008 LSCB
Development
Officer

RED
Development Officer
to be appointed

3) Identify target audiences July 2008 LSCB
Development
Officer

RED
Development Officer
to be appointed

4) Develop materials Oct 2008 LSCB
Development
Officer

RED
Development Officer
to be appointed

5) Link with Children Leeds
communication strategy

Oct 2008 LSCB Manager
& DCSU AMBER

6) Plan & deliver awareness
raising activities

Oct 2008 LSCB Manager
AMBER

Input into Open
Forum events Jun 07

1.11.1 Develop a
Communication
strategy

7) To update content of LSCB
website

Oct 2008 LSCB Admin +
Sub group &
ASCG chairs

AMBER
Ongoing

P
a
g
e
 4

3



22

1) Design & distribute
materials

Oct 2008 LSCB
Development
Officer

RED
Development officer
to be appointed

1.11.2 Ensure

children know who
they can contact
when they have
concerns about
their own or other’s
safety and welfare

2) Update website April 2008 LSCB Manager
AMBER

Information currently
available on website

1) Design & distribute
materials

Oct 2008 LSCB
Development
Officer

RED
Development Officer
to be appointed

1.11.3 Ensure
adults (including
those who are
harming children)
know who they can
contact when they
have concerns
about the safety or
welfare of a child

2) Update website Oct 2008 LSCB
Development
Officer

RED
Development Officer
to be appointed

P
a
g
e
 4

4



23

1) To ensure 3rd sector
perspective in LSCB
communication strategy

Jan 2009 3rd Sector sub AMBER

2) Resource implications of
development activity to be
assessed

Sep 2007 3rd Sector sub
GREEN

Development Officer
post included in
budget 08/09.

1.11.4 To

develop,
encourage and
support awareness
of safeguarding
issues in 3rd Sector

3) To develop a 3rd Sector
Communication Strategy

• Publicity materials

• Update LSCB website

• LSCB information to be
included in Leeds VOICE

Oct 2008

Oct 2008

Mar 2008

3rd Sector sub

3RD Sector sub

3rd Sector sub &
Leeds VOICE

AMBER

AMBER

GREEN

Jun 08 drafts
produced

updates ongoing

Link established
between Leeds
Voice + LSCB
website

P
a
g
e
 4

5



24

4) Awareness raising to be
promoted through C&YP
Forum

• C&YP Forum safeguarding
workshop to delivered

16/10/07 &
ongoing

April 2008

3rd Sector sub &
LSCB Manager

Chair 3rd Sector
sub & LSCB
Manager

GREEN

GREEN

16/10/07

Workshops 9 + 16
April

5) Buddying system for new
sub group members Autumn 2008 3rd Sector sub AMBER

To be launched at
conference

6) 3rd Sector safeguarding
conference Autumn 2008

3rd Sector +
L&D subs AMBER

Objective 1
1.12 Developing procedures to ensure a co-ordinated response to unexpected child deaths

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1.12.1 Agree
procedures and
protocol with other
West Yorkshire
SCB’s

1) Protocol to be drafted To LSCB July
2007

Consultant
Public Health &
LSCB Manager

GREEN
Protocol accepted
LSCB July 2007

P
a
g
e
 4

6



25

1) Procedures to be drafted
and agreed

March 2008 Consultant
Public Health &
LSCB Manager

GREEN Procedures agreed
Feb 2008

1.12.2 Leeds

rapid response
system to be
developed

2) Rapid response to be
implemented

March 2008 PCT GREEN Operational from
01/04/08

1) To ensure co-ordinated
responses on a case by
case basis

ongoing LSCB Chair &
LSCB Manager

GREEN

2) To review current
practices re multi
agency press releases

Oct 2008 LSCB Manager AMBER

1.12.3 To ensure

a co-ordinated,
multi agency
approach to the
media in the event
of a child death
attracting national
media coverage

3) To develop a multi agency
protocol

Oct 2008 LSCB Manager AMBER

P
a
g
e
 4

7



26

Objective 2
2.1 Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of work undertaken in Leeds to safeguard and promote the welfare
children and young people and advising partner agencies on ways to improve

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1) Audit partner agency
compliance with S (11)
obligations

July 2008 Performance
Management
sub

GREEN
S(11) Audit Jan - Jun
08

2.1.1 Ensure

agencies’
compliance with
statutory
safeguarding
requirements 2) Engage 3rd Sector agencies

in planning to meet S (11)
obligations

• C&YP Forum
safeguarding workshop

July 2008

April 2008

Performance
management
sub + 3rd Sector
sub

Chair 3rd Sector
sub & LSCB
Manager

AMBER

GREEN

Dec 2007 3rd sector
sub – members to
pilot audit.

3rd Sector
Workshops
9 + 16 April 2008

P
a
g
e
 4

8



27

1) Review and finalise
Performance management
framework

Oct 2007 Performance
Management
sub

GREEN LSCB agreed
framework Jan 2007
Revised Oct 2007

2) Provide performance data
against JAR grade descriptors

Sep 2007 LSCB Manager
& DCSU

GREEN LSCB JAR workshop
25/09/07

LSCB 16/10/07

3) Identify existing, relevant
measures to populate
framework

Sep 2008 LSCB Manager
& DCSU AMBER

4) Use populated framework to
analyse interagency
safeguarding activity

Sep 2008 Performance
management
sub

AMBER

2.1.2 Monitor and

review relevant
performance
management
information re
single and
interagency
safeguarding
activity

5) Develop interagency
outcome measures

2008/09 Performance
Management
sub

AMBER
- Nov 06 LSCB
outcomes workshop
- Included in
Business Plan 08/09

2.1.3 Monitor the
quality of practice
across agencies

1) Audits of casefiles where
there has been significant inter
agency involvement

2008/09 Performance
Management
sub

AMBER
- Oct 2007 JAR
preparation
- Included in
Business Plan 08/09

P
a
g
e
 4

9



28

Objective 2
2.2 Undertaking Serious Case Reviews where a child has dies or been seriously harmed in circumstances where abuse is
known or suspected and advising on lessons that can be learned

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1) Review current
arrangements

Oct 2007 LSCB Manager,
Chair
Performance
Management
sub

GREEN
• Costs of

independent
overview report
authors

• Reconfiguration
of LSCB support
team

2.2.1 Establish

processes which
are compliant with
Working Together
(2006)

2) Produce written procedure Jan 2008 LSCB Manager
GREEN

Overall procedures
agreed by LSCB Jan
2008.

2.2.2 Establish
links with Child
Death Review
processes

1) Agree organisational
structure

March 2008 LSCB Manager
& Consultant
Public Health

GREEN

P
a
g
e
 5

0



29

2.2.3 To ensure

findings from
serious case
reviews impact
positively on
practice

1) Disseminate learning from
serious case reviews  through:

• biennial review

• Local events for
practitioners

April 2008

April 2008

Chair
Performance
Management
sub

ASCGs &
Learning &
Development
sub

GREEN

GREEN • Neglect
workshops    Oct
07

• East ASCG Nov
07

2.2.4 Implement
recommendations
from Serious Case
Reviews

1) Monitor implementation of
Action Plans within agreed
timescales

Ongoing
Performance
management
sub

GREEN

P
a
g
e
 5

1



30

Objective 2
2.3 Collecting and Analysing information about Child Deaths

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

1) Input into W. Yorks protocol Jan 2008 Consultant
Public Health &
LSCB Manager

GREEN

2) Development of Leeds
procedures and process

Feb 2008 Consultant
Public Health &
LSCB Manager

GREEN

2.3.1 Child Death
Review Panel to
consider all the
deaths of children
in Leeds

3) Implementation of process: April 2008 Implementation
group & LSCB
Admin

GREEN
System operational
from 01/04/08

P
a
g
e
 5

2



31

Objective 3

 3.1. Development of Leeds Safeguarding Children Board

Aim Tasks Timescale Responsible
Officer(s)

Status (Red,
Amber, Green)

Resource
Implications/

Progress

3.1.1 Ensure
compliance with
regulations and
statutory guidance

1) Audit compliance with
Working Together 2006
Chapter 3 through the Annual
Review 2007/08

July 2008 LSCB Manager GREEN
Annual Review 07/08
to LSCB July 08

3.1.2 Ensure
membership
of the board
reflects the
ethnic and
cultural
makeup of
Leeds

1) Review membership of
board in light of
demographic information

• To establish current
makeup of LSCB

Oct 2008 LSCB manager AMBER Process agreed Jan
08

1) Input into Children Leeds
governance seminar

July 2007 LSCB
GREEN

Governance seminar
held July 2007

3.1.3 Establish

governance
arrangements and
links with
Children’s Trust
arrangements

2) Review LSCB constitution July 2008 Executive group GREEN

P
a
g
e
 5

3



32

1) Identify relevant bodies,
partnerships etc

ongoing LSCB Manager
AMBER

3.1.4 Establish

working links with
bodies in Leeds
who contribute to
safeguarding

2) Formalise links and
information flows

ongoing LSCB Manager AMBER

1) Engagement with C Leeds
participation events

Jan 2008 LSCB Manager
GREEN

Information received
from events

3.1.5 Establish

participation of
C&YP, parents / 
carers in the work
of the board

2) Development of
participation processes to
inform LSCB

Oct 2008 LSCB Manager
& DCSU AMBER

1) Review sub group
structure, membership and
responsibilities

Jul 2008 Executive
Group

GREEN3.1.6 Ensure
LSCB
organisational
structure is fit for
purpose

2) Develop Area Groups &
Inter agency support groups

ongoing Exec Group
Area
Safeguarding
Children Group
Chairs + LSCB
Manager

GREEN
Area Chairs
meetings reinstated
from Jan 2008

P
a
g
e
 5

4



33

1) To review staffing / 
resource implications of
Working Together chapter 3
guidance

Oct 2007 Partner
agencies +
LSCB Manager

GREEN Budget uplift
proposal agreed
LSCB Oct 2007

3.1.7 Ensure

LSCB is resourced
appropriately  to
carry out its duties
effectively

2) To set a budget 2008/09

• Funders to agree uplift

Jan 2008

Feb 2008

LSCB Manager GREEN

GREEN

3.1.8 To regularly

review progress
against action
plans

1) To review Business Plan July 2008 &
annually
thereafter

Executive group
GREEN

Bryan Gocke, LSCB Manager

31/07/08

P
a
g
e
 5

5



P
a
g
e
 5

6

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
Report of the Director of Children’s Service 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 8th January 2009 
 
Subject:  Children’s Services and the Children and Young People’s Plan 

Priorities Update (Looked After Children Focus) 
 

     
 
 
1.0 Background 
 

1.1  The Children’s Services Scrutiny Board has a well-established process of 
receiving regular update reports providing a broad and brief overview of key 
developments across the children’s trust arrangements and discussing 
progress against specific priorities within the Children and Young People’s 
Plan.   

 
1.2 These reports aim to give members: a feel for the strategic ‘direction of travel’ 

across children’s services; an insight into key initiatives and developments; 
and a ‘manageable’ way of looking across the various priorities within the 
Children and Young People’s (CYP) Plan over the course of the year.   

 
1.3  The first of these reports in September 2007 focused on the CYP Plan 

priorities of: Improving the assessment and care of children in need; and 
reducing the proportion of vulnerable groups not in education, employment or 
training. The second report, received in November 2007 addressed the CYP 
Plan priorities of: reducing teenage conception; and enabling the engagement 
of parents and young learners in early years and primary schools.  The third 
report, in February 2008 considered the priorities to: reduce bullying and 
improve services for children, young people and families with additional 
mental health needs.  The latest report, in October 2008, looked at the 
priorities of reducing anti-social behaviour and reducing obesity and raising 
activity.  Members agreed that within their next update they would consider 
the various priorities of the Children and Young People’s Plan, but focus 
specifically on work to improve these for looked after children in Leeds. 

 

Specific Implications For: 
 

Equality and Diversity      
 
X  

  

Community Cohesion      
 
X  

 

Narrowing the Gap          
 
X  

 

Electoral Wards Affected:  All 

 

Originator: Adam Hewitt 
/ Alun Rees 

 
Tel: 0113 24 76940  

Agenda Item 9

Page 57



1.4 Like the previous ‘update’ reports brought to the board, this report follows the 
structure of firstly providing a brief overview of recent key developments 
across children’s trust arrangements and then, for the majority of the report, 
highlighting the range of work being done to improve priority outcomes for 
looked after children in Leeds. 

 
 
2.0 Children’s trust arrangements update 
 
2.1 Each element of the children’s trust arrangements has continued to progress 

work to help address priority areas, the following provides a very brief 
summary of some of the key areas covered since the latest update report to 
Scrutiny in October: 

 
 Children Leeds Partnership 
 
2.2 The Children Leeds Partnership has met twice since the latest update report 

to scrutiny.  The first of these meetings was an extraordinary meeting as part 
of the consultation process for the development of the new Children and 
Young People’s Plan.  Young people were significantly involved in this 
meeting.  More details of this meeting are in the CYP Plan 2009 Update 
section below. 

 
2.3 The second meeting in early-November, helped bring delegates up-to-date on 

and enabled them to shape several key areas of work, specifically: the 
Disabled Children and Young People’s Strategy 2008-2011; the Leeds 
Inclusive Learning Strategy; the Attendance Strategy; and an update on 
developments relating to the 14-19 agenda.  The Partnership’s next meeting 
is in January 2009. 

 
 Integrated Strategic Commissioning Board 
 
2.4 The integrated Strategic Commissioning Board (ISCB) has also met twice 

since the latest update report to Scrutiny.  At its October meeting the Board 
took an overview of how partners are working together to address child 
poverty and the ‘family focused’ approach being taken in Leeds to achieve 
this.  The Board linked this in with a review of progress against the family 
support and parenting strategy.  The Board carried out its overview and 
planning role with early consideration of the 2009/10 budget and undertook its 
performance monitoring role with an early review of progress against the Joint 
Area review Action Plan, more detailed consideration of this progress will be 
given later in the year.  The Board also considered the strategic 
commissioning framework for children’s services. 

 
2.5 At its December meeting the Board considered performance monitoring 

information for quarter 2 (being presented to Scrutiny). It also looked in detail 
at the range of policy and research recently presented to support the 
strengthening and further development of local children’s trust arrangements.  
This includes: 

 

Page 58



- Children’s Trust arrangements  - new Statutory Guidance 
- Consultation on "Statutory guidance on the roles and responsibilities of the 

Director of Children’s Services and Lead Member for Children’s Services". 
- Audit Commission Report “Are we there yet?”  

  
2.6 The Board has proposed that a future ‘Governance Seminar’, possibly in the 

spring of 2009, should be held to enable partners to take stock of the new 
national ‘thinking’ and best practice in relation to children’s trust arrangements 
so that Leeds can continue to be pro-active in taking forward this agenda. 

 
 The Leeds Safeguarding Children Board 
 
2.7 A separate report on the Scrutiny Board’s January 2009 agenda considers in 

some detail the role and work of the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board.  As 
such, members are advised to refer to this report for the latest information on 
the Board’s work.  The Chair of the Board and the Safeguarding Manager will 
be present to discuss this further with members. 

 
3.0 Children and Young People’s Plan 2009 Update 
 
3.1  Work has been progressing to consult on and develop the new Leeds 

Children and Young People’s Plan for 2009 and beyond.  The main period of 
widespread consultation concluded in autumn 2008 and following this the 
Integrated Strategic Commissioning Board were presented with and approved 
the overall structure and approach for the plan as well as contributing to the 
formulation of the main priorities list.   

 
3.2  A special Children Leeds Partnership meeting then brought adults and young 

people together from across the city to consider the priorities that had 
emerged.  This was an important session because, as a direct result of young 
people’s input an additional priority was added that had not been captured 
sufficiently in the earlier consultation – young people were particularly keen 
that ‘places to go and things to do’ should be an explicit priority within the 
Plan.   

 
3.3 Workshops have recently been run, themed around the main priorities, to 

develop more intricate knowledge of the current position and future plans 
around these.  Work is also being done to link in the Plan’s development with 
the current planning of the 2009/10 budget, with a view to targeting resources 
towards priority areas. 

 
3.4 All of the work above is being brought together to support the creation of the 

new Plan.  It is expected that a draft will be presented to the Children’s 
Services Scrutiny Board in early spring 2009. 

 
4.0 Leeds Annual Performance Assessment (APA) 2008 
 
4.1 Ofsted carried out an annual performance assessment of local authority 

services for children and young people early in November.  The assessment 
was primarily based on evidence requested by and submitted to Ofsted, 

Page 59



complemented by a one-day visit to speak in more detail with officers.  It is 
important to note that whereas the Joint Area Review inspection (published 
May 2008) looked at all services for children and young people across the city 
and how they work together, the APA looks specifically at services provided 
by the local authority (including Education Leeds).  The APA letters were 
published on 17th December 2008.  This year Leeds received the following 
scores: 

 
 Overall effectiveness of children’s services   2 

Being healthy       2 
Staying safe        2 
Enjoying and achieving      3 
Making a positive contribution     3 
Achieving economic well-being     2 
Capacity to improve, including the management of 
services for children and young people    2 

 
Inspectors make judgements based on the following scale 
4: outstanding/excellent; 3: good; 2: adequate; 1: inadequate 

 

4.2  A report on this year’s Annual Performance Assessment will be submitted to 
the Council’s Executive Board in January.  Following consideration of this 
report further information can be brought to Scrutiny Board members as 
requested. 

 
 
5.0 The National Context and the Impact In Leeds 
 
5.1  There has been significant national press and public attention focused on 

children’s services across the country in recent months.  This primarily reflects 
interest in and the implications of the Baby P case in Haringey. The Baby P 
case has highlighted some important and immediate questions about child 
protection practice for every local authority.  

 
5.2  The case has also had deeper implications in sharpening the focus on 

safeguarding as a shared responsibility of all those who work with children 
and young people, highlighting the importance of developing practice that 
enables different services to work across boundaries and build around the 
needs of individual children and families.    

 
5.3 Following the Baby P case, the Secretary of State for Children, Schools and 

Families has written to each local authority asking them to review their 
practice, particularly in light of the findings of the urgent Joint Area Review in 
Haringey, conducted in the wake of the Baby P case.  Leeds is conducting 
such a review and the local authority is working very closely with its partners 
involved in child protection to do so.   In addition, ensuring that effective 
arrangements are in place for leadership and accountability in children and 
young people’s social care, has also been a principal focus of the Director of 
Children’s Services both prior to and in the context of the publicity surrounding 
the Baby P case.  

Page 60



 
5.4 It is likely that the Baby P case will contribute to changing practice in the way 

that children’s services locally are monitored and assessed.  This sits 
alongside changes already proposed to the way local children’s trust 
arrangements, and responsibilities within these, operate – putting an even 
greater onus on different agencies working together.  The roles of different 
agencies and individuals in safeguarding work needs to be clearly understood 
by all and implemented consistently.  A stronger focus within inspections on 
safeguarding, will intensify the emphasis on different services locally being 
able to demonstrate how they work together around the needs of children and 
families with the most challenging, complex and often high-risk cases.  It will 
also raise the profile of training and support to ensure staff can feel confident 
in the assessments they make and the work they are doing with families.   

 
5.5 All of the above is reflected in positive work already taking place in Leeds 

(with initiatives like head teachers and social work managers shadowing each 
other’s roles, or moves towards a more integrated approach to delivering 
services at local level).  More details on this type of work can be provided for 
members on request.  A paper complementing this one, describing the work 
of the Local Safeguarding Children Board in Leeds has also been submitted 
to Scrutiny and gives a wider sense of the type of work going on across the 
city. 

 
 
6.0 CYP Plan Priority Focus:  Improving Outcomes for Looked After 

Children  
 
6.1  All LCC services and their partners undertake work that encompasses looked 

after children as part of their daily work.  That is especially true of Children & 
Young People’s Social Care, which is responsible for the day-to-day support 
of looked after children and their carers.  However, the purpose of the 
following information is not to detail all the work done every day by social 
workers, residential care workers and foster carers, but rather to concentrate 
on specific work being done in response to the priority that the current 
Children and Young People’s Plan has attached to looked after children.  As 
such it summarises the particular targeted approaches adopted under the 
auspices of the Multi-Agency Looked After Partnership (MALAP) and related 
agencies as well as some of the ‘next steps’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Multi-Agency looked After Partnership Executive (MALAP Exec.) 

 

Page 61



6.2  The MALAP Exec. brings together key strategic leaders from across Children 
Leeds and those leaders responsible for the operational leadership of 
services to looked after children.  Over the last year it has also provided 
‘governance’, challenge and support for the Leeds Extended School for 
Looked after Children (LEXS) which was set up in September 2007 with the 
secondment of Alun Rees, Headteacher of Boston Spa School, as its first 
Head.   

 
6.3  The Head of the Leeds Extended School for LAC is a member of the Children 

& Young People’s Social Care (CYPSC) Senior Leadership Team and also 
maintains close links to Education Leeds, the Director of Children’s Services 
Unit, and with colleague Headteachers.  In creating this role the local authority 
created a strong advocate for the educational priorities of looked after children 
who could make the case for improved services on behalf of individual 
children and young people and for them as a group.   

 
6.4  As Leeds’ first strategic post with a focus purely on looked after children the 

Headteacher provides a focus for cross-service support for looked after 
children as well as being an agent for change both in what support is offered 
and how it is offered.  That has included increasing leadership and 
management of the colleagues across Education Leeds and Children & 
Young people’s Social Care with day-to-day responsibilities for education 
support to these vulnerable children and young people. 

 
6.5  The MALAP Exec is now equipped to quality assure services to looked after

 children across Children’s Services and beyond. It has agreed the 
performance indicators relating to looked after children and delegated them to 
the most appropriate working group reporting to it.  Currently the working 
groups comprise:  

• The Leeds Extended School for Looked After Children (LEXS);  

• A health group made up of the looked after children’s nurses and their 
team leader;  

• The Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) group; and the 
post-16/Care Leaver group.   

 
6.6  It has also established good links to the Youth Offending Service (YOS), which 

has its own action plan relating to looked after children.  The YOS and the 
extended School collaborated on an Innovations grant to support looked after 
children at risk of offending onto very successful dance activities. 

 
6.7  The MALAP Exec. is discussing with the Integrating Services Group how a 

model for joint commissioning of services might ensure: 
- the welfare and safety of children and young people in their own families 

and communities is sufficiently strong that numbers entering care are 
minimised; 

- those who came into care have the best possible opportunity to move to 
adoption or be re-united with their families if that is what is most 
appropriate; 

- those who do remain in care receive services that allow them to progress 
and be successful on a par with their non-looked after peers. 

Page 62



 
6.8  Work with, and on behalf of, looked after children has covered all the Every 

Child Matters outcomes in 2007-2008 as well as preparatory work, overseen 
by the Head of LEXS in partnership with professor Nick Frost (Leeds Met 
University), for the implementation of Care Matters.  The first concrete 
outcome from this process will be the Leeds Pledge to Looked after Children, 
which has been widely consulted on with children and young people.  The 
initial draft will come to the Elected Members Corporate Carer group in the 
New Year. 

 
Enjoy & Achieve 

 
6.9  The Leeds Extended School for Looked after Children (LEXS) has gained 

Innovations Grant funding to offer approximately 200 looked after children 1-
to-1 tuition by a trained teacher.  The tuition takes the form of 12 x 1 hour 
sessions and takes place outside the school day.  This means children need 
not feel sensitive at being singled out in school.  Initially this intervention is 
being targeted at children with whom it is likely to have the greatest medium 
term impact: Year 10 & 11 students preparing for GCSE.  In the Spring the 
offer of support will be broadened to Year 9 and then to other Year groups.  
The first feedback from young people and carers is expected in the Spring. 

 
6.10  The second Innovations Grant won by the Extended School has focussed on 

looked after children in Year 9 who have either begun to disengage from 
learning during Year 8 or begun to disengage during Year 9.  The Extended 
School has deployed a dedicated Connexions Personal Advisor since 
September to work closely with a cohort of up to 30 young people across the 
city.  The aim is to identify the barriers that the young people perceive as 
reducing their commitment to education and then seeking to re-engage them 
with learning.  Initial anecdotal feedback suggests the young people feel they 
are getting personalised support, which is focussed on their needs.  While it is 
early to identify a wider impact, the attendance rates among the cohort have 
been good so far this term compared to the end of Year 8. 

 
6.11  The Extended School has also found funding to extend the contract of a 

dedicated Looked After Children Attendance Improvement Officer (AIOs) 
funded last year by the Attendance Service from a grant.  She has worked 
with school based AIOs to increase their understanding of looked after 
children and the issues that can impact their attendance as well as with 
schools to improve attendance practice relating to looked after children.  
Relationships with residential homes in particular have benefited from this 
approach and schools speak highly of her capacity to help get children into 
school.  She has also been able to embed the protocol agreed between 
Children and Young People’s Social Care and Schools which means that 
carers and social workers are now getting letters of either congratulation or 
concern about attendance termly.  This term she will extend her work to 
ensure that information on looked after children is shared more quickly 
between Social Care and Schools and support the work of the Extended 
School team in building relationships with designated teachers in schools. 

 

Page 63



6.12  Education Leeds’ Performance Management and Information Team now 
provide the Extended School with the same analysis service of outcomes 
available to mainstream schools as well as more specific analysis and 
research.  They are sponsoring a research project aimed at identifying the key 
barriers looked after children themselves, particularly those in residential care, 
perceive in their engagement with learning.  This research will inform the 
continuing response to the JAR priority relating to bringing down fixed term 
exclusions for looked after children. 

 
6.13  There is also now a clear route through the Extended School for the 

dissemination of performance information for looked after children to partners 
in Education Leeds School Improvement Service and Integrated Children’s 
Service teams; CYSPC Social Workers and Residential Worker teams; and 
the Elected Member Corporate Carer group. 

 
6.14  In addressing the JAR priority to reduce fixed term exclusion among looked 

after children, the Extended School has offered advice and guidance to carers 
and residential workers so they are better equipped to work with a school to 
avoid exclusion and respond more robustly in ruling out ‘unofficial’ exclusion or 
‘cooling off time’ out of school.  In partnership with the Pupil Planning Team, 
advice has been offered to schools where there was evidence of this approach 
being followed and school exclusion procedures relating to looked after 
children have improved as a result.  That has had the predictable effect of 
increasing the number of exclusions logged by one or two schools but that is 
against a background that saw total numbers of exclusions of looked after 
children from mainstream schools decline in the first months of this academic 
year compared to the same time last year. 

 
6.15  However, the Extended School has also worked closely with the Integrated 

Support and Psychology Service (ISPS) within Education Leeds to ensure 
looked after children at risk of exclusion are more likely to come to the 
attention of a school’s educational psychologist.  ISPS has also allocated the 
time of an experienced educational psychologist as a link between the Head of 
the Extended School and the service.  This has decreased the risk of delays in 
seeing looked after children and will have an impact on the quality of their 
learning. 

 
6.16  ISPS has also collaborated with the Extended School to provide best practice 

advice to schools in relation to looked after children and that is being 
disseminated not just to schools but also within CYPSC and to governors.  
The two teams will next explore the provision of advice to classroom based 
staff on how to make the learning of looked after children even more inclusive. 

 
6.17  The Head of the Extended School has worked with the members of the 

Education Protects Team and the Fostering and Adoption Service to change 
their way of working from a more centrally based advice and guidance service 
to a more pro-active service.  From January officers will be going out to meet 
designated teachers for looked after children, initially in secondary schools, 
and discussing the individual attendance, progress and needs of looked after 
children at the school.  They will then be able to allocate the 1-to-1 tuition, 

Page 64



Connexions or attendance support described above to where they are likely to 
have most impact. They will also be able to put together a clear agenda of 
professional development for those designated teachers.  Discussions are 
ongoing as to how this team of committed professionals can be firmly placed 
within the Extended School.  

 
6.18  ‘Stepping Stones’ continues to offer looked after children enormous support in 

developing their aspirations and capacity to achieve success.  Under the 
AimHigher banner Stepping Stones continues to channel large numbers of 
young people into further and higher education and maintains very close and 
effective links to the Leeds HEIs.  Stepping Stones delivers through a variety 
of mentoring and study support interventions as well as activities aimed at 
encouraging looked after children and their carers to learn together and build 
self-esteem. 

 
6.19  The Early Year’s Service have been proactive in seeking links with the Leeds 

Extended School and have embedded the concept of the ‘virtual children’s 
centre’ in their service planning.  The intention is to ensure that looked after 
children have priority access to an early years place and that this is the default 
provision for all looked after children.  They are also keen to work closely with 
foster carers to provide appropriate support and guidance. 

 
Be Healthy 

 
6.20  The PCT has commissioned additional support for looked after children 

including additional specialist dental health support to meet the needs of the 
cohort for regular dental checks.  Additionally it has commissioned 3 WTE 
(whole time equivalent) looked after children’s nurses (for appointment in 
December) and increased existing nurse time to 1.4 WTE. Additionally, over 
the last year, the Designated Nurse time for looked after children has 
increased from 0.5 to 1.0 WTE.  This expanded capacity includes the 
mainstreaming of the sexual health nurse post working with looked after 
children which has been piloted over the last year and become highly 
regarded both by young people and other professionals. 

 
Achieve Economic Well-being 

 
6.21  The MALAP Post-16/Care Leaver working group has taken on responsibility 

for the second key JAR priority relating to looked after children: their 
progression to education, training or employment.  They have adopted the 
relevant sections of the JAR Action Plan into the group’s work plan and in 
pursuit of reducing the numbers of looked after children at risk of becoming 
NEET they have improved the exchange of information between Social Care, 
igen/Connexions Service and Education Leeds.  This means they can begin to 
identify more effective means of tracking an ever-changing cohort from Year 
11 to 19+.  The group has also begun to identify young people most at risk of 
becoming NEET earlier so that more pro-active support can be offered (see 
IYSS/ Targeted Youth Support, below).  Now that the group is monitoring the 
NEET status of care leavers so regularly, patterns and trends can trigger 
intervention as soon as they appear rather than retrospectively. 

Page 65



 
6.22  The group has agreed a protocol to ensure that there is a designated tutor in 

each Leeds College and that those tutors know who the looked after children 
attending the college are and has Social Care contacts to ensure the rapid 
notification of successes or causes of concern. 

 
6.23  Efforts have also been made to broaden the membership of the group beyond 

Children’s Services to include other services vital to care leavers, such as 
Housing.  The group will cooperate with the Extended School in making the 
case for priority access for looked after children and care leavers to work 
placements or apprenticeships within LCC services. 

 
Stay Safe 

 
6.24  The effective response to the recent inspection of the fostering service has 

increased the pace of change in support for foster carers and those they care 
for.  In parallel the thorough review of residential care provision is creating the 
capacity for more individual and personalised care for young people. 

 
6.25  OfSTED inspections of CYPSC Residential Children’s Homes have shown a 

significant increase in standards over recent months including improvement to 
Good and Outstanding. 

 
6.26  The Payment for Skills strategy – which rewards foster carers for the particular 

level of skill and experience that they offer - is now being implemented and will 
provide structured support for the ‘professionalisation’ of the foster care 
workforce and provide the necessary scaffolding for the implementation of 
Care Matters. 

 
Make a Positive Contribution 

 
6.27  As well as IYSS’ partnership with the Extended School’s Innovations bid for 

Year 9 Connexions support (above), every residential children’s home now 
has a Youth Service contact, ensuring they are kept up-to-date with locally 
organised activities.  IYSS is also taking direct referrals from social workers 
where the Positive Activities for Young People (PAYP) programme might be 
appropriate.  

 
6.28  Breeze Cards are well used by looked after children and work under the ‘Find 

Your Talent’ banner should increase usage further.  LCC is an important 
partner in the regional network that supports the MaxCard for looked after 
people across Leeds, Calderdale, Wakefield, North Yorkshire, Rotherham, 
Bradford, Kirklees, York, Doncaster, Barnsley, Hull, East Riding, North 
Lincolnshire and Sheffield.  The MaxCard gives looked after children, their 
carers and other family members free entry to more than 90 museums and 
galleries across the participating authorities.  

 
6.29  Targeted Youth Support are working with Children & Young People’s Social 

Care to identify young people currently in Year 11 who may be at greatest risk 
of becoming NEET in the Autumn of 2009.  The cohort identified will be 

Page 66



individually supported with personalised support from the end of Year 11 
through to the Autumn in a concerted effort to increase the likelihood of them 
moving into education, training or employment. 

 
Support for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC) 

 
6.30  The UASC work group is the most recent to be incorporated within the MALAP 

structure but it has made significant strides in the provision of services to this 
particularly vulnerable group of looked after children and young people.  The 
UASC cohort also provide an impressive case study of how services working 
together can create an effective framework of multi-agency support, 
coordinated by Children And Young People’s Social Care, around a 
particularly vulnerable group of young people. 

 
Support from Children & Young People’s Social Care (CYPSC) 

 
6.31  As well as being the core service supporting this cohort of vulnerable young 

people day in day out the service is developing an information file for UASCs 
to be accessible in every placement.  It will consist of useful information about 
living in Leeds and list services and activities available to UASCs in the city.  
Some of the information in these files will be available in the language spoken 
by the client. 

 
6.32  CYPSC has also established links to Hyde Park Source through which UASCs 

have been able to access volunteering activities.  They have also brokered 
free access to the Leeds Film Festival and to Party in the Park. 

 
Sexual Health support 

 
6.33 This is a rolling programme and consists of single language groups of 10 

young people; the sessions facilitated by professionals from CART, 
Barnardos, Yorkshire MESMAC and LAC Nurses Team. The first group 
started on the 17th November.  Sessions are held at The Archway Project.  
Funding has been secured from the Risk Project to pay for room hire at 
Archway and Food from a local restaurant after each session.  There is also 
funding available for an activity at the end of the course.  The next course is 
due to start in March ’09. 

 
Support from Libraries Service 

 
6.34  Young people have been producing a monthly newsletter since July ’08.  They 

meet at Chapletown Library every Thursday to write stories and design the 
layout of the newsletter. The sessions are facilitated by staff from Leeds 
Libraries and Information Services. This is an ongoing programme and will be 
further developed to incorporate a newsletter website.  Whilst there, young 
people are encouraged to join the library and set up an email account.  They 
are also informed about other services available to them.  A camera has been 
bought from PAYP funding for the Newsletter. 

 

Page 67



6.35  Young people have also taken part in two bike clubs this year.  The clubs are 
run in partnership with the Leeds Libraries Service, The Leeds Road Safety 
Team, Out of School activities Team and the Police. Young people learn about 
road safety and how to plan routes to get to various places around Leeds.  
Young people receive a free bike, helmet and bike lock at the end of the 
course.  The next bike club will be in February ’09. 

 
IYSS Support 

 
6.36 Gym Sessions at the DOJO gym in Chapletown have been funded from 

PAYP.  Young people can attend the gym at any time.  Two female members 
of staff from children & young people’s social care facilitate a girls group at the 
gym on a Monday and Wednesday. These sessions are currently funded till 
April ’09. 

 
6.37  Young people attend football training sessions at Thomas Danby College 

facilitated by the Archway Project.  Unaccompanied asylum seekers formed a 
team and entered a football tournament in July ‘08.  They also entered a 
football tournament in Bradford through the Children & Young People’s Social 
Care Pathway Planning Team.   Plans are now being developed to enter one 
of the Leagues in Leeds, this will be done in conjunction with the Pathway 
Planning Team. 

 
6.38  When available free Leeds United tickets are given to young people to attend 

matches at Elland Road.  
 
6.39 A youth club aimed specifically at Unaccompanied Asylum Seekers takes 

place at the Archway Project every Thursday. PAYP Funding through the Out 
Of School Activities Team has been used to book facilitators to run art 
workshops, photography workshops, Kite making sessions and team building 
exercises. This funding has also provided board games for the youth club.  
Connexions PA’s are also at hand to provide various information to the young 
people and have facilitated cooking sessions for young people.  John Holmes 
from the youth service also attends the sessions to facilitate activities. 

 
 
7.0 Conclusions 
 
7.1 This report has provided an update on a number of key developments in 

children’s services in Leeds.  It has also focused particular attention on a key 
priority area – improving outcomes for looked after children.  Taken together 
with the reports on quarter two performance and safeguarding presented to 
the board and the other update reports produced over the year, this report 
helps to give members an overview of the range of work to address priorities 
across the city.  The report reflects progress made, but also the challenges 
remaining and the opportunities to continue addressing these through learning 
from recent activities and the 2009 review of the Children and Young People’s 
Plan. 

 
 

Page 68



8.0  Recommendations 
 
8.1  It is recommended that members note and comment on the content of this 

report and identify any areas where further information would be helpful. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Report to Children’s Services Scrutiny Board : 13.09.07 – Children’s Services 
and the Children and Young People’s Plan 

 
Report to Children’s Services Scrutiny Board 08.11.08: – Children’s Services 
and the Children and Young People’s Plan (2nd Update) 
 
Report to Children’s Services Scrutiny Board : 14.02.08 – Children’s Services 
and the Children and Young People’s Plan (3rd Update) 
 
Report to Children’s Services Scrutiny Board: 16.10.08 – Children’s Services and the  
Children and Young People’s Plan    
 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement 
 
Children’s Services Scrutiny Board 
 
Date: 8th January 2009 
 
Subject: Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008/09 
 

        
 

 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the revised approach to performance reporting 
and accountability arrangements for the Leeds Strategic and Council Business Plans and to provide 
a performance report by exception (ie red and amber) on the progress against improvement priorities 
relevant to the Board at Quarter 2 2008/09.  
 
It outlines how the development of the partnership approach to the Leeds Strategic Plan and the  
changes that will result from the implementation of the comprehensive area assessment have 
required us to review and revise our council performance management framework and associated 
reporting processes.  As a result, this has seen a significant change, in particular, the identification of 
lead and contributory officers for each improvement priority and the introduction of a reporting 
process that will provide a single source of performance information to be used by the full range of 
different stakeholders in the accountability process. 
 
An overview of current performance information at the mid-year point is provided although this needs 
to be interpreted with some caution given the newness of the reporting process.  A more robust and 
comprehensive position of performance progress against the Leeds Strategic and Council Business 
Plans should be available at the end of year one of implementation.  In addition, there is a need to 
ensure that year end data is reported by partners and the council in a full and timely fashion so that 
any necessary remedial action can be expedited promptly.  

Specific Implications For:  
 

Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

Originators:  Marilyn Summers 
 

 
Tel:  39 50786  

 

 

 
 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report) 
  

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 71



1.0 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 This report provides a strategic overview of performance against those improvement priorities 
within the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008-11, and specifically in relation to Children’s Services 
priorities.  In particular the Action Tracker Summary Sheet (appendix 1) provides an overall 
assessment of progress against each of the improvement priorities relevant to the Board; a 
rating of Red, Amber or Green is applied to indicate the status of each improvement priority. 

1.2 In appendix 2 to this report the Action Trackers are provided on an exception basis for those 
areas of under performance and/or of concern in relation to the improvement priorities for 
Children’s Services, within the Leeds Strategic Plan, as at 30th September 2008.  In addition, 
performance indicator information is provided for those indicators from the 198 National 
Indicator Set which are not included within the Action Trackers provided together with any 
locally agreed indicators where appropriate.  Through this the Board will continue to receive 
the full set of performance information. 

2.0 Background Information 

2.1 Executive Board approved a new corporate planning framework for the council in July 2007.  
The strategic element of this framework includes two high level plans which set the policy 
objectives for the organisation and our partnership working.  These are: 

ØØØØ Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out the customer/citizen (external) 
focused strategic outcomes being sought by the council and its partners for the city.  
This plan includes our requirements to produce a Local Area Agreement and is the 
main delivery mechanism for the Vision for Leeds 2004 to 2020. 

ØØØØ Council Business Plan 2008 to 2011 - which sets out what the council needs to do 
internally to enable the organisation to achieve the Leeds Strategic Plan.  That is 
outlining the business development, organisational change, process transformation 
and financial planning activities that we will be undertaking over the next three years.   

2.2 Both these plans include a set of outcomes, improvement priorities and aligned performance 
indicators with three year targets.  Through our performance reporting and accountability 
arrangements we need to track our progress against the improvement priorities as well as 
against the indicators to provide both a qualitative and quantitative picture of performance.  
This is because the scope of most of the improvement priorities is wider than that of the 
performance indicator and without some form of contextual reporting we would not be able to 
capture or monitor this progress. 

3.0 Main Issues 

3.1 Comprehensive Area Assessment 
 

A key aspect of a robust performance management framework is to highlight an 
organisation’s self-awareness.  This will be a fundamental part of the CAA process where 
councils will be expected to carry out an annual self evaluation that will be crucial in 
determining the overall CAA judgement of the area and the organisation, having particular 
importance in relation to the Managing Performance KLOE. 

 
The joint inspectorates’ proposal for consultation, issued in summer 2008, notes that: 

 
“Councils and their partners, and their representative bodies, are developing approaches to 
self-evaluation.  While we are not making it a requirement of CAA, we do expect that each 
area will wish to complete an annual self-evaluation and we will take full account of it and any 
service level self-evaluation.  We do not intend to repeat the work carried out already by the 
council or its partners.  We will expect that any self-evaluation is based on verifiable 
evidence.  The more robust the self-evaluation the more reliance we will be able to place on 
it.   
 

Page 72



CAA will draw as far as possible on the information used by the council and its 
partners to manage performance and deliver improvements set out in the Local Area 
Agreement and Sustainable Community Strategies.  This approach will minimise the 
administrative burden imposed by CAA and will make optimum use of self-evaluation.” 

 
The self evaluation will enable the partnership to work through and be able to demonstrate 
that it is sufficiently self-aware of key issues and that there are effective plans in place to 
address any concerns.  It will demonstrate that the partnership is aware of where there are 
gaps in performance that need to be addressed or where more focused attention is needed to 
ensure that the partnership will deliver its outcomes.   It will also highlight where action plans 
are in place to address these issues.  This is important in ensuring self awareness and 
preparedness to really deliver on improvements.   

 
As such, it is important that timely, appropriate and accountable performance information is 
available to the relevant audiences so that problems in relation to performance and/or data 
quality are flagged, the focus of improvement activity can be challenged and that appropriate 
action is being taken and reported to address areas of under performance. 

  
Within the council Lead Chief Officers have the key role in making this happen through co-
ordinating the activities of contributors and providing an overview of the progress against the 
improvement priority for which they are accountable. This overview position is described in 
the Action Trackers previously approved by CLT and agreed by Lead Officers, and updated at 
Qtr 2 and Qtr 4 of the performance reporting and accountability process. The Action Trackers 
at Qtr 2 & Qtr 4, therefore, provide a single source of performance information for the full 
range of different stakeholders in the accountability process. 

  
3.2 Role of Scrutiny Board 
 
 A key performance management role of Elected Members is to ensure that delivery of our 

strategic outcomes and improvement priorities within both the Leeds Strategic Plan and 
Council Business Plan is on track.  Members need to be made aware of any issues and areas 
of under performance, and be assured that actions are being taken to improve performance, 
that the appropriate level of resources are available and that problems or blockages to 
delivery are identified and addressed.  However, it is recognised that the volume of 
information within the Action Trackers produced for each six months could hinder Scrutiny 
Boards in carrying out their role in the accountability process. Therefore the approach from 
Quarter 2 is to provide the Action Trackers by exception, highlighting just those areas that are 
under performing or causing concern ie those traffic lighted amber or red.  This is 
supplemented by a performance indicator report that includes all of the performance 
indicators relevant to the Board - except for those that already appear within the action 
trackers themselves.   

 The Scrutiny Board role is to challenge the council’s performance to raise standards acting as 
a balance to the Executive Board by examining and questioning the range of actions, 
activities and decisions, and also considering and challenging the work of partnership bodies 
contributing to the delivery of improvement priorities.  

3.3 Information Provided 
 

Therefore within this report the following information is provided: 

Appendix 1 Action Tracker Summary Sheet - this sheet sets out all the improvement 
priorities relevant to the Board and shows the full set of overall progress traffic lights. 

Appendix 2 Action Trackers – this appendix includes the action trackers for the 
improvement priorities that have been given an amber or red rating for overall progress.  
There is a guidance sheet to assist members in interpreting the information provided. 

 

Page 73



Appendix 3 Performance Indicator Report – this appendix lists the Q2 performance 
indicator results for the indicators taken from the green action trackers, along with those from 
the rest of the 198 national indicator set and any locally agreed indicators for which quarterly 
results are available.   

4.0 Implications for Council Policy and Governance 

4.1 Effective performance management enables senior officers and Elected Members to be 
assured that the council is making adequate progress and provides a mechanism for them to 
challenge performance where appropriate.  Effective performance management also forms a 
key element of the organisational assessment proposed under the new Comprehensive Area 
Assessment.  The CAA will examine and challenge the robustness and effectiveness of both 
our corporate performance management arrangements and those across the partnership. 

5.0 Legal and Resource Implications 

5.1 The implementation of these new performance reporting arrangements is achievable within 
current resources across the organisations as they essentially replace an existing similar 
process. 

6.0 Conclusions 

6.1 The development of the partnership approach of the Leeds Strategic Plan, the introduction of 
a Council Business Plan and the changes resulting from CAA have required us to review and 
revise our council performance management framework and associated reporting processes.  
As a result, this has seen a significant change in identifying lead and contributory officers and 
partners with accountable roles for each improvement priority within the Leeds Strategic Plan 
and Council Business Plan as appropriate.  There is a need to fully complete this framework 
and strengthen a culture of accountability within the council and with partner organisations 
through our scrutiny arrangements. 

6.2 At Qtr 2 each Lead Chief Officer/partner has completed an Action Tracker against each of the 
improvement priorities, which has significantly increased the amount of performance 
information produced.  As such, in order for Elected Members to fulfil their role effectively 
through the scrutiny process, these action trackers are reported by exception; highlighting just 
those areas that are under performing or causing concern.  This is supplemented by a 
complete set of performance indicator information to enable members to maintain an 
overview of performance.  

6.3 As the lead partner for the Local Area Agreement and Leeds Strategic Plan, it is 
fundamentally important that the council can demonstrate to partners, Government Office and 
through CAA that its has an integrated, robust performance management framework that is fit 
for purpose.   

7.0 Recommendation 

7.1 That members of Scrutiny Board note the content of the report and comment on any particular 
performance issues of concern. 

 

Background papers 

None 

Page 74



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
r 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le

D
ir

e
c
to

r
T

P
-2

b
R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

 N
e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

L
N

-1
b

Im
p
ro

v
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
6
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
g
a
p
.

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

T
P

-2
e

R
e
d
u
c
e
 b

u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t

 N
e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

L
N

-1
c

Im
p
ro

v
e
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

 l
e
v
e
ls

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
.

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

T
P

-3
b

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 N

e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

L
N

-1
d

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

T
P

-3
c

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
u
s
in

g
 s

it
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
, 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 N

e
il 

E
v
a
n

s
L
N

-1
e

Im
p
ro

v
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl
y
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 d

e
p
ri
v
e
d
 a

re
a
s
.

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le

D
ir

e
c
to

r

C
o

d
e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

A
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le

D
ir

e
c
to

r

H
M

-1
a

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 N
e
il 

E
v
a
n
s

H
W

-1
c

R
e
d
u
c
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll.

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-2
a

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
e
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-2
b

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
, 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e
 /

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

H
W

-3
a

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
ic

a
l,
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 n

e
e
d
 i
t.

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e

H
W

-3
d

Im
p
ro

v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 b

e
tt
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
re

c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 r

is
k

S
a
n
d
ie

 K
e
e
n
e
 /

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

L
e

e
d

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

la
n

L
e
a
rn

in
g

T
h

ri
v
in

g
 P

la
c
e
s

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll
 B

e
in

g

H
a
rm

o
n

io
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Action Tracker Guidance 

Introduction 

 

The ‘Action Trackers’ are prepared on a half yearly basis and are intended to give an organisational ‘snapshot’ view 

of the progress against the city’s top level priorities as set out in the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan.  

They provide a broader range of information and progress than is provided in the performance indicator results alone.  

Each improvement priority within the Leeds Strategic Plan and Council Business Plan has been allocated to a Lead 

Officer whose role is to provide leadership, co-ordinate the activities of contributing officers/partners and evaluate 

the performance information to ensure the delivery of the improvement priority.  An action tracker has been 

completed for every improvement priority by the Lead Officer who has provided an overall evaluation of progress to 

date.  Please see below a brief summary of the information that has been provided in each of the sections of the 

action tracker template. 

 

 

Overall Progress Rating The Lead Officer provides an overall traffic light rating on the progress to date based on all 

the information provided in the completed action tracker including the results for the aligned 

performance indicators.  The criteria for this traffic light is as follows: 

 

Green = Progressing as expected  

Amber = Minor delays or issues to address  

Red = Significant delays or issues to address  

 

Overall assessment of 

progress 
In this section the Lead Officer provides an overall summary analysis of the progress to date - 

taking a view based on all the information provided in the completed action tracker including 

the results for the aligned performance indicators.  This section should provide an 

explanation for the overall traffic light rating. 

Contributory 

Officers/partners 

This part of the action tracker sets out who else is contributing to the delivery of the 

improvement priority and where relevant these officers/partners also appear in the main body 

against specific actions/activities. 

Performance Indicator 

Information 
In this section the results for the aligned performance indicators for this improvement priority 

are presented including the target and are traffic lighted both the result itself and for data 

quality.  Brief commentary is also provided to highlight any issues or important information 

relating to the indicator.   

NB this only shows the indicators which are directly aligned but additional performance 

information is presented in appendix 2. 

Improvement priority 

progress to date 

Risk / Challenges 

Key actions 

Contributory officer 

Timescale 

Other information 

This is the main body of the action tracker and sets out the key actions/activities which are 

underway and contribute to the delivery of the overall improvement priority.  For each 

action/activity a set of information is provided that includes any risks or challenges to delivery, 

the key actions which are due to take place over the next 6 months, who the contributory 

officer/partner is and highlights where any other more detailed information can be found.  

This section could not possibly include all activities and Lead Officers have been asked to 

provide a strategic overview through including the main activities only and signposting further 

sources of information where relevant. 

 

 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9

H
a
rm

o
n

io
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

H
M

-1
a

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

A
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 e
n

g
a
g

e
d

 i
n

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 

o
f 

li
fe

 f
o

r 
lo

c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
S

te
p

h
e
n

 B
o

y
le

L
e
e
d

s
 C

 C
A

m
b

e
r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s
 

T
h

e
 V

C
F

S
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 G

ro
u

p
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
e

e
d

s
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

 N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 G
a

p
 B

o
a

rd
. 

It
 i
s
 a

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

re
 a

 c
o

n
s
e

n
s
u

s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 p
o

lic
ie

s
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 t

h
e

 V
C

F
S

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
. 

It
 i
s
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 S

a
n

d
ie

 K
e

e
n

e
, 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
A

d
u

lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 d

ra
w

n
 f

ro
m

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

N
H

S
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 V

C
F

S
. 

It
 h

a
s
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 N

I 
6

, 
N

I7
 a

n
d

 N
I4

. 
  

A
 t

a
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
to

 t
a

k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 A

c
ti
v
e

 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

N
I 

6
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
m

in
g

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 a

re
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

ir
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

Q
3

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 W

e
ll 

B
e

in
g

 F
u

n
d

s
.

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

Y
e

a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

1
1

0
: 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

's
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 w

h
e

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
.

N
/A

D
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
8

N
o

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

6
: 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
T

a
s
k
 G

ro
u

p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 V
C

F
S

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
u

tl
in

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.

N
/A

D
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 

J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

0
9

A
s
 p

e
r 

P
la

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 o
n

 N
I6

R
is

k
 /

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
K

e
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

ri
v
e

n
 t

ro
u

g
h

 t
w

o
 c

o
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 

A
t 

a
 

C
it
y
 w

id
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
th

e
 V

C
F

S
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 G

ro
u

p
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
 l
e

a
d

 o
n

 

V
C

F
S

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 a

n
  

A
c
ti
v
e

 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
h

ip
 f

o
c
u

s
. 

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
 l
e

a
d

 

ro
le

 a
t 

A
re

a
 l
e

v
e

l 
in

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 A

re
a

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 P

la
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s

T
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 o
f 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 I

P
 i
s
 g

re
a

t.
 I

n
it
ia

l 

M
a

p
p

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
v
e

 r
a

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 

lim
it
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

h
a

p
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

T
h

e
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

n
 V

C
F

S
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
w

id
e

s
p

re
a

d
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 N

R
F

.

M
a

p
 /

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 g
a

p
s
 i
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
A

g
re

e
 w

o
rk

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
c
u

s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 i
m

p
a

c
t

A
M

s
/S

W
Q

2
 2

0
0

9
/1

0

T
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 b

o
th

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

 b
a

s
e

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
n

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

in
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 a

s
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 d

ir
e

c
to

ry
 o

f 
c
iv

ic
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

S
W

Q
2

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 a
 k

e
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

. 
Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 

e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

.

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs

A
M

s
/S

W
O

n
g

o
in

g

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 a
s
s
e

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

A
M

s
/S

W
O

n
g

o
in

g

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

C
o

d
e

s
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g

S
W

Q
4

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
r'
s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

o
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

S
W

Q
4

In
it
ia

te
 o

n
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 e

a
c
h

 

w
e

d
g

e
, 

fo
c
u

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 A

D
P

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 

A
M

s
/S

W
Q

1
 2

0
0

9
/1

0

Page 79



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 T

ra
c
k
e
rs

 Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 2

0
0
8
-0

9

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

M
a

rt
in

 F
a

rr
in

g
to

n
C

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

M
u

s
e

u
m

s
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
 A

rc
h

iv
e

s
 Y

o
rk

s
h

ir
e

J
a

s
o

n
 D

o
h

e
rt

y

C
a

th
e

ri
n

e
 B

la
n

s
h

a
rd

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

V
C

F
S

A
n

n
 P

e
m

b
e

rt
o

n
/J

e
a

n
e

tt
e

 M
o

rr
is

 B
o

a
m

A
n

d
re

w
 M

a
s
o

n
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
&

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il

P
e

te
 M

a
s
s
e

y

P
a

u
l 
L

a
n

g
fo

rd
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
&

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
im

o
n

 W
h

it
e

h
e

a
d

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
&

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

J
o

h
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

J
u

lie
 H

a
n

n
a

n

C
h

ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s

Page 80



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
H

W
 -

 1
c

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

R
e

d
u

c
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s

e
 i

n
 o

b
e

s
it

y
 a

n
d

 r
a

is
e

 p
h

y
s

ic
a

l 
a

c
ti

v
it

y
 f

o
r 

a
ll

.
J

o
h

n
 E

n
g

la
n

d
L

e
e

d
s

 C
 C

A
m

b
e
r

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

la
te

d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
o
re

 w
o
rk

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
y
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
t 
c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
It
 i
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
t 
g
re

a
te

s
t 
ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
t 
th

e
m

 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
M

o
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 w

o
rk

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o

 e
x
te

n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

. 
T

h
e
 L

o
tt
e
ry

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c

o
u
n
te

r-
b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
N

R
F

 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

P
I 
R

e
f

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
5
7

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
d

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 h

ig
h
-

q
u
a
lit

y
 P

E
 a

n
d
 s

p
o
rt

8
5
%

 (
2
0
0
8
) 

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 s

p
e
n
d
 2

 h
o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
 o

n
 h

ig
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

P
E

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
in

 a
n
d
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

ic
u
lu

m
 (

M
o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 

Y
o
u
th

 S
p
o
rt

 T
ru

s
t)

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

 

re
tu

rn
 -

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 w

ill
 

b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
9

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

N
I 
8

A
d
u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

2
0
.5

%
 (

0
5
/0

6
) 

(A
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 S
u
rv

e
y
) 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
%

 o
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 b

y
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 
b
y
 2

0
2
0
 7

0
%

 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
3
0
 m

in
u
te

s
 

o
f 
m

o
d
e
ra

te
 i
n
te

n
s
it
y
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f
iv

e
 t
im

e
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
 w

e
e
k
 a

n
d
 5

0
%

 o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 

b
y
 2

0
1
1
.

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

s

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

K
e
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e
r

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

L
e
e
d

s
 F

o
o

d
 M

a
tt

e
rs

: 
T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 a

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 f
o
o
d
 i
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 A

S
C

, 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
c
to

r 

e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

, 
th

e
 r

e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 a

g
ri
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
s
e
c
to

rs
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
c
to

r.
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

iv
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
o
r 

n
u
tr

it
io

n
. 
  
F

o
o
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 o
rg

a
n
is

e
 c

o
o
k
e
ry

 c
la

s
s
e
s
. 
O

th
e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
B

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
C

lu
b
s
, 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
M

e
a
ls

, 
5
 A

 d
a
y
, 

C
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 O

b
e
s
it
y
. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 d

ir
e
c
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
A

S
C

 a
re

 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
M

in
im

u
m

 C
a
re

 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

c
a
te

ri
n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
in

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 e
ff
o
rt

s
 a

re
 

n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 g

o
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

L
o
w

 I
n
c
o
m

e

P
o
o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

h
o
p
s
.

S
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 f
a
c
to

rs

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
o
k
in

g
 s

k
ill

s

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fo

o
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

u
n
d
e
rp

in
s
 t
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
, 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

, 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 f
o
o
d
 f
o
r 

a
ll.

E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

ll 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

n
u
tr

it
io

u
s
, 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 f
o
o
d
.

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 L

iv
in

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 w
o
rk

 m
o
re

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h
 h

ig
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
o
o
r 

n
u
tr

it
io

n
.

F
o
o
d
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 o
rg

a
n
is

e
 c

o
o
k
e
ry

 c
la

s
s
e
s
. 

M
ik

e
 S

im
p
k
in

  
H

e
le

n
 

F
re

e
m

a
n

O
n
g
o
in

g
T

a
rg

e
ts

 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 l
in

k
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 L

S
P

. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

R
a
is

in
g

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

a
ll
 a

g
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
b

il
it

y
 

g
ro

u
p

s
:

A
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 o
f 
'A

c
ti
v
e
 L

iv
in

g
' a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 w
a
lk

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
'p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
' 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 

'A
c
ti
v
e
 L

iv
in

g
'. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

a
ll 

s
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
.

R
e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 C

u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e

R
e
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

U
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

A
 c

u
lt
u
re

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 'A

c
ti
v
e
 L

iv
in

g
'.

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
N

R
F

 f
u
n
d
in

g

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
 "

A
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 C

it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
" 

 t
o
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

  
th

a
t 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 i
n
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
.

T
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
o
b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

a
ll.

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
a
c
ti
v
e
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
  
th

o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 a

c
ti
v
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 

a
n
d
/o

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e
v
e
ls

.

M
a
rk

 A
llm

a
n

O
n
g
o
in

g
A

 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C

it
y
  
: 
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 2

0
0
8
 t
o
 2

0
1
2

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 a

n
d

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 f

o
o

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 :D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s

- 
T

h
e
 B

re
a
k
fa

s
t 
C

lu
b
 N

e
tw

o
rk

-T
h
e
 F

iv
e
-a

-D
a
y
 S

c
h
e
m

e

- 
T

h
e
 B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 C

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 a
n
d

- 
L
o
c
a
l 
F

o
o
d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

a
fé

s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
tm

e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s

A
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
C

h
e
a
p
e
r 

"J
u
n
k
 F

o
o
d
".

L
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
.

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
ll 

a
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

L
e
e
d
s
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 f
o
o
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

a
fe

, 
h
e
a
lt
h
y
, 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 

fo
o
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 l
o
c
a
lly

 w
h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 f
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 f
a
rm

in
g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y

M
ik

e
 S

im
p
k
in

 /
  
H

e
le

n
 

F
re

e
m

a
n

O
n
g
o
in

g
L
e
e
d
s
 F

o
o
d
 M

a
tt
e
rs

 :
 A

 F
o
o
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 2

0
0
6
-2

0
1
0
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
, 
A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

, 
S

a
fe

 a
n
d
 

S
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 F
o
o
d
 f
o
r 

A
ll.

Page 81



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

K
e
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e
r

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

H
e
a
lt

h
y
 C

it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 is

 b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 u

m
b
re

lla
 f
o
r 

a
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
k
e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 a

t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

le
v
e
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 C

h
o
o
s
in

g
 H

e
a
lt
h
, 
C

h
o
o
s
in

g
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
, 
G

a
m

e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 O

ld
e
r 

th
e
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
.

C
u
lt
u
re

 s
h
if
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
.

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 a

s
 s

p
o
rt

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 C

it
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

a
ll,

 a
n
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 

c
a
rd

io
v
a
s
c
u
la

r 
fi
tn

e
s
s
, 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

a
te

 o
f 

o
b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 a

n
x
ie

ty
, 
d
e
p
re

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
s
s
 

re
la

te
d
 i
lln

e
s
s
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 C

lu
b
 

L
in

k
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

im
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 
w

it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
o
b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
1
.

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 G

a
m

e
 P

la
n
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
le

a
v
e
rs

, 
w

o
m

e
n
, 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 m

o
s
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 

d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

re
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 t
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

in
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

Ia
n
 C

a
m

e
ro

n
O

n
g
o
in

g
A

 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 C

it
y
 :
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

L
e
e
d
s
 2

0
0
8
 t
o
 2

0
1
2

C
a
n

't
 W

a
it

 t
o

 b
e
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
: 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 

O
b
e
s
it
y
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 W

e
ig

h
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

la
y
s
 a

 p
iv

o
ta

l 

ro
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

w
e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

P
a
re

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 w
a
ry

 o
f 
le

tt
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 g

o
 o

u
t 
a
lo

n
e

L
o
n
g
e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

e
e
k
e
n
d
s

L
e
s
s
 f
a
m

ily
 t
im

e
.

P
u
b
lic

ly
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

p
o
rt

s
 f
ie

ld
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
a
c
e

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
b
a
s
e
d
 g

a
m

e
s

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 L
e
e
d
s
 

C
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 W

e
ig

h
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

la
y
s
 a

 

p
iv

o
ta

l 
ro

le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

S
a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
O

n
g
o
in

g

O
ld

e
r 

B
e
tt

e
r'

 :
 T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 a

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
.

C
o
s
t 
o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

B
u
ilt

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
e
v
e
ls

T
h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
O

n
e
 o

f 

th
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 k

e
e
p
 a

c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
.

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

J
o
y
 M

a
rs

h
a
ll 

O
n
g
o
in

g

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

M
a
rt

in
 F

a
rr

in
g
to

n
C

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t

C
h
ri
s
ti
n
e
 O

u
tr

a
m

/I
a
n
 C

a
m

e
ro

n

R
o
s
e
m

a
ry

 A
rc

h
e
r

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

R
e
'n

e
w

S
te

v
e
 W

ill
ia

m
s
o
n

C
h
ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

S
p
o
rt

s
 E

n
g
la

n
d

J
u
lie

 H
a
n
n
a
n

G
a
ry

 B
a
rt

le
tt

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

Y
o
u
th

 S
p
o
rt

s
 T

ru
s
t

S
te

v
e
 S

p
e
a
k

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

S
a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

J
u
lie

 M
e
a
k
in

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

S
te

v
e
 H

u
m

e
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Page 82



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

H
W

-2
a

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n

c
e

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 s

e
x

u
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

S
a

ra
h

 S
in

c
la

ir
L

e
e

d
s

 P
C

T
A

m
b

e
r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
 m

o
re

 r
e

a
lis

ti
c
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 n
e

x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 w
a

s
 d

e
v
is

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 f
o

c
u

s
 i
s
 o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

ix
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

w
a

rd
s
 (

H
a

re
h

ill
s
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n

, 
C

it
y
 &

 H
o

lb
e

c
k
, 

S
e

a
c
ro

ft
, 

H
u

n
s
le

t 
a

n
d

 R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill
) 

w
it
h

in
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

w
h

o
le

 L
e

e
d

s
 r

a
te

. 
  

T
h

is
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 c

a
n

 b
e

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 1
9

9
8

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 w
h

ic
h

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

8
 i
s
 1

0
%

 (
R

a
te

 –
 4

5
) 

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
9

 i
s
 1

5
%

 (
R

a
te

 -
 4

2
.7

).

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

1
1

2
U

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

5
0

.4

(1
9

9
8

)

ra
te

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

(P
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 c

o
n

c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
)

4
5

 r
a

te

p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n

A
n

n
u

a
lly

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

is
k

 /
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

K
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

In
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

, 
th

e
 T

e
e

n
a

g
e

 P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a

m
 

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 a

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

w
h

a
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

e
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 

th
e

 g
a

p
s
 e

x
is

te
d

.

T
h

e
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 c

h
a

m
p

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

 n
e

w
 c

h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 T

e
e

n
a

g
e

 P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 

a
n

d
 P

a
re

n
th

o
o

d
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

T
P

P
P

) 
h

a
v
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 r

a
is

e
d

 t
h

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

e
e

n
a

g
e

 c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 

th
e

 T
P

P
P

 B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
, 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
, 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
s
e

n
io

ri
ty

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 a

 c
le

a
re

r 
v
is

io
n

 w
it
h

 a
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
.

T
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 f

o
rm

e
d

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

 T
P

P
P

 B
o

a
rd

 h
a

s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
a

p
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
re

e
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
t 

in
to

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
u

n
d

e
r 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
o

f 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 

th
e

 u
n

d
e

r-
1

8
 c

o
n

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 b
y
 5

5
%

. 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
s
 

b
e

h
in

d
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

0
7

-0
8

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
3

6
.7

 c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

. 
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
s
 5

0
.7

/1
0

0
0

.

T
h

e
 T

e
e

n
a

g
e

 P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

K
e

ir
a

 S
w

if
t

O
c
t-

0
8

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 N

S
T

K
e

ir
a

 S
w

if
t

A
p

r-
0

8

B
a

s
ic

 d
a

ta
 m

o
d

e
l 
in

d
ic

a
ti
n

g
 m

o
n

th
ly

 c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 i
s
 i
n

 

p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
.

K
e

ir
a

 S
w

if
t

O
n

g
o

in
g

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 B

o
a

rd
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 

a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
e

d
.

K
e

ir
a

 S
w

if
t

A
p

r-
0

8

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
R

E
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

tt
in

g
s
 i
s
 a

 t
o

p
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 

a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 S

R
E

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 S
R

E
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

c
y
 f

o
r 

S
e

x
 a

n
d

 R
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 (

S
R

E
).

 

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 P
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 w

o
rk

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  
A

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 Y

o
u

n
g

 

P
e

o
p

le
's

 H
e

a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

.

K
e

ir
a

 S
w

if
t

S
e

p
-0

8

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
P

C
T

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

ti
lis

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 u

p
ta

k
e

 o
f 

L
A

R
C

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 u

rg
e

n
t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

(C
A

S
H

) 
a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

.

L
o

c
a

lit
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 l
o

c
a

lit
ie

s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

.
K

e
ir
a

 S
w

if
t

O
n

g
o

in
g

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 L

iv
in

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 L
e

e
d

s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 a

re
 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

te
e

n
a

g
e

 b
o

y
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 

te
e

n
a

g
e

 c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
.

R
ic

h
a

rd
 R

o
b

s
o

n
 

(L
e

e
d

s
 V

C
F

S
)

O
n

g
o

in
g

Page 83



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

is
k

 /
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

K
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

re
e

 

c
o

n
d

o
m

s
, 

C
h

la
m

y
d

ia
 a

n
d

 p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 t

e
s
ti
n

g
, 

p
ra

c
ti
s
e

 n
u

rs
e

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
, 

o
n

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 c

o
u

n
s
e

lli
n

g
, 

g
ro

u
p

w
o

rk
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

F
u

ll 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 P
a

re
n

th
o

o
d

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

O
u

tl
in

e
 b

id
 t

o
 B

ig
 L

o
tt

e
ry

 F
u

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
e

e
r 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
, 

th
e

 T
P

P
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
rs

, 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
 f

u
ll 

b
id

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r.

 

M
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
is

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

rc
h

w
a

y
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

a
n

d
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
N

R
F

 

fu
n

d
in

g
. 

 W
o

rk
 i
s
 i
n

 h
a

n
d

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 

m
e

a
n

s
 .

O
n

g
o

in
g

 w
o

rk

R
e

'n
e

w
O

n
g

o
in

g

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r,
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
's

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

L
e

e
d

s
 P

C
T

C
h

ri
s
ti
n

e
 O

u
tr

a
m

 /
 I

a
n

 C
a

m
e

ro
n

C
h

ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s

L
e

e
d

s
 T

e
a

c
h

in
g

 H
o

s
p

it
a

ls
 T

ru
s
t

M
a

g
g

ie
 B

o
y
le

K
e

it
h

 B
u

rt
o

n
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
R

e
'n

e
w

S
te

v
e

  
W

ill
ia

m
s
o

n

S
a

lly
 T

h
re

lf
a

ll
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
V

C
F

S
 -

 L
e

e
d

s
 V

o
ic

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 F
o

ru
m

E
d

d
ie

 M
a

c
k
/J

e
a

n
e

tt
e

 M
o

rr
is

 M
o

a
m

D
e

n
n

is
 H

o
lm

e
s

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

J
im

 W
ill

s
o

n
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 &

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

J
o

h
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

S
te

v
e

 H
u

m
e

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Page 84



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

H
W

-2
b

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

a
re

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

.
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
's

 S
o

c
ia

l 

C
a

re
L

e
e

d
s

 C
 C

A
m

b
e

r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ty

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
C

o
re

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 L
o

o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
e

rf
o

rm
 w

e
ll.

 T
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
s
 a

n
 a

re
a

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 p
la

n
n

e
d

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 

a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e

s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g

in
e

e
ri
n

g
 r

e
p

o
rt

.

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

6
3

 -
 L

S
P

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

A
g

re
e

d

S
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
: 

le
n

g
th

 o
f 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t

T
h

e
 s

te
a

d
y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 m

o
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f

ig
u

re
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 w
a

s
 6

7
%

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 w
ill

 

a
lw

a
y
s
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 s

o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 k

n
o

w
n

 f
a

c
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
in

 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

p
e

ri
o

d

7
0

.5
 p

e
rc

e
n

t

(D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7

)

7
2

 p
e

rc
e

n
t

7
4

.7
 p

e
rc

e
n

t

(3
9

6
 o

f 
5

3
0

 

c
a

s
e

s
)

G
re

e
n

N
o

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

6
6

 -
 L

S
P

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

A
g

re
e

d

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

w
it
h

in
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

im
e

s
c
a

le
s

T
h

e
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 

s
in

g
le

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
s
 i
s
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
rt

a
g

e
 o

f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

te
a

m
. 

 A
 m

a
jo

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e

s
s
 R

e
-

e
n

g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 h

a
s
 j
u

s
t 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
it
s
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t,

 b
u

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

s
 £

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 t
o

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 f

u
ll.

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 h

o
w

 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

.

A
s
 a

 c
h

ild
 m

u
s
t 

h
a

v
e

 e
v
e

ry
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 t

im
e

, 
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

s
 o

f 
 f

a
ili

n
g

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
, 

th
e

 p
a

s
s

ra
te

 w
ill

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 e
v
e

ry
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
h

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

re
d

ic
ti
o

n
 o

f 
7

0
%

  
fo

r 
th

e
 f

u
ll 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 o

n
ly

 

w
a

y
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
n

 t
h

is
 i
s
 i
f 

e
v
e

ry
 s

in
g

le
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

n
't
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 t

im
e

  
c
e

a
s
e

 t
o

 b
e

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 l
e

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
h

o
rt

.

6
0

.2
 p

e
rc

e
n

t

(A
p

r-
D

e
c
 2

0
0

7
)

8
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
t

7
8

.6
 p

e
rc

e
n

t

(9
9

4
 o

f 
1

2
6

5
 

c
a

s
e

s
)

A
m

b
e

r
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
K

e
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

T
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
fo

s
te

r 
c
a

re
rs

 p
la

y
s
 a

 c
ru

c
ia

l 
ro

le
 i
n

 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
c
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
is

 a
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
S

k
ill

s
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

w
h

ic
h

 s
e

ts
 a

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

fo
s
te

r 
c
a

re
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 

le
v
e

ls
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 s

k
ill

s
, 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
 W

h
e

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
s
te

r 
p

a
re

n
t 

a
re

 m
a

tc
h

e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 

c
h

ild
re

n
's

 n
e

e
d

s
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 b

e
tt

e
r 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 s
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

f 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t.

W
h

e
n

 a
 c

h
ild

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
b

y
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 a

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 f

a
m

ily
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
 I

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 w

e
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fa
m

ily
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 c
a

re
rs

, 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

g
o

o
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

ta
b

le
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
.

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
in

g
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

is
s
u

e
s
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
fa

c
to

rs
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
in

g
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

b
ili

ty
, 

m
a

n
y
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
S

k
ill

s
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 

k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

.

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 c

a
n

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

s
ta

b
ili

ty
 o

n
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
is

 t
h

a
t 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
h

o
ic

e
 i
s
 

lim
it
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 

L
e

e
d

s
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
k
e

y
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
:

- 
a

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

x
p

e
d

it
e

 d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
C

a
re

 O
rd

e
rs

- 
p

ilo
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 F
a

m
ily

 G
ro

u
p

 C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 (

F
G

C
s
) 

in
 t

h
e

 S
o

u
th

 o
f

th
e

 C
it
y
, 

e
n

a
b

lin
g

 f
a

m
ily

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 t

o
 f

in
d

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 

th
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
in

g

- 
th

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 G

ro
u

p
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s

S
a

le
e

m
 T

a
ri
q

S
a

le
e

m
 T

a
ri
q

S
a

lly
 T

h
re

lf
a

ll

O
n

g
o

in
g

O
n

g
o

in
g

O
n

g
o

in
g

Page 85



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

A
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e

s
s
 R

e
-e

n
g

in
e

e
ri
n

g
 (

B
P

R
) 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 T

e
a

m
 t

o
 o

p
e

ra
te

 

m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 T
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 m
a

k
e

s
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

a
t 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
.

S
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e

a
m

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 
M

e
a

s
u

re
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
a

n
c
e

lla
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
s
.

T
h

e
 B

P
R

 r
e

p
o

rt
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 t
e

a
m

. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 f
a

c
to

r 
in

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

o
o

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 a

s
 a

 f
u

tu
re

 r
is

k
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 T
e

a
m

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
c
a

rr
y
in

g
 

o
u

t 
re

v
ie

w
s
 h

e
rs

e
lf
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 l
im

it
e

d
 h

e
r 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 t

e
a

m
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
.

A
 s

c
o

p
in

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
 p

ra
g

m
a

ti
c
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

w
id

e
r 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

S
a

le
e

m
 T

a
ri
q

D
e

c
-0

8

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
K

e
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

ti
m

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 8

0
%

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 W

h
ils

t 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 i
s
 v

e
ry

 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t,
 w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

s
ix

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

A
n

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

IC
S

) 
is

 d
u

e
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 1

s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

9
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IC

S
, 

s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 u

s
e

 C
o

re
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
te

m
p

la
te

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
te

m
p

la
te

s
 

w
h

ic
h

 L
e

e
d

s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

s
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

a
g

e
 b

a
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
d

e
ta

il.
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

s
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
C

o
re

 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 o

n
 t

h
e

 K
P

I.

A
 f

u
ll 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 s

p
e

e
d

 u
p

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

s
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 f

a
m

ili
a

r 
w

it
h

 i
t.

 

T
o

n
y
 G

ri
ff

in
/ 

S
a

le
e

m
 

T
a

ri
q

A
p

r-
0

9

W
o

rk
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

a
m

ily
 o

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 w
o

rk
, 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 7

 

d
a

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
e

a
m

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ilo
t 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 f
re

e
 c

h
ild

c
a

re
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 2

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
im

it
e

d
 i
f 

b
e

tt
e

r 
in

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 

v
a

ri
o

u
s
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 

a
g

e
n

d
a

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 

w
o

rk
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
.

S
a

lly
 T

h
re

lf
a

ll
O

n
g

o
in

g

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h

ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s

L
e

e
d

s
 P

C
T

C
h

ri
s
ti
n

e
 O

u
tr

a
m

 /
 I

a
n

 C
a

m
e

ro
n

D
e

n
n

is
 H

o
lm

e
s

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
L

e
e

d
s
 T

e
a

c
h

in
g

 H
o

s
p

it
a

ls
 T

ru
s
t

M
a

g
g

ie
 B

o
y
le

L
e

e
d

s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 

T
ru

s
t

C
h

ri
s
 B

u
tl
e

r/
M

ik
e

 D
o

y
le

V
C

F
S

 -
 L

e
e

d
s
 V

o
ic

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 F
o

ru
m

E
d

d
ie

 M
a

c
k
/J

e
a

n
e

tt
e

 M
o

rr
is

 B
o

a
m

Page 86



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e
ll
b

e
in

g
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

H
W

-3
d

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

re
c

o
g

n
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
 t

o
 r

is
k

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r,
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

's
 S

o
c

ia
l 

C
a

re
L

e
e

d
s

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
A

m
b

e
r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 o

n
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
n

 i
n

it
ia

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 o
n

 t
h

is
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

. 
L

o
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

d
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 s
e

t.
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 

th
a

t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
c
ro

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

's
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 a
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
it
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 t
im

e
 t

o
 s

a
fe

ly
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
.

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

L
S

P
-H

W
2

b
(i
)

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
(e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 

a
s
 a

 r
a

te
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
) 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

u
n

a
c
c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

 a
s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e

k
e

rs

M
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

it
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
q

u
ic

k
ly

. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 n

o
w

 g
re

a
te

r 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 t

o
 c

h
ild

re
n

 "
o

n
 t

h
e

 e
d

g
e

 o
f 

c
a

re
" 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
is

 o
n

e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
p

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
.

T
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
e

d
 b

y
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 "

In
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

G
ro

u
p

" 
to

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 t

o
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 

a
ft

e
r.

1
,2

8
1

(8
3

.6
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
)

1
,1

5
6

(7
5

.4
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
)

1
2

3
5

(8
0

.8
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0

0
)

A
m

b
e

r
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

is
k

 /
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

K
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

A
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 

n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
, 

a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

x
p

e
d

it
e

 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
C

a
re

 O
rd

e
rs

 w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

 T
h

is
 a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 c

o
n

c
e

n
tr

a
te

 o
n

 c
h

ild
re

n
 p

la
c
e

d
 w

it
h

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

th
o

s
e

 i
n

 k
in

s
h

ip
 c

a
re

 w
h

e
re

 S
p

e
c
ia

l 
G

u
a

rd
ia

n
s
h

ip
 m

a
y
b

e
 m

o
re

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

h
a

n
 a

 C
a

re
 O

rd
e

r.

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
 p

ilo
t 

in
 t

h
e

 E
a

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
it
y
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 

fa
s
t-

tr
a

c
k
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

it
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 G
u

a
rd

ia
n

s
 

(i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rt

s
) 

w
h

ic
h

 

a
llo

w
s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
m

 b
e

fo
re

 l
a

u
n

c
h

in
g

 c
o

u
rt

 

p
ro

c
e

e
d

in
g

s
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
a

 v
ie

w
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 l
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 o

f 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 i
s
 

ta
k
e

n
 b

e
fo

re
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

s
 a

re
 i
n

it
ia

te
d

.

R
e

g
u

la
r 

lia
is

o
n

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

ily
 C

o
u

rt
 

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

C
a

fc
a

s
s
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
rt

s
 a

re
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 

to
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 p
ra

c
ti
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rt

s
, 

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 

G
u

a
rd

ia
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 o
ft

e
n

 h
a

v
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
o

p
in

io
n

s
 o

f 

w
h

e
n

 i
t 

is
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

o
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 a

 C
a

re
 O

rd
e

r.
 

R
o

ll 
o

u
t 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 p
ilo

t 
to

 r
e

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
.

S
a

le
e

m
 T

a
ri
q

D
e

c
-0

8

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
a

 b
ro

a
d

e
r 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

r 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

 T
h

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

G
ro

u
p

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

ru
n

 

C
h

ild
re

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

h
a

v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

8
/0

9
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 i
n

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
.

A
 r

is
k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 w

h
e

re
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 h
a

rd
 t

o
 r

e
a

c
h

 a
n

d
 d

is
e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
, 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

s
e

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

c
o

m
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
t 

a
 p

o
in

t 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 

m
u

lt
ip

le
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 h

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
 t

o
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
in

g
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

in
p

u
t 

a
n

d
/o

r 
re

a
c
h

in
g

 s
u

c
h

 a
 s

ta
g

e
 w

h
e

re
 c

h
ild

re
n

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
e

 

in
to

 c
a

re
. 

(S
o

m
e

 w
o

rk
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
g

u
n

 o
n

 t
h

is
.)

A
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g

F
a

m
ily

 G
ro

u
p

 C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 (

F
G

C
s
) 

a
re

 b
e

in
g

 p
ilo

te
d

 i
n

 S
o

u
th

 

L
e

e
d

s
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 
th

e
 

c
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
 b

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 f

a
m

ily
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 t

o
 f

in
d

 

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
in

g
. 

 T
h

is
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 c
a

n
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 w

h
e

re
 a

 c
h

ild
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 e

n
te

re
d

 

th
e

 c
a

re
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

N
o

t 
fu

lly
 u

ti
lis

in
g

 t
h

e
 k

in
s
h

ip
 n

e
tw

o
rk

, 
b

o
th

 i
n

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
s
e

e
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 p
o

o
re

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

u
t 

a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
b

u
rd

e
n

 o
n

 l
o

c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

O
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

ilo
t 

in
 t

h
e

 S
o

u
th

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
o

lle
d

 o
u

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 

c
it
y
.

S
a

le
e

m
 T

a
ri
q

A
p

r-
0

9

Page 87



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

is
k

 /
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

K
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
c

h
il

d
 p

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 h

a
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
.

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 m
e

a
s
u

re
d

 

c
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
e

d
e

 g
o

o
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

. 

E
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
. 

 E
n

s
u

re
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
 

is
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
.

S
a

le
e

m
 T

a
ri
q

D
e

c
-0

8

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

o
lle

g
e

 f
o

r 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
L

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 (

N
C

S
L

) 
S

a
fe

r 

R
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

 h
ig

h
 d

e
m

a
n

d
. 

9
6

.6
%

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 t
ra

in
e

d
 o

n
 s

a
fe

r 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 3

7
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 p
a

s
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 s
a

fe
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 A

 n
e

w
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
n

 '
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 s
e

lf
 

h
a

rm
' w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
u

tu
m

n
 t

e
rm

. 
N

e
w

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 

a
n

d
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n

 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 

tr
a

ff
ic

k
e

d
, 

o
n

 p
ri
v
a

te
 f

o
s
te

ri
n

g
, 

o
n

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
fo

rc
e

d
 

m
a

rr
ia

g
e

 (
re

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
o

re
ig

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

o
n

w
e

a
lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

 

a
s
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

) 
a

n
d

 o
n

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 i
n

 u
n

d
e

r-
a

g
e

 

s
e

x
u

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

A
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 O
fs

te
d

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

a
il 

to
 m

e
e

t 
le

g
a

l 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

.

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

u
s
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

re
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 

C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 T

e
a

m
 i
n

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
,

V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 a

n
d

 

L
o

o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 

C
h

ild
re

n

2
0

0
8

/0
9

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

o
n

 t
im

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 8

0
%

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 W

h
ils

t 
ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 i
s
 

v
e

ry
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

w
e

 a
re

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e

rs
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 i
s
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

s
ix

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

A
n

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

IC
S

) 
is

 d
u

e
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
 1

s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

9
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
IC

S
, 

th
e

 

te
m

p
la

te
s
 w

h
ic

h
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p

la
c
e

d
 b

y
 C

o
re

 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
te

m
p

la
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

g
e

 b
a

n
d

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 a
 

g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
d

e
ta

il.
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

lin
e

s
s
 o

f 
C

o
re

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 o

n
 t

h
e

 K
P

I.

A
 f

u
ll 

tr
a

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
o

m
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 s

p
e

e
d

 u
p

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

s
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 f

a
m

ili
a

r 
w

it
h

 i
t.

 

S
a

le
e

m
 T

a
ri
q

A
p

r-
0

9

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 t
im

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 

to
 b

e
 g

o
o

d
 w

it
h

 j
u

s
t 

o
n

e
 c

a
s
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 t

im
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
 g

o
o

d
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
b

o
o

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 

h
o

ld
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

a
re

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 t

im
e

. 

N
A

N
A

N
A

N
A

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

K
e

it
h

 B
u

rt
o

n
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
V

C
F

S
A

n
n

 P
e

m
b

e
rt

o
n

/J
e

a
n

e
tt

e
 M

o
rr

is
 B

o
a

m

D
e

n
n

is
 H

o
lm

e
s

A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

L
e

e
d

s
 C

o
lle

g
e

s
C

a
ro

ly
n

 W
ri
g

h
t

S
a

lly
 T

h
re

lf
a

ll
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
W

e
s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 P
o

lic
e

C
h

ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s

Page 88



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

id
ld

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

L
e

a
rn

in
g

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
L

N
-1

d

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

In
c

re
a

s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i

n
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
S

a
ll

y
 T

h
re

lf
a

ll
L

e
e

d
s

 C
C

A
m

b
e

r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ty

G
o

o
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
fa

c
to

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r.
 A

ft
e

r 
s
o

m
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 w

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

a
ta

 w
it
h

 m
o

re
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
d

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 N
E

E
T

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
s
 .

 T
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 I

Y
S

S
 i
s
 i
m

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 u

p
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

a
n

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
. 

 R
o

b
u

s
t 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 1
4

- 
1

9
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 i
s
 i
m

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 u

p
o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
a

v
o

u
ra

b
ly

. 
S

o
m

e
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 l
if
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

.

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

1
1

7
1

6
 -

 1
8

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 o

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
(N

E
E

T
)

L
C

C
 i
n

h
e

ri
te

d
 a

 s
ta

ti
c
 m

o
n

th
ly

 N
E

E
T

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
0

8
 a

t 
9

.7
%

. 
 T

h
e

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
8

 a
d

ju
s
te

d
 

N
E

E
T

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 1

1
.2

%
. 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

rs
 w

e
re

 1
2

.7
%

, 
1

2
.6

%
, 

1
3

.9
%

 a
n

d
 (

in
 2

0
0

7
) 

1
2

.7
%

. 
 T

h
e

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

N
o

t 
K

n
o

w
n

 f
ig

u
re

 2
7

.2
%

. 
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

rs
 w

e
re

 4
2

.2
%

, 
3

5
.0

%
, 

3
9

.3
%

 a
n

d
 (

in
 2

0
0

7
) 

4
5

%
. 

 T
h

is
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
is

 t
re

n
d

 

is
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

. 
 C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

0
8

 t
a

rg
e

t

1
0

%

(A
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
N

o
v
, 

D
e

c
, 

a
n

d
 J

a
n

 

a
s
 p

e
r 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

)

8
.9

%
A

n
n

u
a

lly

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d

N
A

N
o

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d

N
I 

1
4

8
C

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
n

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 

tr
a

in
in

g

B
e

tt
e

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 h
e

lp
 t

h
e

 m
o

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 w

o
rk

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

a
re

 l
e

a
v
e

rs
 i
n

 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
.

7
1

.3
%

(2
0

0
6

/0
7

)

7
6

.6
%

A
n

n
u

a
lly

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d

N
A

N
o

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
K

e
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

T
h

e
 C

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 l
o

c
a

lis
e

d
C

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
ta

ff
in

g

T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 D

e
c
 0

8
.

J
P

/G
H

D
e

c
-0

8

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
fr

o
m

 a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 

s
u

p
p

lie
r 

o
f 

IA
G

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

G
o

o
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

G
u

a
ra

n
te

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 

th
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

N
o

t 
K

n
o

w
n

s
.

T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
f 

th
is

 c
ri
ti
c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
0

9
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

te
n

d
e

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
.

E
n

s
u

re
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

h
a

s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

le
a

d
 i
n

 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

e
it
h

e
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

o
r 

n
e

w
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

tr
e

n
d

.

J
P

/G
H

A
p

l 
0

9

C
C

IS
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

M
I 

s
y
s
te

m
 (

In
s
ig

h
t)

 f
u

lly
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 M

IS

M
a

in
ta

in
in

g
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
in

p
u

tt
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 

tr
a

in
e

d

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

J
P

/G
H

N
o

v
 0

8
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 

0
9

In
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

P
A

s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 C

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 

0
8

/0
9

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
lo

c
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

b
y
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 C

o
n

n
e

x
io

n
s
 g

ra
n

t 
(b

y
 5

%
) 

in
 0

9
/1

0
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
ly

 

le
a

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
s
o

m
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
 

b
y
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
te

n
d

e
ri
n

g
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
s

N
e

w
 t

e
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 0

8
/0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/1
0

J
P

/G
H

N
o

v
 0

8
 -

 O
c
t 

0
9

P
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s
, 

A
rt

s
 a

n
d

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 L
E

G
I 

a
n

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 V
C

F
 s

e
c
to

r

L
im

it
e

d
 o

r 
ti
m

e
 l
im

it
e

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
M

a
in

ta
in

 v
a

ri
e

d
 m

e
n

u
 o

f 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
C

B
/C

E
2

0
0

8
- 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

0
9

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ilo
t 

o
f 

a
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

rt
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

M
u

s
e

u
m

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 

o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 w

it
h

 M
u

s
e

u
m

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 t

h
e

m
 i
n

 c
re

a
ti
v
e

 

w
o

rk
.

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 u

s
e

d
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
g

re
e

ti
n

g
s
 c

a
rd

s
 

in
s
p

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 m
u

s
e

u
m

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

o
ld

 i
n

 o
u

r 
g

if
t 

s
h

o
p

s
 w

it
h

 p
ro

c
e

e
d

s
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 a

 c
h

a
ri
ty

 c
h

o
s
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 

o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
. 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 A
rt

s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

B
ro

n
z
e

 A
w

a
rd

 &
 t

w
o

 a
re

 n
o

w
 s

tu
d

y
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
ilv

e
r 

A
rt

s
 A

w
a

rd
 

&
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
is

 e
n

ro
lle

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
n

g
 C

u
ra

to
r'
s
 C

o
u

rs
e

 a
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 

M
e

t 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
.

L
im

it
e

d
 b

y
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
g

ra
n

t 
o

b
ta

in
e

d
 b

u
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 Y
O

S
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 

w
it
h

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

u
n

 a
t 

L
M

D
C

 w
it
h

 m
u

s
e

u
m

s
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r.

J
o

h
n

 R
o

le
s

O
n

g
o

in
g

G
e

t 
C

re
a

ti
v
e

 -
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 1
0

-1
6

 ,
 

ta
k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 w
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
 i
n

 d
a

n
c
e

, 
d

ra
m

a
, 

fi
lm

, 
m

u
s
ic

 e
tc

.

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

r 
a

rt
s
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
.

A
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
e

b
ri
e

f 
o

n
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r'
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
 W

it
h

 t
h

is
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

ill
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 f
o

rm
a

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 

n
e

x
t 

y
e

a
r.

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 w
ill

 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
fu

n
d

ra
is

in
g

 f
o

r 
n

e
x
t 

y
e

a
r'
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
h

e
re

n
tl
y
 f

it
s
 i
n

 t
o

 

th
e

 o
ff

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

.

J
o

n
 P

ri
c
e

O
n

g
o

in
g

Page 89



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

id
ld

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
K

e
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

je
c
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 L
M

G
 &

 L
e

e
d

s
 H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 &

 H
o

m
e

 

T
e

a
c
h

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e

L
M

G
 r

u
n

 o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l-
b

o
u

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 b
o

th
 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
&

 p
la

y
 r

o
o

m
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 w
a

rd
s
 a

t 
L

G
I 

&
 S

t 
J
a

m
e

s
 

H
o

s
p

it
a

ls
. 

In
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
n

g
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 L
M

G
 

e
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 w
h

it
e

b
o

a
rd

 &
 o

n
lin

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 i
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l.
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 

te
a

m
 M

u
s
e

u
m

s

O
n

g
o

in
g

F
re

e
 w

it
h

 W
o

rd
s

A
ro

u
n

d
 2

3
0

0
 p

ri
s
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 P
ri
s
o

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 M

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 5
0

0
 

p
ri
s
o

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 6

 b
o

o
k
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

, 

th
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ri
s
o

n
e

rs
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
.

R
ic

h
a

rd
 F

u
lle

r/
B

ri
tt

a
 

H
e

y
w

o
rt

h

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

Q
tr

 1
 

&
 2

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
le

a
rn

in
g

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 r

u
n

 i
n

 L
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 t

a
ilo

re
d

 t
o

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

n
e

e
d

s
. 

A
im

 i
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

to
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 o
r 

w
o

rk
.

1
,7

2
3

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 a
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 s
e

s
s
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t 

6
m

o
n

th
s
. 

9
0

%
 s

a
id

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 e

v
e

ry
th

in
g

 t
h

e
y
 w

a
n

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

s
e

s
s
io

n
, 

4
0

%
 w

e
re

 s
e

e
n

 o
n

 a
 1

-1
 b

a
s
is

, 
2

0
%

 h
a

d
 s

o
m

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

d
is

a
b

ili
ty

, 
1

3
%

 w
e

re
 f

ro
m

 B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 1
0

%
 w

e
re

 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
.

A
n

n
 D

a
y
 /

 J
a

s
o

n
 

T
u

ti
n

F
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

Q
tr

 

1
&

2

G
a

lle
ry

 3
7

 y
o

u
th

 a
rt

s
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 u
p

 r
o

u
te

s
 t

o
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t.

1
1

5
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 i
n

 C
re

a
ti
v
e

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
 s

k
ill

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

J
o

n
 P

ri
c
e

In
c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

s
a

g
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

a
l 
le

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 m
u

s
e

u
m

s
 

a
n

d
 g

a
lle

ri
e

s
.

H
a

lf
 y

e
a

r 
re

s
u

lt
s
 7

8
%

 u
p

 o
n

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
rs

 a
c
tu

a
ls

 w
it
h

 1
4

,0
0

2
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 f
o

rm
a

l 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 f
ir
s
t 

h
a

lf
 o

f 
y
e

a
r.

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
: 

n
e

w
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 n
o

w
 o

n
 a

ll 
s
it
e

s
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

t 
a

ll 
s
it
e

s
 (

la
te

s
t 

b
e

in
g

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

rt
s
S

p
a

c
e

 i
n

 A
rt

 G
a

lle
ry

) 
&

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
it
e

s
 (

la
te

s
t 

b
e

in
g

 K
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
 1

/2
 &

 

3
/4

 p
a

c
k
s
 f

o
r 

A
rm

le
y
 M

ill
s
).

 N
e

w
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 (
tr

e
a

s
u

ry
 

o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

) 
c
re

a
te

d
 &

 c
o

p
ie

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
. 

M
o

re
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 &

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 t
ra

ils
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 s
it
e

- 
M

y
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

.

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 

te
a

m
 M

u
s
e

u
m

s

A
n

n
u

a
l

T
h

e
 C

o
lle

g
e

 o
f 

C
h

in
e

s
e

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
C

u
lt
u

re
 (

C
C

P
C

) 
is

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 a
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
a

lle
d

 E
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
E

n
e

rg
y
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 

b
y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 i
n

 d
e

s
ig

n
in

g
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 L

is
h

i 
to

 

o
th

e
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
L

is
h

i 
is

 a
 C

h
in

e
s
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

d
a

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

is
 a

 p
ro

v
e

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

te
 ‘
h

o
o

k
’ 
in

to
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n

to
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t.
 A

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 q
u

a
lif

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 i
t 

is
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
e

n
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
o

ft
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
a

b
ili

ty
 s

k
ill

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

, 
s
e

lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
, 

c
re

a
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 i
n

 t
e

a
m

s
.

R
ic

h
a

rd
 R

o
b

s
o

n
 

(L
e

e
d

s
 V

C
S

F
)

Page 90



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

id
ld

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
  
P

lu
s

Ia
n
 H

u
n
te

r

C
h
ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t

C
h
ri
s
 B

u
tl
e
r/

M
ik

e
 D

o
y
le

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

la
n
s
h
a
rd

 
C

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
n
n
e
 C

a
rv

e
n

S
te

p
h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

V
C

F
S

R
ic

h
a
rd

 N
o
rt

o
n
/R

ic
h
a

rd
 R

o
b
s
o
n

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Page 91



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

L
e

a
rn

in
g

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
L

N
-1

e

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

Im
p

ro
v

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

a
rl

y
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
, 

w
it

h
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
 

o
n

 f
a

m
il

ie
s

 i
n

 d
e

p
ri

v
e

d
 a

re
a

s
.

C
h

ri
s

 E
d

w
a

rd
s

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 L
e

e
d

s
A

m
b

e
r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ty

2
0

0
8

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 r
e

m
a

in
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
s
 a

s
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
. 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 f

e
ll 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 P

ro
fi
le

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
re

la
te

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 (
D

C
S

F
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 t
a

rg
e

ts
) 

d
o

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
s
h

o
w

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

is
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
t-

s
e

tt
in

g
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

a
c
t 

th
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 b

y
 2

0
1

1
. 

B
ri
n

g
in

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
t 

th
is

 l
e

v
e

l 
is

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 m
e

d
iu

m
-t

e
rm

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 o

n
e

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

w
ill

 s
ta

rt
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

 t
h

a
t 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 t

h
is

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

.

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

7
2

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

7
8

 p
o

in
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 w

it
h

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

6
 

in
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 s
c
a

le
s
 i
n

 P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 

E
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 

L
a

n
g

u
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 L

it
e

ra
c
y
 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
h

a
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 a
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

0
.2

%
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

, 
a

 s
lo

w
in

g
 i
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
. 

T
h

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 a

re
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 r

e
fi
n

e
 t

h
e

 

a
c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 (

h
e

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 i
n

 s
tr

a
n

d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

lly
 h

a
v
e

 h
a

d
 

h
ig

h
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
),

 b
u

t 
a

re
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 k

e
y
 a

re
a

s
.

4
7

%
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

4
8

.5
%

 -
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

4
7

%
 -

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

A
m

b
e

r
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

7
3

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

le
v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 M
a

th
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
. 

 K
S

2
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 f
a

lle
n

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

. 
T

h
e

 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
, 

a
n

d
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 p

u
p

ils
' r

e
s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

th
s
.

7
1

%
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

9
.

7
1

%
 -

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

A
m

b
e

r
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

, 
b

u
t 

p
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
is

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
.

N
I 

7
6

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 f

e
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 6

5
%

 o
f 

p
u

p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 

b
o

th
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2

 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
. 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

is
 t

h
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

in
d

ic
a

to
r.

 A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 f

lo
o

r 

ta
rg

e
t,

 t
h

e
s
e

 w
e

re
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 

o
f 

lo
w

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t.

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

e
lo

w
 f

lo
o

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
d

v
is

o
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

, 
s
e

lf
-e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

.

3
2

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

9
.

3
4

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 -

 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

R
e

d
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

, 
b

u
t 

p
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
is

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
.

N
I 

9
2

N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 l
o

w
e

s
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 

S
ta

g
e

 P
ro

fi
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
t 

In
 2

0
0

8
 t

h
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

1
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

ia
n

 s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
c
o

h
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

2
 i
n

 

th
e

 m
e

a
n

 s
c
o

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

tt
o

m
 2

0
%

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 w

id
e

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
p

 b
y
 1

.5
%

. 
 T

h
is

 m
e

a
n

s
 

th
a

t 
s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

e
n

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 l
o

s
t 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

s
m

a
lle

r 

th
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
s
e

e
n

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

. 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

A
n

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 A

d
v
is

o
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 j
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 

a
n

d
 f

iv
e

 n
e

w
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
.

3
8

%
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

3
3

.3
%

 -
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

3
9

.8
%

 -
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

R
e

d
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

N
I 

9
3

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 1

 a
n

d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o

m
in

g
 i
n

to
 e

ff
e

c
t 

th
is

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r,

 s
o

 n
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

p
p

lie
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r,

 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 t

h
e

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
c
o

n
te

x
tu

a
l 
v
a

lu
e

-a
d

d
e

d
 (

C
V

A
) 

re
s
u

lt
s
. 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
d

v
is

o
rs

 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 n

o
w

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
Y

e
a

r 
4

 p
u

p
ils

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 p

u
p

ils
 a

re
 f

a
ili

n
g

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 p

a
rt

-w
a

y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

, 
s
o

 t
h

a
t 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
-b

a
s
e

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 

a
n

d
 I

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

fr
o

m
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 a
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 

in
 E

n
g

lis
h

.

8
3

.9
%

 -
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 

y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

9
.

8
3

.9
%

 -
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

A
m

b
e

r
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

, 
b

u
t 

p
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
is

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
.

N
I 

9
4

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 M
a

th
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e

 1
 a

n
d

 K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

T
h

is
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 n
e

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o

m
in

g
 i
n

to
 e

ff
e

c
t 

th
is

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r,

 s
o

 n
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

p
p

lie
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

7
/0

8
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 R
a

te
s
 o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 i
n

 

m
a

th
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
7

 a
n

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 

th
is

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r,

 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 t

h
e

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

 l
o

w
e

r 
c
o

n
te

x
tu

a
l 

v
a

lu
e

-a
d

d
e

d
 (

C
V

A
) 

re
s
u

lt
s
. 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
d

v
is

o
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 n

o
w

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
Y

e
a

r 
4

 p
u

p
ils

 

to
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 p

u
p

ils
 a

re
 f

a
ili

n
g

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 p

a
rt

-w
a

y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

, 
s
o

 t
h

a
t 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
-b

a
s
e

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 

a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 I

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 w

ill
 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
o

m
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 a
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

in
 m

a
th

s
.

7
6

.4
%

 -
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 

y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

9
.

7
8

%
 -

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

A
m

b
e

r
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 

re
s
u

lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

, 
b

u
t 

p
le

a
s
e

 n
o

te
 t

h
is

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
.

Page 92



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

9
9

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n

 

E
n

g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

T
o

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 O
C

2
 c

o
h

o
rt

 a
n

d
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
.

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 o

u
tp

u
t.

  
T

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

x
c
e

e
d

e
d

. 
 F

o
r 

th
e

 f
ir
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 p

u
p

il 
le

v
e

l 
F

is
h

e
r 

F
a

m
ily

 T
ru

s
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 L

e
e

d
s
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

l/
P

M
IT

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
d

 a
 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 w
it
h

 H
e

a
d

 t
e

a
c
h

e
rs

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s
 r

a
is

e
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 

e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
. 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 w
ill

 c
o

m
p

a
re

 p
u

p
il 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 a

 

v
a

lu
e

-a
d

d
e

d
 j
u

d
g

m
e

n
t 

to
 i
n

fo
rm

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
.

T
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
in

 E
n

g
lis

h
 &

 M
a

th
s
 a

t 
K

S
2

 i
s
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 L

E
X

S
 s

ti
ll 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
t 

in
 

c
o

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 i
n

 K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

.

4
0

%
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

9
.

4
3

%
 -

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

N
/A

N
o

 d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 y

e
t

N
I 

1
0

0
L

o
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n

 

M
a

th
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 

3
0

%
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

9
.

4
1

%
 -

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l

N
/A

N
o

 d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 y

e
t

N
I 

1
0

1
C

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 c
a

re
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 

a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
)

W
h

ile
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 4
%

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 5
%

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 a

n
d

 h
e

n
c
e

 'R
E

D
', 

 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

c
o

h
o

rt
 s

iz
e

 i
s
 1

2
6

, 
s
o

 a
 s

in
g

le
 s

tu
d

e
n

t 
c
a

n
 s

h
if
t 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

lm
o

s
t 

1
%

 e
it
h

e
r 

w
a

y
. 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

5
 Y

e
a

r 
1

1
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

s
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
  

h
a

s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 a
b

le
 t

o
 g

e
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 D
a

v
id

 Y
o

u
n

g
 A

c
a

d
e

m
y
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
, 

th
e

re
fo

re
, 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
th

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 D

u
ri
n

g
 i
ts

 f
ir
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
f 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
, 

th
e

 

L
e

e
d

s
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
fo

r 
lo

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 (

L
E

X
S

) 
h

a
s
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 a
g

e
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 5
A

*-
C

 (
e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
) 

E
n

g
lis

h
 &

 M
a

th
s
 h

a
s
 s

h
if
te

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 

d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
: 

fr
o

m
 8

%
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

to
 1

3
%

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.
  

T
h

a
t 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
m

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 u

s
in

g
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 L

E
X

S
/P

M
IT

 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 e

ff
e

c
t.

T
h

is
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 n
o

w
 i
n

fo
rm

in
g

 L
E

X
S

 d
e

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
it
s
 I

n
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
s
 G

ra
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 c
lo

s
e

 t
o

 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

A
*-

C
 (

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 &
 M

a
th

s
) 

a
s
 i
t 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
o

s
e

 c
o

re
 s

u
b

je
c
ts

 

e
v
e

n
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
c
o

u
rs

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

.

5
%

 -
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 a

c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

 

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

is
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 

re
la

te
s
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
2

0
0

9
.

4
%

N
/A

N
o

 d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 y

e
t

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
K

e
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

G
o

o
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

  
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 

a
n

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

a
n

 E
a

rl
y
 

Y
e

a
rs

 A
d

v
is

e
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 t
o

 l
e

a
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

e
v
a

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 D

u
ty

 p
la

n
. 

W
o

rk
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
d

v
is

o
rs

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
. 

A
d

v
is

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 m
o

re
 

m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 v

is
it
s
 t

o
 t

e
a

m
s
. 

A
 o

n
e

 d
a

y
 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 h
e

ld
 f

o
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 h
e

a
d

te
a

c
h

e
rs

 t
o

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 a
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
, 

m
o

v
in

g
 t

h
is

 f
ro

m
 a

 u
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
p

o
o

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
. 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
 r

e
a

lig
n

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 n
e

e
d

.

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

e
a

c
h

e
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
te

s
ti
n

g
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 

s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 o
f 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 P

ro
fi
le

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 m
o

d
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

A
 m

o
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
a

d
v
is

e
r 

a
n

d
 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

is
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

.

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

A
d

v
is

e
rs

 /
 E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e

a
rs

 A
d

v
is

e
r

2
0

0
7

/0
8

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

e
a

rl
y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 v
ia

:

- 
T

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 v

is
it
 b

y
 D

C
S

F

- 
T

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

O
fs

te
d

- 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
C

S
F

- 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

O
v
e

ra
ll 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

, 

a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

re
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l.
 

D
e

ta
ile

d
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

re
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p

s
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 l
a

te
r 

in
 t

h
e

 a
u

tu
m

n
 t

e
rm

. 
 T

h
is

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
o

k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 

b
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 o

r 
le

a
rn

in
g

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 

d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
n

ti
tl
e

d
 t

o
 f

re
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
m

e
a

ls
.

In
it
ia

l 
in

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 o

f 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 a
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g

 

o
f 

th
e

 g
a

p
 i
n

 s
o

m
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
.

K
e

y
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 a

ro
u

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 b

e
lo

w
 f

lo
o

r 
ta

rg
e

t,
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 (

ie
, 

p
o

o
r 

C
V

A
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
p

u
p

ils
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

w
o

 l
e

v
e

ls
 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 1

 a
n

d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

) 
a

n
d

 a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s
.

T
h

e
 I

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 b

o
th

 l
o

w
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 

p
o

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

le
c
te

d
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 t
h

is
 t

e
rm

. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
p

u
p

ils
 i
n

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

a
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 

k
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
s
 1

 a
n

d
 2

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

P
a

k
is

ta
n

i 
p

u
p

ils
; 

th
is

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

b
e

in
g

 s
h

a
p

e
d

 b
y
 h

e
a

d
te

a
c
h

e
rs

.

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

A
d

v
is

e
rs

2
0

0
7

/0
8

a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

e
a

rl
y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 v
ia

:

- 
T

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 v

is
it
 b

y
 D

C
S

F

- 
T

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

O
fs

te
d

- 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
C

S
F

- 
O

n
g

o
in

g
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 

w
it
h

in
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

Page 93



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 /

 C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
K

e
y

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

to
ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

E
a

rl
y
 y

e
a

rs
 h

a
v
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 w

o
rk

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t

h
e

 

h
e

a
d

te
a

c
h

e
r 

o
f 

th
e

 L
e

e
d

s
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

l.

E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 a

re
 s

e
e

k
in

g
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

o
s
e

 l
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

s
o

c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 c
a

n
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
c
a

re
rs

 

a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 e
n

ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

.

2
0

0
8

-2
0

0
9

A
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r

B
o

o
k
c
ra

w
l 
- 

re
a

d
in

g
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

B
o

o
k
s
ta

rt
 s

c
h

e
m

e
.

1
8

5
5

 u
n

d
e

r-
4

s
 h

a
v
e

 j
o

in
e

d
 B

o
o

k
c
ra

w
l 
A

p
r 

0
7

 -
 J

u
n

e
 0

8
, 

b
ri
n

g
in

g
 

6
4

6
 n

e
w

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 w

it
h

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
3

2
2

8
 v

is
it
s
. 

A
 t

o
ta

l

o
f 

1
2

,1
0

9
 B

o
o

k
s
ta

rt
 p

a
c
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 g
if
te

d
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

(b
a

g
s
, 

s
a

tc
h

e
ls

 a
n

d
 t

re
a

s
u

re
 c

h
e

s
ts

).

B
ri
tt

a
 H

e
y
w

o
rt

h
/ 

L
o

rr
a

in
e

 L
e

e

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

s
c
h

e
m

e
 u

n
ti
l 
2

0
1

2

M
u

s
e

u
m

s
 a

n
d

 G
a

lle
ri
e

s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 a

u
d

ie
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
s
it
e

s
.

O
v
e

r 
h

a
lf
 y

e
a

r 
1

2
1

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 1
8

4
8

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

A
s
 a

n
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 T

e
m

p
le

 N
e

w
s
a

m
 r

a
n

 a
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 

a
n

d
 c

h
ild

re
n

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 2
8

0
2

 c
h

ild
re

n
 v

is
it
in

g
 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
a

s
t 

q
u

a
rt

e
r.

  
A

b
b

e
y
 H

o
u

s
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 i
ts

 

re
g

u
la

r 
M

o
n

k
e

y
 c

lu
b

 (
fo

r 
u

n
d

e
r 

5
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

) 
b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 a

 L
it
tl
e

 M
o

n
k
e

y
s
 m

o
n

th
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 a
n

d
 1

5
 f

a
m

ily
 f

u
n

 

d
a

y
s
 h

e
ld

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
h

o
lid

a
y
s
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 o

v
e

r 
2

0
,5

0
0

 

p
a

y
in

g
 v

is
it
o

rs
. 

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll 
A

b
b

e
y
 r

a
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 a
n

d
 

c
h

ild
re

n
s
 e

v
e

n
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e

r 
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 o

v
e

r 
2

7
,0

0
 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

C
h

ild
re

n
 h

e
re

 h
e

lp
e

d
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

te
s
s
 o

f 
W

e
s
s
e

x
 o

p
e

n
 

T
o

d
d

le
r 

T
o

w
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

u
s
e

u
m

. 
E

a
ti
n

g
 C

re
e

p
y
 C

ra
w

lie
s
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
. 

M
u

s
e

u
m

s
 a

n
d

 G
a

lle
ri
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 

a
u

d
ie

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 

s
it
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 0

8
/0

9
.

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 

te
a

m

2
0

0
8

/9

O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
Id

e
n

ti
ty

 w
it
h

 1
2

0
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 8

 a
n

d
 O

b
je

c
t 

h
a

n
d

lin
g

 a
t 

C
a

rn
e

g
ie

 S
ta

d
iu

m
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

L
e

e
d

s
 C

h
ild

re
n

's
 D

a
y
 w

it
h

 o
v
e

r 
1

5
0

 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 a
t 

M
id

d
le

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 C

2
/D

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

is
p

la
y
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
a

rt
e

fa
c
ts

. 
P

o
rt

a
it
 o

f 
a

 N
a

ti
o

n
 d

a
n

c
e

 

g
ro

u
p

 u
s
e

d
 m

u
s
e

u
m

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 i
n

s
p

ir
e

 a
 d

a
n

c
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 

fo
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 m

u
s
e

u
m

 o
p

e
n

in
g

 w
e

e
k
e

n
d

. 

F
a

m
ily

 R
e

a
d

e
rs

 G
ro

u
p

s
 -

 3
 F

a
m

ily
 R

e
a

d
e

rs
 G

ro
u

p
s
 h

a
v
e

 m
e

t 

m
o

n
th

ly
.

T
im

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
P

la
n

s
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
la

u
n

c
h

 o
f 

6
 F

a
m

ily
 C

lu
b

s
 f

o
r 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

0
8

.

B
ri
tt

a
 H

e
y
w

o
rt

h
/S

u
e

 

C
a

rt
e

r

U
s
a

g
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

a
l 
le

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 m
u

s
e

u
m

s
 a

n
d

 

g
a

lle
ri
e

s
.

H
a

lf
 y

e
a

r 
re

s
u

lt
s
 7

8
%

 u
p

 o
n

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r'
s
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 w
it
h

 1
4

,0
0

2
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g

 f
o

rm
a

l 
s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 f
ir
s
t 

h
a

lf
 o

f 
y
e

a
r.

 A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
: 

n
e

w
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
c
c
e

s
s
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 n
o

w
 o

n
 a

ll 
s
it
e

s
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e

n
h

a
n

c
in

g
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

t 
a

ll 
s
it
e

s
 (

la
te

s
t 

b
e

in
g

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

rt
s
S

p
a

c
e

 i
n

 A
rt

 G
a

lle
ry

) 
a

n
d

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
it
e

s
 (

la
te

s
t 

b
e

in
g

 k
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
 1

/2
 &

 

3
/4

 p
a

c
k
s
 f

o
r 

A
rm

le
y
 M

ill
s
).

 N
e

w
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 (
T

re
a

s
u

ry
 

o
f 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

) 
c
re

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

p
ie

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 

L
e

e
d

s
. 

M
o

re
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 t
ra

ils
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 s

it
e

- 
M

y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
.

M
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 R

e
n

a
is

s
a

n
c
e

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 -
 d

a
n

g
e

r 
o

f 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 c
o

s
ts

.

U
s
a

g
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

a
l 
le

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n

 m
u

s
e

u
m

s
 a

n
d

 g
a

lle
ri
e

s
 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 0
8

/0
9

.

S
it
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
A

n
n

u
a

l

B
o

o
k
c
ra

w
l 
- 

re
a

d
in

g
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

B
o

o
k
s
ta

rt
 s

c
h

e
m

e
.

1
8

5
5

 u
n

d
e

r-
4

s
 h

a
v
e

 j
o

in
e

d
 B

o
o

k
c
ra

w
l 
A

p
r 

0
7

 -
 J

u
n

e
 0

8
, 

b
ri
n

g
in

g
 

6
4

6
 n

e
w

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 l
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 w

it
h

 a
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
3

2
2

8
 v

is
it
s
. 

A
 t

o
ta

l

o
f 

1
2

,1
0

9
 B

o
o

k
s
ta

rt
 p

a
c
k
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 g
if
te

d
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

(b
a

g
s
, 

s
a

tc
h

e
ls

 a
n

d
 t

re
a

s
u

re
 c

h
e

s
ts

).

B
ri
tt

a
 H

e
y
w

o
rt

h
/ 

L
o

rr
a

in
e

 L
e

e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

s
c
h

e
m

e
 u

n
ti
l 
2

0
1

2

Page 94



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 B

la
n
s
h
a
rd

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

S
a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

M
a
rt

in
 F

a
rr

in
g
to

n
C

it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
a
u
l 
B

ro
u
g
h
to

n
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Page 95



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

T
h

ri
v

in
g

 P
la

c
e

s
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
T

P
-2

b

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r

N
e

il
 E

v
a

n
s

A
m

b
e

r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s
 

O
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 -
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 t
h

re
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 l
is

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 b

y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

. 
 P

h
a

s
e

 1
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 O
ff

e
n

d
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(I

O
M

) 
M

o
d

e
l 
is

 b
e

in
g

 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 b

y
 S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 O
ff

e
n

d
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
. 

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 f
ro

m
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

e
a

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
p

ro
lif

ic
 a

n
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
s
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 H

o
m

e
 O

ff
ic

e
. 

W
it
h

o
u

t 
th

is
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
is

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

.

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

3
0

R
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

p
ro

lif
ic

 a
n

d
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
T

h
e

 H
o

m
e

 O
ff

ic
e

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 a

p
p

lie
d

 f
o

r 
th

is
 m

e
a

s
u

re
. 

 T
h

e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 O
ff

e
n

d
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

a
n

d
 a

re
 a

w
a

it
in

g
 c

la
ri
ty

 f
o

rm
 t

h
e

 H
o

m
e

 O
ff

ic
e

.

T
h

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 m

e
tr

ic
 w

ill
 

b
e

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
u

r 

c
o

h
o

rt
 o

f 
P

e
rs

is
te

n
t 

a
n

d
 

P
ro

lif
ic

 O
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 (

P
P

O
s
) 

a
s
 

a
t 

1
s
t 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

8
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 r

e
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
re

c
e

d
in

g
 

1
2

 m
o

n
th

s
. 

 T
h

e
 c

o
h

o
rt

 w
ill

 

th
e

n
 b

e
 t

ra
c
k
e

d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 f
o

r 
a

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
tw

e
lv

e
 m

o
n

th
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

re
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 r
a

te
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 

th
e

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

.

-1
5

%
 (

in
d

ic
a

ti
v
e

 

ta
rg

e
t)

D
a

ta
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

in
g

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

L
S

P
-T

P
2

b
(i
)

A
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n

ts
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 y

o
u

th
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
a

n
d

 3
1

 m
a

rc
h

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 y
e

a
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 T
e

a
m

 (
Y

O
T

) 
is

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

P
o

lic
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
re

s
u

lt
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 

h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
is

 q
u

a
rt

e
r,

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 f

a
c
to

rs
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

w
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 u

s
e

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 
s
a

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 a

 l
a

s
t 

re
s
o

rt
, 

a
n

d
 n

o
t 

to
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

 m
in

o
r 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

is
 

re
s
u

lt
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 a

s
 f

ir
s
tl
y
, 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

to
 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

a
n

d
 s

e
c
o

n
d

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o

 d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 d
a

ta
 t

ra
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 b

y
 P

o
lic

e
 t

o
 Y

O
T

s
.

2
,0

7
6

(2
0

0
4

/0
5

1
,8

7
7

- 
L

P
S

A
2

 

S
tr

e
tc

h
 T

a
rg

e
t

3
5

5
1

8
0

0
N

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

L
S

P
-T

P
2

b
(i
i)

A
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 a

 

b
a

il 
o

r 
re

m
a

n
d

 e
p

is
o

d
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d

T
h

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
a

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 

Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
's

 f
o

u
r 

A
re

a
 T

e
a

m
s
. 

T
h

is
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
is

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t 

to
 

ju
s
ti
c
e

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 q
u

a
rt

e
r.

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 r

e
v
is

io
n

 o
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

 i
s
 k

n
o

w
n

.

6
2

2

(2
0

0
5

)

5
7

3
 -

 L
P

S
A

2
 S

tr
e

tc
h

 

T
a

rg
e

t

1
0

5
5

7
3

N
o

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

 d
a

ta

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

is
k

 /
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

K
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 L
e

e
d

s
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 O
ff

e
n

d
e

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(I

O
M

 

m
o

d
e

l.
 £

6
1

5
k
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 f
ro

m
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 

fo
r 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
; 

th
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

lly
 a

lig
n

e
d

 t
o

 D
ru

g
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 (
D

IP
) 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
£

9
0

K
 o

f 
th

is
 i
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o

r 
D

IP
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

£
1

3
0

K
 o

f 
N

R
F

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 n
o

n
-r

e
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 f

o
r 

IO
M

 c
o

u
rt

 t
e

a
m

 

s
ta

ff
in

g
, 

c
a

s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 k
e

y
 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
.

S
o

m
e

 I
O

M
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s
 a

 W
e

s
t 

Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 

p
ro

d
u

c
t,

 t
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 t

im
e

 s
c
a

le
s
.

1
.A

g
re

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
/ 

d
e

s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
IO

M
 s

c
h

e
m

e
. 

2
.A

g
re

e
 

c
le

a
r 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
IO

M
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 

3
.E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 d
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
IO

M
 /

 P
P

O
 c

a
s
e

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
4

.E
n

h
a

n
c
e

 D
IP

 c
o

u
rt

 t
e

a
m

  
to

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 I
O

M
 

c
o

h
o

rt
.

L
o

u
is

e
 H

a
c
k
e

tt
D

u
ri
n

g
 0

8
/0

9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
a

s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

fo
r 

n
o

n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 P
P

O
/I

O
M

 c
o

h
o

rt
. 

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o

r 
c
a

s
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 b
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

, 
th

e
s
e

 

a
re

 o
v
e

rs
e

e
n

 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

y
 S

a
fe

r 
L

e
e

d
s
. 

  
 I

n
it
ia

l 
fo

c
u

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

P
P

O
 c

o
h

o
rt

 (
2

1
7

) 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

1
5

0
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

o
r 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 I

O
M

.

T
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

re
 

b
e

in
g

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 j
o

in
tl
y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 D

ru
g

 a
n

d
 O

ff
e

n
d

e
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

U
n

it
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
r 

L
e

e
d

s
, 

th
is

 w
ill

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
.

1
. 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

  
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

.

L
o

u
is

e
 H

a
c
k
e

tt
D

u
ri
n

g
 0

8
/0

9

Page 96



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

is
k

 /
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

K
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 f

o
r 

IO
M

 c
o

h
o

rt
. 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
J
o

b
s
 &

 S
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 J
o

b
 C

e
n

tr
e

 +
 a

re
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e

d
. 

 A
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 m
e

n
ta

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 i
n

 I
O

M
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 j
o

in
tl
y
 h

o
s
te

d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 

S
a

fe
r 

L
e

e
d

s
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

0
8

. 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
 i
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 w
o

rk
in

g
 p

ro
to

c
o

ls

1
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

le
a

r 
ro

u
te

s
 w

it
h

 L
C

C
/ 

S
o

c
ia

l 
L

a
n

d
lo

rd
s
, 

S
P

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
2

. 
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

le
a

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 J
o

b
s
 a

n
d

 S
k
ill

s
, 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 W

o
rk

, 
J
o

b
 

C
e

n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
. 

3
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

le
a

r 
ro

u
te

s
 w

it
h

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 m
e

n
ta

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

L
o

u
is

e
 H

a
c
k
e

tt
D

u
ri
n

g
 0

8
/0

9
A

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 

in
 I

O
M

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 j
o

in
tl
y
 h

o
s
te

d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 S
a

fe
r 

L
e

e
d

s
 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

0
8

. 

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e
e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

S
im

o
n
 W

h
it
e
h
e
a
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ts

 &
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

W
e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e
M

a
rk

 M
ils

o
n
/A

lis
o
n
 R

o
s
e

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r,

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

V
C

F
S

R
ic

h
a
rd

 N
o
rt

o
n
/R

ic
h

a
rd

 R
o
b
s
o
n

S
a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n

M
a
g
g
ie

 S
m

a
llr

id
g
e

S
a
ra

h
 S

in
c
la

ir
L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

J
im

 H
o
p
k
in

s
o
n

C
h
ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

J
o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s

Ia
n
 H

u
n
te

r

V
a
l 
S

n
o
w

d
o
n

J
o
b
s
&

S
k
ill

s
L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
lle

g
e
s

C
a
ro

ly
n
 W

ri
g
h
t

B
ri
d
g
e
t 
E

m
e
ry

S
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

R
e
'n

e
w

S
te

v
e
 W

ill
ia

m
s
o
n

J
im

 W
ill

s
o
n

L
e
e
d
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 S

k
ill

s
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
n
n
e
 C

ra
v
e
n

Page 97



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

id
lr
e

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

k

s

T
h

ri
v

in
g

 P
la

c
e

s
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
T

P
-2

e

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 R

a
ti

n
g

R
e

d
u

c
e

 b
u

ll
y

in
g

 a
n

d
 h

a
ra

s
s

m
e

n
t

C
h

ri
s

 E
d

w
a

rd
s

E
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

 L
e

e
d

s
A

m
b

e
r

O
v
e
ra

ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

T
h
e
 A

n
ti
-B

u
lly

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 s

c
o
re

 i
n
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r'
s
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

b
a
ti
n
g
 b

u
lly

in
g
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 f
o
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 
ju

d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
re

s
u
lt
 -

 t
h
is

 m
a
y
 b

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 o

n
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 w

e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

re
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

.

P
I 
R

e
f

D
e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s
e
li
n

e
2
0
0
8
/0

9
 T

a
rg

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

R
A

G
 R

a
ti

n
g

D
a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

N
I 
6
9

C
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 b

u
lly

in
g

N
o
t 
y
e
t 
c
le

a
r 

h
o
w

 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 T

e
ll 

U
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t
h
a
t 
a
s

a
b
o
u
t 
b
u
lly

in
g
.

3
3
.0

%

(2
0
0
7
)

(T
e
llU

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
)

3
0
%

N
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

N
/A

In
it
ia

l 
d
a
ta

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 

O
fs

te
d
 w

a
s
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
n
 

o
r 

d
a
ta

 c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
. 
A

 f
u
ll 

d
a
ta

 

q
u
a
lit

y
 j
u
d
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 w

h
e
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

a
re

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 w

e
 

k
n
o
w

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
.

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

K
e
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e
r

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

D
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

fo
r 

a
n
ti
 b

u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
.

M
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

a
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

 s
o
u
n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

c
ro

s

c
h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
c
it
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 a

lli
a
n
c
e
 a

s
 a

n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

A
n
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 C

P
D

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 w

e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

m
b
a
s
s
a
d
o
rs

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 t
e
a
m

. 
A

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 o

th
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
/a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 L

S
C

B
.

A
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

h
o
rt

-t
e
rm

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

.

C
la

ri
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 a

n
ti
 b

u
lly

in
g
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 c

h
ild

re
n
's

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
t 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

le
v
e
l 
fo

r 
re

s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 

b
u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 e

a
rl
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
th

e
 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
u
lly

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
A

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
p
o
in

t 
fo

r 
re

c
e
iv

in
g
 

a
n
d
 s

ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

u
lly

in
g
 b

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
0
9
.

A
n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 w

e
e
k
 t
a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

e
v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 

J
a
n
e
 H

a
ll

y

2
0
0
8
/0

9

B
u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 H

a
rr

a
s
s
m

e
n
t 
In

c
id

e
n
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 

e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
a
b
le

 s
y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 r

e
c
o
rd

 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

b
u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t.
 I
t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 E

L
 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

v
a
lu

a
b
le

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir
 S

E
F

 a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 

fo
r 

O
fs

te
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 
It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 c

a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

, 
p
ro

v
id

e
 v

a
lu

a
b
le

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 w
e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
rv

e
 a

 v
a
ri
e
ty

 

o
f 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 h

e
lp

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l's

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
ri
n
g
 o

f 

g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 b

o
th

 w
it
h
in

 a
n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

L
e
e
d
s
.

K
e
y
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

a
ro

u
n
d
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
O

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
in

d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 a

 m
o
re

 a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 t
h
a
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 y

e
t 
to

 c
o
m

m
it
 t
o
 a

n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

b
u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t.
 R

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

J
o
n
 H

o
s
e
g
o
o
d

A
n
 e

a
rl
y
 a

d
o
p
te

rs
 

te
a
m

 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

w
ill

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

y
e
a
r 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 a

 

w
id

e
r 

ro
ll 

o
u
t 
in

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

Page 98



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

id
lr
e

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

s p

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

R
is

k
 /
 C

h
a
ll
e
n

g
e
s

K
e
y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e
r

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

L
e
e
d
s
 A

re
a
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 h

a
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 i
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 2

9
 h

ig
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

in
 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

s
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
o
o
l 
in

th
e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

u
lly

in
g
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

th
e
 p

u
p
il 

re
fe

rr
a
l 
u
n
it
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 B

E
S

D
 S

IL
C

.

A
 n

e
e
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

s
e
c
to

r.
 A

 g
o
o
d
 p

ilo
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
ri
a
lle

d
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 
A

re
a
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

 w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
.

U
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

r 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a
s
 a

 d
ri
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 

b
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
o
u
te

 'i
n
' t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 w
h
o
le

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

s
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 t
o
o
l.

S
im

o
n
 W

h
it
e
h
e
a
d

O
n
g
o
in

g

T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
ri
m

e
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

n
ti
-

b
u
lly

in
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
. 
T

h
i

is
 a

n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
s
tr

o
n
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 
Y

o
rk

s
h
ir
e
 P

o
lic

e
.

A
ll 

p
o
lic

e
 y

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

/s
a
fe

r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
e
e
d
s
 A

n
ti
-B

u
lly

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

e
e
n
 a

s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 

fu
tu

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
in

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

T
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 A

n
ti
-B

u
lly

in
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 k
e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

'tr
a
in

in
g
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
' f

o
r 

a
ll 

p
o
lic

e
 y

s
o
/s

s
p
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

.

S
im

o
n
 W

h
it
e
h
e
a
d

O
n
g
o
in

g

T
h
e
 I
Y

S
S

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 b
u
lly

in
g
 a

s
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
o
f 
d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 "

w
h
o
s
e
 e

x
p
lic

it
 a

im
 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

re
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
o
w

e
rm

e
n
t"

. 
E

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 f
iv

e
 w

e
d
g
e
s
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 

ru
n
n
in

g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
fo

u
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

fo
c
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
is

. 
T

h
e
 w

o
rk

 

ta
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

e
tt
in

g
s
 b

u
t 
a
ls

o
 i
n
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
i

w
it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 R

O
A

R
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

b
u
lly

in
g
 a

n
d
 h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t.

J
o
h
n
 P

a
x
to

n
O

n
g
o
in

g

H
e
a
lt
h
 L

iv
in

g
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

"M
o
re

 T
h
a
n
 a

 S
c
h
o
o
l"

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

S
in

c
e
 2

0
0
1
 t
h
e
 c

o
lle

g
e
 o

f 
C

h
in

e
s
e
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
C

u
lt
u
re

 (
C

C
P

C
) 

h
a
s
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 g
re

a
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
y
o
u
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

to
 g

re
a
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
. 
 T

h
is

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 e

x
te

rn
a
lly

 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 
 L

is
h
i 
is

 a
 C

h
in

e
s
e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
te

a
c
h
e
s
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
o
w

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 b

e
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 l
e
v
e
ls

 

o
f 
s
e
lf
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
, 
s
e
lf
 e

s
te

e
m

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
o
ft
e
r 

s
k
ill

s
. 
 I
t 
c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 s

e
lf
 d

e
fe

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
rt

iv
e
n
e
s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

C
P

C
 t
o
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 i
ts

e
lf
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 y

o
u
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 l
is

te
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

w
it
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

it
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
.

R
ic

h
a
rd

 R
o
b
s
o
n
 

(L
e
e
d
s
 V

C
F

S
)

O
n
g
o
in

g

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

r,
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
's

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

V
C

F
S

A
n

n
 P

e
m

b
e

rt
o

n
/J

e
a

n
e

tt
e

 M
o

rr
is

 

B
o

a
m

S
im

o
n

 W
h

it
e

h
e

a
d

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 &

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
a

lly
 T

h
re

lf
a

ll
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
h

ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s

Page 99



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

"
L

e
e
d

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
r 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

"
 T

h
e
m

e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 U

p
d

a
te

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

T
P

-3
b

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

O
v

e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s

s
 R

a
ti

n
g

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

h
il

d
re

n
 i

n
 p

o
v

e
rt

y
S

a
ll

y
 T

h
re

lf
a

ll
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

A
m

b
e

r

O
v

e
ra

ll
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

ro
g

re
s

s

T
h

e
 C

h
ild

 P
o

v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 G

ro
u

p
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 s

e
a

m
le

s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
u

m
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 o

n
 a

 t
ra

je
c
to

ry
 o

u
t 

o
f 

p
o

v
e

rt
y
. 

A
 B

e
a

c
o

n
 b

id
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
h

o
rt

lis
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
v
is

it
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 F
iv

e
 t

h
e

m
e

s
 d

o
m

in
a

te
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
: 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 t

h
e

 e
n

tr
e

n
c
h

e
d

 c
a

u
s
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
; 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
; 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

 r
e

a
d

in
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

u
lt
 s

k
ill

s
; 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
a

is
in

g
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t.
 T

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
lig

n
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 N
a

rr
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 G
a

p
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 T

a
c
k
lin

g
 W

o
rk

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 g

ro
u

p
.

P
I 

R
e

f
D

e
fi

n
it

io
n

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
B

a
s

e
li

n
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 T
a

rg
e

t
Y

e
a

r 
to

 D
a

te
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
R

A
G

 R
a

ti
n

g
D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li

ty

N
I 

1
1

6
P

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 p
o

v
e

rt
y

D
a

ta
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u

a
l 
F

a
m

ily
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 o

f 
re

la
ti
v
e

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
. 

T
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

 t
o

 a
n

 i
n

c
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
.

T
o

 b
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

 
R

is
k

 /
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

K
e

y
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry

O
ff

ic
e

r
T

im
e

s
c

a
le

O
th

e
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

C
h

ild
 P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 g

ro
u

p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
0

8
.

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 w
id

e
s
p

re
a

d
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

c
h

ild
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 i
s
 

th
e

 r
o

o
t 

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

m
o

s
t 

p
o

o
r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 d

e
te

ri
o

ra
ti
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
.

N
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d

S
a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

J
u
n
-0

8

K
e

y
 t

h
e

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

g
re

e
d

: 
n

a
m

e
ly

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 t

h
e

 

e
n

tr
e

n
c
h

e
d

 c
a

u
s
e

s
 o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
; 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n

e
s
s
; 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

 

re
a

d
in

e
s
s
; 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
a

is
in

g
 a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t.

In
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 f
iv

e
 t

h
e

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
v
o

id
 

d
u

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

d
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

.
D

ia
n
a
 T

o
w

le
r

S
e
p
-0

8

W
o

rk
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
u

m
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 d

if
fe

ri
n

g
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
n

e
e

d
.

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
u

m
. 

D
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 i
n

 s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 l
in

k
 w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

M
a
ry

 A
rm

it
a
g
e
, 
J
u
lie

 

S
ta

to
n

F
ro

m
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
8
- 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
9

A
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n

n
e

r 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

L
e

e
d

s
.

C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 -

 D
if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 i
n

 s
e

c
u

ri
n

g
 p

o
o

le
d

, 
a

lig
n

e
d

 o
r 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 

th
e

 p
ilo

t.
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 p
ilo

t 
o

n
 j
o

in
t 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 i
n

n
e

r 
N

o
rt

h
 

E
a

s
t 

L
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

S
a
lly

 T
h
re

lf
a
ll

O
n
g
o
in

g

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 b

a
s
k
e

t 
o

f 
p

ro
x
y
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 o

f 
re

la
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 a

b
s
o

lu
te

 p
o

v
e

rt
y

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 b

a
s
k
e

t 
o

f 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 w

ill
 m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

c
a

n
n

o
t 

b
e

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 r
o

le
 t

h
e

y
 p

la
y
 i
n

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 b

a
s
k
e

t 

o
f 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
n

't
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 o

f 
a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 d
o

n
't 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 f

a
c
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
re

la
te

 t
o

 

c
h

ild
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
.

A
g

re
e

 b
a

s
k
e

t 
o

f 
p

ro
x
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

9
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

fr
o

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0

9
.

J
a
n
e
 S

ta
g
e
m

a
n

O
c
t-

0
8

B
e

a
c
o

n
 b

id
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
rt

lis
te

d
. 

V
is

it
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 M
o

n
d

a
y
 1

0
 

N
o

v
.

N
/A

P
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

v
is

it
 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 0
9

.
L
is

a
 M

a
rt

in
J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
8
 -

 J
a
n
 2

0
0
9

Page 100



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 A

c
ti
o

n
 T

ra
c
k
e

rs
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

L
e

e
d

s
 C

C
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
to

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
r

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
ily

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

- 
tb

c
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

J
o

b
 C

e
n

tr
e

 P
lu

s
D

ia
n

a
 T

o
w

le
r

C
h

ri
s
 E

d
w

a
rd

s
 C

h
ie

f 
e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 L

e
e

d
s

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

L
e

e
d

s
 C

re
d

it
 U

n
io

n
J
o

a
n

n
e

 S
w

a
in

S
te

p
h

e
n

 B
o

y
le

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

n
e

i g
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

P
C

T
S

h
a

ro
n

 Y
e

lli
n

P
a

u
l 
S

te
p

h
e

n
s
 

C
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
T

o
m

 M
u

rr
a

y

P
a

u
l 
L

a
n

g
fo

rd
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

L
E

G
I

S
im

o
n

 B
re

rt
o

n

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 Accountability Reporting Guidance

Column

Title
Description

No. Each indicator is numbered to allow for easier navigation through the report.

Performance

Indicator Type

This column gives a little more information on the type of indicator and gives some indication of its relative importance and what the 

implications might be of poor performance.  Some of the indicators fall into more than one type, for example, all LSP government agreed 

indicators are also national indicators.  The types of indicator are:

Leeds Strategic Plan Government Agreed - these indicators form part of the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 and have been 

negotiated and agreed, by the council and its partners, with government.  They form part of our current Local Area Agreement and 

additional reward grant is paid if we meet these targets.  The Audit Commission will also give these indicators additional attention under the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment as these are our local priorites.

Leeds Strategic Plan Partnership Agreed - these indicators form part of the Leeds Strategic Plan 2008 to 2011 and have been agreed 

with our partners as priorites for the city.  The Audit Commission will give these indicators additional attention under the Comprehensive 

Area Assessment as these are our local priorites.

Council Business Plan - these indicators form part of the Council Business Plan 2008 to 2011 and we have set these targets to drive 

change and progress across the organisation.  The Audit Commission will give these indicators additional attention under the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment as these are our internal organisational priorites.

National Indicator - this is a set of 198 indicators used by Government nationally to monitor the performance of public services in local 

areas.  Our performance against this set of indicators will contribute to the Comprehensive Area Assessment. This has replaced several 

sets of other indicators including the old best value indicators. 

Local Indicators - these indicators have been nominated by service areas to provide a more complete picture of performance.  In many 

cases these indicators will also directly contribute to the delivery of our priorities

Reference

Each indicator is given a unique reference code and these codes tell us which basket each indicator belongs to.  A basket is a set of 

indicators which are used to report on progress relating to different plans or frameworks. Below we have listed the main groups of indicator 

you will see in these reports.

LSP - Leeds Strategic Plan indicator

NI - National Indicator

BP - Business Plan indicator

LAA - Local Area Agreement indicator - for this year only we are continuing to measure a small number of indicators from our previous LAA 

which are subject to reward monies based on the year end position in April 2009.

LKI - Local key indicator

Title
The title column gives a description of the indicator. 

NB The Government have provided the descriptions for all national indicators.

Service
The service column identifies which team within the Council is responsible for service delivery, monitoring the performance and data quality 

of each indicator.

Frequency & 

Measure

The top line in this column identifies how often we collect this information. This may be every month, every three months (quarterly) or once 

a year (annually). We only report annual indicators at the end of quarter 4 (after the end of March). With the exception of education 

attainment figures which are reported in quarter 3.

The second line in this column identifies what measure we use to check on progress. For example, we might measure this result in the 

number of days or weeks we should take to finish something, such as a planning application. In another case, we might measure the 

percentage, such as the percentage of enquiries we respond to within five minutes.

Rise or Fall
The rise or fall column identifies if the results should go up or down to show whether we are doing well. For example, if this is set to rise, 

you would expect the figures to increase.

Baseline
This column gives the baseline performance figures upon which we have set our targets and/or wil be comparing our performance over the 

coming years

Last Year Result This column displays the result from the end of the previous financial year (31 March 2008)

Target This column shows the target we have agreed for this financial year.

Qtr1 The shows the current position at the end of this quarter.

Qtr2

The shows the current position at the end of this quarter.  This result might be given a traffic light (red, amber or green) if the service is 

unable to accurately predicte the full year performance based on the interim results (see below).  If they can forecast their year end position 

then the traffic light will appear in the next column.

Predicted Full 

Year Result

Directorates use this column to show how well they expect to do at the end of the year. They forecast this position depending on the current 

performance of each indicator. This figure may change each quarter depending on the performance of the indicator. Where possible we 

use this figure to inform whether an indicator is traffic lighted red, amber or green.

The green light shows that the Directorate predicts this indicator WILL meet its target. The Directorate uses current performance 

information to make this forecast.

An amber traffic light shows that the Directorate predicts this indicator will not meet its target. However, the performance for this indicator is 

still acceptable and will not result in significant problems. The Directorate uses current performance information to make this forecast.

The red lights shows that the Directorate predicts this indicator WILL NOT  meet its target at the end of the year. The Directorate uses 

current performance information to make this forecast.

Data Quality
We are using  this information to make strategic decisions therefore it is important that it is both accurate and reliable.  This column 

provides an overall assessment of the data quality for each indicator. 

No Concerns indicates that the data as accurate and there are good processes in place to check and validate this information.

Some Concerns indicates that more work needs to be done to ensure the data is accurate and reliable.  Services may be in the middle of 

implementing improvments to their systems and processes but these are not fully in place yet. 

Concerns indicates that there are concerns that the quality of the data may not be good or that maybe they have not got the correct data.  

Again services are working toward improving this position.  Many of the national indicator set are new and we are having to set up new 

systems to collect data - until these are fully embedded and proven there are likely to be outstanding concerns.

Comments

The comments for each indicator should explain why performance varies. They should also highlight if there are any problems with the 

quality of the data and what steps the Directorate is taking to improve it. This section will also focus on what will be done to improve the 

actions and state what outcomes they have achieved. 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

1
Q

tr
2

P
re

d
ic

te
d
 

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
5
9

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

w
it
h
in

 7
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
l

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
7
9
.9

%
7
9
.9

%
8
3
%

7
6
.4

%
7
8
.9

%

(1
,8

3
2
 o

u
t 
o
f 

2
,3

2
1

a
s
s
e
s
m

e
n
ts

)

7
9
%

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
0

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
re

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

w
it
h
in

 3
5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
7
7
.4

%
7
7
.4

%
8
0
%

8
3
.8

%
8
3
.5

%

(4
1
5
 o

u
t 
o
f 
4
9
7
 

a
s
s
e
s
m

e
n
ts

)

8
3
.5

%
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
6
1

T
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 

a
ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 

a
n
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
8
1
.4

%
N

.A
.

8
5
%

7
6
.9

%
8
2
.4

%

(2
8
 o

u
t 
o
f 
3
4
 

c
h
ild

re
n
)

8
5
%

C
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
3
A

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 -

 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 w

e
e
k
s

-A
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 

2
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 

a
s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
0
0
%

9
3
%

8
5
.7

%

(3
0
 o

u
t 
o
f 
3
5
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

)

8
8
.9

%
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
0
3
B

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

e
e
d
s
 -

 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 

B
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 

2
6
 w

e
e
k
s
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
u
c
h
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
9
0
%

7
4
%

7
8
.5

%

(5
1
 o

u
t 
o
f 
6
7
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

)

7
6
.6

%
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

T
a
rg

e
ts

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 
m

e
t 
o
n
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 1

0
3
a
 d

u
e
 t
o
 f
iv

e
 c

a
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 1

0
3
b
 d

u
e
 t
o
 f
o
u
rt

e
e
n
 c

a
s
e
s
. 
A

s
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 n

o
w

 w
ri
te

s
 s

o
 f
e
w

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 p
e
r 

m
o
n
th

, 
e
v
e
ry

 c
a
s
e
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

te
rm

s
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

n
 a

 h
a
lf
 t

e
rm

ly
 b

a
s
is

 a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
  
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

s
o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
b
u
t 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 
to

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 d

e
la

y
s
. 
 A

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 c

h
e
c
k
 b

y
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 h

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 g
re

e
n
 r

a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
o
ff
e
r 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

2

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 f
a
lli

n
g
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 2

.5
%

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 r

is
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 I
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
ts

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 2

.5
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 "

re
d
,"

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

ti
ll 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
k
n
o
w

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 (

7
2
.7

%
).

 T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 w

ill
 v

a
ry

 d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

in
c
o
m

in
g
 w

o
rk

 b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
a
n
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 d

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 h

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 f
a
lle

n
 (

d
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
tu

rn
in

g
 t
ra

in
e
e
s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t)

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

S
te

a
d
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
8
0
%

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 p
a
p
e
rw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 (

re
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
's

 S
y
s
te

m
) 

in
 t
h
e
 

la
tt
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

w
ill

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 m

a
y
 t
a
k
e
 s

o
m

e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 e

m
b
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

3 4

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

1

Page 105



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

1
Q

tr
2

P
re

d
ic

te
d
 

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
1
1
3

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 i
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

2
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
7
%

3
.6

%
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
1

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 a
n
d
 

a
d
o
le

s
c
e
n
t 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 (

C
A

M
H

S
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
1
6

1
6

1
6

1
6

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
3
A

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
t-

fe
e
d
in

g
 a

t 
6
-8

 

w
k
s
 f
ro

m
 b

ir
th

 (
B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
)

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
4
0
.6

%
2
8
%

2
9
%

(1
,3

8
7
)

N
.A

.
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
5
3
B

P
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
t-

fe
e
d
in

g
 a

t 
6
-8

 

w
k
s
 f
ro

m
 b

ir
th

 (
B

re
a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 

c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
)

L
e
e
d
s
 P

C
T

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
8
5
.2

%
6
4
.4

%
7
1
%

(3
,3

2
9
)

N
.A

.
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
1
1
1

F
ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 a

g
e
d
 1

0
-1

7

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

F
a
ll

2
,0

7
6

N
.A

.
1
,8

7
7

2
9
3

3
5
5

1
,8

0
0

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
4
3

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

c
o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
u
rt

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

s
e
n
te

n
c
e
d
 t
o
 c

u
s
to

d
y

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

F
a
ll

1
0
.6

%
N

.A
.

6
.8

%
1
2
.7

%
1
2
.3

%

(1
2
4
)

1
2
%

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
4
4

E
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 o
n
 

Y
o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
 d

is
p
o
s
a
ls

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

F
a
ll

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

4
.1

%
N

.A
.

4
.6

%

(2
,2

3
0
)

4
.6

%
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

In
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
e
 C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 b
a
s
is

 o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

 o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

c
re

e
n
in

g
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 i
n
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

5
 t
o
 2

4
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 t
h
u
s
 f
o
rm

 a
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

. 
C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 i
s
 b

o
th

 s
y
m

p
to

m
a
ti
c
 a

n
d
 a

s
y
m

p
to

m
a
ti
c
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
it
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

th
e

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
la

m
y
d
ia

 S
c
re

e
n
in

g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

 o
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
is

ti
c
 s

c
re

e
n
s
 t
h
u
s
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 r
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
p
re

v
a
le

n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

s
y
m

p
to

m
a
ti
c
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 s

y
m

p
to

m
a
ti
c
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
u
s
 y

e
a
r 

1
 w

ill
 c

o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
te

 o
n
ly

 o
n
 p

a
rt

 

1
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.

Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
n
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 8

%
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 t
ra

je
c
to

ri
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 s
e
t.
  
A

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t,
 i
t 
lo

o
k
s
 a

s
 i
f 

th
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 i
t's

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 i
s
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
.

95 1
0

6 7 8
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

In
d
ic

a
to

r

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 m
a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

p
ro

x
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 
A

ll 
fo

u
r 

p
ro

x
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
v
e
 s

c
o
re

d
 4

 g
iv

in
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
1

6
, 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
s
c
o
re

 a
tt
a
in

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/0

9
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

a
t 

w
a
s
 s

e
t.
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
s
u
re

 i
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 f
in

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ilo
te

d
 i
n
 K

e
n
t.

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

re
v
a
le

n
c
e
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
b
re

a
s
tf
e
e
d
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 n

e
a
rl
y
 7

%
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
.

It
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 i
s
 p

o
o
r,

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 L
e
e
d
s
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

 s
tu

d
y
 i
n
to

 C
u
s
to

d
y
 i
n

 L
e
e
d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 b

e
g
a
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
. 
T

h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 l
o
o
k
s
 a

t 
a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

a
re

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
y
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
ff
e
n
d
, 
ty

p
e
s
 o

f 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 s

tu
d
y
 h

a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 c

o
lla

ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 C

o
re

 C
it
y
 a

n
d
 S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s
 w

it
h
 M

a
g
is

tr
a
te

s
 a

n
d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
J
u
d
g
e
s
. 
A

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
w

a
y
 d

a
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 s

tu
d
y
.

L
e
e
d
s
 Y

O
S

 h
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 a

re
a
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
o
o
l 
w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
 a

t 
5
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
T

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
B

M
E

 

o
v
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
T

h
is

 c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
. 
Y

O
S

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 u
s
in

g
 t
h
is

 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 u

n
ti
l 
Y

J
B

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 
O

f 
th

e
 4

 a
re

a
 t
e
a
m

s
, 
1
 a

re
a
 t
e
a
m

 (
N

o
rt

h
 L

e
e
d
s
) 

h
a
s
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 B

M
E

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 e

th
n
ic

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
n
g
 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
is

. 
A

ll 
o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
m

a
lle

r 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 
T

h
e
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
B

M
E

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
e
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

e
e
d
s
 a

re
a
 h

a
s
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 Y

o
u
th

 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

o
lic

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 o

f 
re

s
u
lt
s
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 o
n
e
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 f
a
c
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 u
s
e
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 
s
a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

 l
a
s
t 
re

s
o
rt

, 
n
o
t 
to

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
 m

in
o
r 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

fo
r 

tw
o
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
. 
 F

ir
s
tl
y
, 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
to

 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
, 
s
e
c
o
n
d
ly

, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 d

a
ta

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 b

y
 P

o
lic

e
 t
o
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

s
.

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

1
1

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

Page 106



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

C
h

ild
re

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
2

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
T

y
p
e

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

T
it
le

S
e
rv

ic
e

F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 &

 

M
e
a
s
u
re

R
is

e
 o

r 

F
a
ll

B
a
s
e
lin

e
L
a
s
t 
Y

e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

T
a
rg

e
t

Q
tr

1
Q

tr
2

P
re

d
ic

te
d
 

F
u
ll 

Y
e
a
r 

R
e
s
u
lt

D
a
ta

 Q
u
a
lit

y

N
I 
4
5

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
6
8
.2

%
N

.A
.

7
3
%

7
6
%

7
5
.7

%

(6
0
4
)

7
5
.7

%
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

N
I 
4
6

Y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

' a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

Y
o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
9
1
.5

%
N

.A
.

9
5
.9

%
9
1
.2

%
9
0
.2

%

(7
9
0
)

9
5
%

N
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

B
V

-1
6
3

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 c

e
a
s
e
d
 

to
 b

e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 

a
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ra
n
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
n
 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g
u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 

o
rd

e
r,

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
t 

3
1
s
t 
M

a
rc

h
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

u
n
a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 a

s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e
k
e
rs

) 

w
h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

6
 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
n
 t
h
a
t 
d
a
y

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

%

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
8
%

8
.5

%
8
.6

%

(4
9
 c

h
ild

re
n
)

8
.6

%
N

o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 

w
it
h
 d

a
ta

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

8
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 

w
h
ic

h
 B

re
e
z
e
 c

a
rd

 h
o
ld

e
rs

 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
5
3
0
,3

6
6

5
3
0
,3

6
6

N
.A

.
1
3
6
,6

4
1

1
2
4
,6

1
8

1
2
4
,6

1
8

N
o
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

L
K

I-
IY

S
S

6
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 T

a
rg

e
t 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

T
A

P
)

Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y

N
u
m

b
e
r

R
is

e
N

.A
.

N
.A

.
N

.A
.

7
7

6
1
7

2
,0

0
0

N
o
t 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

1
6

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 a
n
d
 a

 m
a
n
u
a
l 
c
o
u
n
t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

n
o
t 
a
ll 

d
a
ta

 w
a
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
s
o
m

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

1
4

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

T
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 s
o
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

is
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a
n
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 a
p
p
o
in

t 
2
.5

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
. 
T

h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
ts

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 n

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.

4
9
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 o

r 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
G

u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 O
rd

e
rs

 (
S

G
O

) 
 (

x
 2

 p
ro

 r
a
ta

 =
 9

8
),

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 9
8
/1

1
4
2
 =

 8
.6

%

1
5

L
o
c
a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

r

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
d
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 B

re
e
z
e
, 
le

is
u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
s
p
o
rt

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
B

re
e
z
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
e
n
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

1
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
. 
A

s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 c

o
v
e
rs

 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
 w

h
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
, 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
 u

s
u
a
lly

 a
tt
a
in

s
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e

s
t 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 f
ig

u
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 F
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 n

o
t 
s
h
o
w

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

 T
o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

a
 q

u
a
rt

e
r'
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 g

o
o
d
, 

c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

in
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 i
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

s
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

(0
8
/0

9
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
s
. 
N

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r,

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

a
n
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
.

1
3

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l

In
d
ic

a
to

r

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 d

ro
p
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 T

e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
g
in

 s
o
m

e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

o
f 
th

e
 f
o
u
r 

a
re

a
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

h
o
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 i
n
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
S

ta
ff
 w

ill
 t
h
e
n
 d

e
v
is

e
 a

 p
la

n
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
to

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
is

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
u
r 

a
re

a
 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

h
o
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 i
n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 
S

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
d
e
v
is

e
 a

 p
la

n
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
.

1
2 Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 8 January 2009 
 
Subject: Recommendation Tracking 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Last year Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to adopt a new, more formal 

system of recommendation tracking, to ensure that scrutiny recommendations were 
more rigorously followed through. 

 
1.2 As a result, each Scrutiny Board now receives a quarterly report on any 

recommendations from previous inquiries which have not yet been completed.  
 
1.3 This will allow the board to monitor progress and identify completed 

recommendations; those progressing to plan; and those where there is either an 
obstacle or progress is not adequate. The board will then be able to take further action 
as appropriate. 

 
1.4 A standard set of criteria has been produced, to enable the board to assess progress. 

These are presented in the form of a flow chart at Appendix 1. The questions should 
help to decide whether a recommendation has been completed, and if not whether 
further action is required. 

 
1.5 For each outstanding recommendation, a progress update is provided. In some cases 

there will be several updates, as the board has monitored progress over a period of 
time. 

 
1.6 To assist members, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser has given a draft status for each 

recommendation. The board is asked to confirm whether these assessments are 
appropriate, and to change them where they are not.  

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 
Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 11

Page 109



1.7 In particular, members should note that a number of recommendations have a draft 
status of 4 or 5. For these recommendations, the Principal Scrutiny Adviser suggests 
that progress has been made. However, the decision as to whether this progress is 
acceptable is a judgement for board members to make. 

 
1.8 In deciding whether to undertake any further work, members will need to consider the 

balance of the board’s work programme. 
 
2.0 Next Steps 
 
2.1 The next cycle of quarterly recommendation tracking reports will be presented to 

Scrutiny Boards in April 2009, enabling the Board to judge progress against 
outstanding recommendations. 

 
 
3.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members are asked to: 
 

• Agree those recommendations which no longer require monitoring; 
 

• Identify any recommendations where progress is unsatisfactory and determine the 
action the board wishes to take as a result. 

 
 
Background papers 
 
None 
 

Page 110



No Yes

1 - Stop 

monitoring

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Yes No

Is this recommendation still relevant?

Recommendation tracking flowchart and classifications:

Questions to be Considered by Scrutiny Boards

5 - Not achieved 

(progress made not 

acceptable. Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action and 

continue monitoring)

Has the recommendation been 

achieved?

3 - not achieved 

(obstacle). Scrutiny 

Board to determine 

appropriate action.

Is progress 

acceptable?

4 - Not 

achieved

(Progress

made

acceptable.

Continue

monitoring.)

6 - Not for review this 

session

Has the set 

timescale

passed?

2 - Achieved 

Is there an 

obstacle?

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
  

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
7
 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

3
 

W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
a
 s
im
il
a
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 

ta
k
e
n
 i
n
 L
iv
e
rp
o
o
l 
w
o
u
ld
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 i
t 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 h
a
s
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 

im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
  

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
: 
O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
s
 n
o
w
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 n
o
w
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
8
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
  

T
h
e
 L
iv
e
rp
o
o
l 
m
o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
je
c
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
. 
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
, 
L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 i
n
v
e
s
te
d
 i
n
 3
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

s
h
o
rt
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 f
o
r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 –
 a
 k
e
y
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
o
 c
re
a
te
 e
x
tr
a
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
s
 s
o
o
n
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
1
.5
 o
f 

th
e
 p
o
s
ts
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 o
n
 f
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 

b
y
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 f
re
e
 u
p
 t
h
o
s
e
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 e
n
ti
re
ly
 

o
n
 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
 H
a
lf
 a
 p
o
s
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
th
e
r 
h
a
lf
 

a
 p
o
s
t 
w
ill
 a
d
d
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
. 
 T
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
fi
lli
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 p
o
s
ts
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in
g
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
. 
  
 T
o
 s
ta
y
 w
it
h
in
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
it
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 3
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
o
s
ts
 t
o
 2
.5
. 
  

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

In
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
, 
w
it
h
 a
 v
ie
w
 t
o
 s
ig
n
in
g
 

o
ff
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
c
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
to
o
k
 p
la
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
 h
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 

d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

(C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
) 
in
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
ill
e
d
/a
d
v
e
rt
is
e
d
. 

4
 o
r 
5
 

(n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

 
B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 

d
e
te
rm

in
e
 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

is
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

 

Page 113



Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
  

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

 

 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 

W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
 
In
 l
ig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

o
u
r 
in
q
u
ir
y
, 
w
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 

o
ff
e
r 
fo
r 
L
e
e
d
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

fo
ll
o
w
in
g
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
: 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
 m
o
re
 e
q
u
a
l 
d
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
y
o
u
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
n
 o
ff
e
r 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
o
m
e
 

g
ro
u
p
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
fo
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 

c
a
re
rs
, 
lo
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 d
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
) 
m
a
y
 n
e
e
d
 a
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 o
r 
e
x
tr
a
 a
s
s
is
ta
n
c
e
 

to
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 o
f 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r 

•
 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 d
e
s
ir
e
s
 f
o
r 
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

(u
n
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
) 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

•
 
T
h
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
ro
le
 o
f 
in
te
r-

g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l/
a
ll
 a
g
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll
 a
s
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

W
e
 a
s
k
 t
h
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
in
 3
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 

e
a
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

9
7
2
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
e
re
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
b
y
 

th
e
 Y
o
u
th
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 R
O
A
R
, 
o
f 
a
n
 e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
D
V
D
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
ig
h
lig
h
te
d
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 s
o
m
e
 e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 d
o
n
e
 a
t 

p
re
s
e
n
t,
 m
e
a
n
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
. 
L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
tr
y
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r.
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

U
p
d
a
te
s
 h
a
v
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 i
s
 n
o
w
 

fi
n
a
lis
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 a
w
a
it
in
g
 i
m
m
in
e
n
t 
s
ig
n
-o
ff
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 I
t 
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 p
o
in
ts
 c
o
v
e
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
It
 w
ill
 b
e
 

o
ff
ic
ia
lly
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
is
 s
ig
n
-o
ff
 a
n
d
 a
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 i
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 

 A
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 3
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
is
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 a
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 f
o
rm
e
d
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
te
rm
 f
o
r 
th
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
. 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 p
ro
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
. 
  
T
h
e
y
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 e
v
e
n
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
it
in
g
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 i
n
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

It
 w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
 w
o
u
ld
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
m
is
e
. 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

 

Page 114



Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
7
  

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

7
 
W
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t,
 i
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 e
ff
o
rt
s
 a
re
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 w
it
h
 n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 

v
ie
w
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
e
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 i
ts
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
s
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 

in
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
7
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a
n
d
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
. 
 E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 p
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
B
re
e
z
e
 o
n
 T
o
u
r.
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
u
s
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 w
ill
 n
o
w
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 g
ro
u
p
 w
it
h
 n
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
ir
c
u
la
te
d
 t
o
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
. 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 I
Y
S
S
 i
n
s
te
a
d
 o
f 
ju
s
t 
Y
o
u
th
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
In
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
is
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
s
 e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 t
o
 

C
o
n
n
e
x
io
n
s
 c
lie
n
ts
. 
T
h
is
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 v
ie
w
s
 o
f 
n
o
n
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
p
tu
re
d
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 

  

6
 

(N
o
t 
fo
r 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
is
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
) 

 

Page 115



C
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
 
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

2
 

T
h
a
t 
M
e
tr
o
 s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
il
it
y
 o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
a
ry
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
h
e
re
b
y
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 p
a
y
 f
o
r 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
fe
w
 

jo
u
rn
e
y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
u
a
l 
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 

g
e
t 
o
n
e
/t
w
o
 f
re
e
 (
b
u
y
 f
o
u
r,
 g
e
t 
o
n
e
 

fr
e
e
 f
o
r 
e
x
a
m
p
le
 b
u
t 
a
v
o
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
 u
p
 f
ro
n
t)
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

th
e
ir
 f
in
d
in
g
s
/a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 

2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

M
e
tr
o
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 t
y
p
e
 o
f 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
m
a
rt
 c
a
rd
s
. 
 

M
e
tr
o
 w
ill
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 F
o
ru
m
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

O
p
e
ra
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 a
 ‘
g
e
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
o
u
n
d
’ 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

s
u
m
m
e
r 
h
o
lid
a
y
, 
e
n
ti
tl
in
g
 a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
1
1
-1
6
) 
w
it
h
 a
 h
a
lf
 f
a
re
 p
a
s
s
 t
o
 

a
 £
1
 t
ic
k
e
t.
  
O
th
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
o
n
g
o
in
g
. 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

M
e
tr
o
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
in
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
ili
n
g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 ‘
g
e
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 

a
 p
o
u
n
d
’ 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
. 
 H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
t 
is
 h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
u
n
 

a
g
a
in
 n
e
x
t 
s
u
m
m
e
r.
 T
h
e
y
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
a
 o
f 
fr
e
e
 

tr
a
v
e
l 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
n
d
 a
re
 a
p
p
o
in
ti
n
g
 a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
to
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
th
e
 

c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
th
is
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 t
ic
k
e
ti
n
g
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

to
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 W
e
s
t 
Y
o
rk
s
h
ir
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o
f 
c
o
s
t 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
e
le
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 t
o
 M
e
tr
o
. 
P
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
 w
ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 f
o
r 
fr
e
e
 b
u
s
 t
ra
v
e
l 
fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c
a
s
e
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
’ 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
lo
s
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
 

p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 a
ro
u
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 p
h
a
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 p
h
a
s
e
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

m
o
d
e
ls
 f
o
r 
ti
c
k
e
ti
n
g
 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
b
u
t 
a
ls
o
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 w
id
e
s
t 
s
e
n
s
e
 o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 (
e
.g
. 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 l
e
is
u
re
, 
d
e
c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
, 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
).
 

T
h
e
 ‘
c
a
rn
e
t’
 i
d
e
a
 i
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 p
u
t 
fo
rw
a
rd
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 f
o
r 

m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
. 
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
’ 
re
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
u
m
m
e
r.
 

4
 (
n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

m
a
d
e
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

 

Page 116



C
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
 
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

5
 

T
h
a
t 
M
e
tr
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 t
e
x
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
, 

p
ro
m
o
te
 t
h
is
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

M
e
tr
o
 w
ill
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
is
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
/c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 e
m
a
il.
  
M
e
tr
o
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 a
 t
e
x
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
t 
s
o
m
e
 p
o
in
t 
in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

M
e
tr
o
 h
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 a
 q
u
o
te
 f
o
r 
s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 a
n
d
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 a
 t
e
x
t 

m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

A
 t
e
x
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
M
e
tr
o
 

re
m
a
in
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
is
 a
n
d
 a
re
 h
o
p
in
g
 t
o
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
a
n
 o
p
e
ra
to
r 
s
h
o
rt
ly
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

M
e
tr
o
 h
a
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
lly
 f
e
a
s
ib
le
 i
n
 t
e
rm
s
 o
f 
s
e
n
d
in
g
 

o
u
t 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
, 
e
.g
. 
a
b
o
u
t 
la
te
 r
u
n
n
in
g
 b
u
s
e
s
).
 B
y
 i
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 

it
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
lly
 f
e
a
s
ib
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 s
u
c
h
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 –
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

re
m
a
in
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 a
re
 (
a
) 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 s
e
n
d
 i
n
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
c
h
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 c
a
n
 b
e
 f
o
llo
w
e
d
 u
p
, 
a
n
d
 (
b
) 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 m
a
n
n
e
r.
 I
t 
is
 

b
e
lie
v
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 p
ilo
t 
w
it
h
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 m
ig
h
t 
h
e
lp
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b
e
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
ru
n
n
in
g
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

e
x
p
lo
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N
e
w
 Y
e
a
r.
 

4
 (
n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

m
a
d
e
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

 

Page 117



C
a
tc
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
 
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 

 
 

L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

8
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
s
 a
d
d
in
g
 

tr
a
v
e
l 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
th
e
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
th
e
 

B
re
e
z
e
 c
a
rd
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
in
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
. 

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
7
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
o
m
e
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
 

M
e
tr
o
 a
n
d
 L
e
e
d
s
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
r 
jo
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 p
u
b
lic
it
y
, 
e
v
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 d
is
c
o
u
n
ts
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
 T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 d
e
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

a
 s
m
a
rt
 c
a
rd
. 
 M
e
tr
o
 w
ill
 k
e
e
p
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 F
o
ru
m
 i
n
fo
rm
e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 U
p
d
a
te
 

S
e
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
. 
O
p
e
ra
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 a
 ‘
g
e
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
o
u
n
d
’ 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
h
o
lid
a
y
, 
e
n
ti
tl
in
g
 a
ll 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 (
1
1
-1
6
) 
w
it
h
 a
 h
a
lf
 f
a
re
 p
a
s
s
 t
o
 a
 £
1
 

ti
c
k
e
t.
  
O
th
e
r 
w
o
rk
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
o
n
g
o
in
g
. 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

M
e
tr
o
 a
re
 h
o
p
in
g
 t
o
 r
u
n
 t
h
e
 '
g
e
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
o
u
n
d
' 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 a
g
a
in
 n
e
x
t 
s
u
m
m
e
r,
 a
n
d
 

a
re
 e
x
p
lo
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
a
 o
f 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
t 
a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 e
v
e
n
ts
, 
to
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 t
ra
v
e
l 
to
 B
re
e
z
e
 b
y
 b
u
s
."
  
M
e
tr
o
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 

e
x
p
lo
re
 o
th
e
r 
m
e
th
o
d
s
 o
f 
jo
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
, 
th
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 

‘s
m
a
rt
c
a
rd
’ 
w
h
ic
h
 w
o
u
ld
 c
o
m
b
in
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 a
n
d
 t
ra
v
e
l 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 M
e
tr
o
 s
e
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
s
 a
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 u
n
lik
e
ly
 t
o
 b
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 u
n
ti
l 
‘s
m
a
rt
c
a
rd
s
’ 
a
re
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 A
t 
p
re
s
e
n
t,
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 b
y
 2
0
1
0
, 
w
it
h
 a
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
tw
o
 y
e
a
rs
 n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 
 O
n
c
e
 ‘
s
m
a
rt
c
a
rd
s
’ 
a
re
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

th
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 r
e
a
s
o
n
 w
h
y
 t
h
e
y
 c
o
u
ld
 n
o
t 
th
e
o
re
ti
c
a
lly
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 a
 B
re
e
z
e
-s
ty
le
 

e
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t.
  
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 i
t 
is
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
n
c
re
te
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f 
th
is
 i
n
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

ti
m
e
s
c
a
le
. 

M
e
tr
o
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
t 
to
 t
a
k
e
 s
o
m
e
 s
te
p
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

m
e
a
n
ti
m
e
. 
 T
h
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
y
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 B
re
e
z
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

tr
a
v
e
l 
c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io
n
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 t
h
e
 ‘
G
e
t 
a
ro
u
n
d
 f
o
r 
a
 p
o
u
n
d
’ 
s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

1
  

S
to
p
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

 

Page 118



 In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

 
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
 

T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

re
p
o
rt
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 

(C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
o
n
 

a
n
y
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
’ 
u
s
e
 o
f 

d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 S
E
N
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 

ra
is
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 

to
 c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
. 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(a
) 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
, 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
u
p
il 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

W
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
a
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 S
E
N
, 
w
it
h
 c
le
a
r 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
o
 

h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 u
ti
lis
e
d
. 

A
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 d
a
ta
 s
e
t 
fo
r 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 b
o
th
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild
re
n
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 w
it
h
in
 w
h
ic
h
 

ju
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
. 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 F
F
I 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
-w
ri
tt
e
n
 w
it
h
 a
 f
u
ll 
lis
t 
o
f 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
ri
te
ri
a
, 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
fo
- b
a
s
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 T
e
a
m
s
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
o
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
s
c
a
le
 o
f 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
. 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

fo
r 
re
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 2
,5
0
0
+
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 e
v
e
ry
 y
e
a
r.
  
G
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

re
v
ie
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 y
e
a
r 
5
, 
9
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 W
o
rk
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 c
o
m
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 f
ro
m
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ts
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
h
a
t 

e
n
s
u
re
s
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
p
u
p
il 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 f
o
r 
th
o
s
e
 p
u
p
ils
 e
d
u
c
a
te
d
 i
n
 m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 1
 o
f 
L
IL
S
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 F
F
I 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
o
r 
lo
c
a
lit
y
 w
o
rk
in
g
. 
 F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 a
ro
u
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 l
in
k
 i
n
 w
it
h
 D
C
S
F
 a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
. 

4
 (
n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

m
a
d
e
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

 

 

Page 119



In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

 
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te

 
T
h
e
 F
F
I 
h
a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
w
ri
tt
e
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
is
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

s
e
tt
in
g
s
. 
 J
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
in
g
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 b
o
th
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 

re
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 S
E
N
/L
D
D
. 
  

T
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
T
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 a
n
d
 A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 t
o
o
l 
k
it
 i
s
 

a
n
 i
n
te
g
ra
l 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
lf
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
  

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 w
e
re
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
to
o
l 
k
it
. 

T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 a
n
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 N
2
 a
n
d
 y
e
a
r 
6
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
 P
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 b
y
 S
p
e
c
ia
l 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N
e
e
d
s
, 
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 P
s
y
c
h
o
lo
g
y
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 w
it
h
 S
E
N
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
lig
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 A
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 P
ro
to
c
o
l,
 a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
e
a
m
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
, 
g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 

a
re
a
s
 o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
. 
 T
h
is
 p
o
lic
y
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(b
) 
A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 t
h
a
t 
h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
 t
re
n
d
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
o
th
 a
t 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
le
v
e
l;
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
lu
s
te
r;
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 c
it
y
 l
e
v
e
l.
  
F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 b
e
 

p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 F
ir
s
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 
a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 f
u
tu
re
 j
u
d
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
. 
 D
a
ta
 i
s
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 s
y
s
te
m
a
ti
c
a
lly
 a
t 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

le
v
e
l,
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
lu
s
te
r,
 a
re
a
 a
n
d
 c
it
y
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 f
o
rm
 a
 b
a
s
e
 l
in
e
. 
 

 

 
 

Page 120



J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

U
ti
lis
in
g
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 d
a
ta
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 a
n
d
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
s
, 
F
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

p
ro
to
c
o
ls
, 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
, 
A
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
S
c
h
o
o
l 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

A
d
v
is
o
r/
P
a
rt
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 O
F
S
T
E
D
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
  
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 j
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
o
lle
a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 T
e
a
m
, 
th
re
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
o
n
e
 S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
In
c
lu
s
iv
e
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 C
e
n
tr
e
 a
n
d
 t
w
o
 h
ig
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 u
p
d
a
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
. 

Page 121



In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

 
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

2
 

T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 c
o
m
m
it
s
 

to
 e
a
rl
y
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 o
n
 

a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
S
E
N
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
  

 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

 (
a
) 
T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
IL
C
s
 i
s
 O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
 2
 

w
it
h
in
 L
IL
S
. 
A
n
 a
u
d
it
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 S
E
N
 p
o
p
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
re
 

in
fo
rm
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 w
it
h
in
 l
o
c
a
lit
ie
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 p
a
th
w
a
y
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
. 
P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 w
it
h
 a
 w
id
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
a
re
n
ts
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
. 
  

 T
h
e
 a
u
d
it
 i
s
 n
o
w
 w
e
ll 
u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y
. 
S
E
N
S
A
P
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 w
it
h
 P
M
IT
 

a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 d
a
ta
 s
e
t 
u
p
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 m
o
d
e
l 
is
 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
s
 a
s
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
a
c
h
e
d
 w
it
h
 S
IL
C
 P
ri
n
c
ip
a
ls
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
 

fu
tu
re
 m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
. 
A
 b
ri
e
fi
n
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
a
s
 a
 p
re
c
u
rs
o
r 
to
 a
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
. 
It
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 B
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
(A
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
g
in
 O
c
to
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
.)
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

In
fo
rm
a
l 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 S
ilc
 P
ri
n
c
ip
a
ls
 a
n
d
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

o
v
e
r 
th
e
 S
u
m
m
e
r 
te
rm
, 
b
o
th
  
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S
ilc
 F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S
IL
C
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

g
ro
u
p
. 
 A
n
 e
x
tr
a
o
rd
in
a
ry
 L
IL
S
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 l
a
s
t 
w
e
e
k
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 s
u
g
g
e
s
te
d
 w
a
y
s
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
 A
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 a
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

w
a
s
 m
a
d
e
 t
h
a
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
B
o
a
rd
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 w
h
e
n
 a
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 i
n
fo
rm
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 

w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 m
o
v
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
s
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
it
h
 k
e
y
 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 W
h
ils
t 
th
is
 w
ill
 d
e
la
y
 t
h
e
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm
a
l 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 t
o
 

n
e
a
re
r 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 A
u
tu
m
n
 t
e
rm
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
is
 w
a
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 a
ll 
fa
c
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 i
n
 m
o
re
 d
e
p
th
. 

  

4
 (
n
o
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 

m
a
d
e
  

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

 

Page 122



In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

 
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

 (
b
) 
A
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
ill
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A
u
tu
m
n
 t
e
rm
 t
h
a
t 

w
ill
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 p
a
re
n
t 
fo
ru
m
s
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 a
re
a
 o
f 
th
e
 C
it
y
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 a
s
 

m
o
d
e
ls
 e
m
e
rg
e
. 

T
h
e
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
is
. 
 T
h
e
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 i
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 L
IL
S
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
G
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

A
 p
a
p
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 w
ri
tt
e
n
 f
o
r 
b
o
th
 t
h
e
 L
IL
S
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

B
o
a
rd
 t
h
a
t 
h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 a
re
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 f
o
ru
m
s
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

a
s
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 g
ro
u
p
s
 f
o
r 
a
c
ti
v
e
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 a
s
 

m
o
d
e
ls
 e
m
e
rg
e
. 
 T
h
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 o
n
c
e
 

fo
rm
a
lly
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 L
IL
S
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 L
IL
S
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
fo
-b
a
s
e
. 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(c
) 
R
e
g
u
la
r 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
r 
p
a
re
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
g
iv
e
 u
p
d
a
te
s
, 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

to
 b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 
E
le
c
tr
o
n
ic
 a
n
d
 p
a
p
e
r 
v
e
rs
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
  

In
it
ia
l 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
r 
p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
p
h
a
s
e
 2
 o
f 
th
e
 L
IL
S
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
p
a
rt
 o
f 

p
h
a
s
e
 3
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta
rt
s
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
. 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
n
e
w
s
le
tt
e
rs
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 p
a
re
n
ts
 t
h
a
t 
g
iv
e
 a
ll 
p
a
re
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
it
y
 u
p
-d
a
te
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
u
tu
m
n
 t
e
rm
 a
n
d
 o
n
w
a
rd
s
, 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 i
n
fo
-b
a
s
e
. 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

P
la
n
s
 a
re
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 p
a
p
e
r 
to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

A
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 m
e
t 
o
n
 8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
a
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
d
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 

d
a
te
 a
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
te
p
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 w
a
s
  
a
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 k
e
e
p
 a
 

c
lo
s
e
 w
a
tc
h
 o
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
, 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

 
 

Page 123



s
e
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
ts
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 a
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
. 

A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 t
o
: 

•
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
; 

•
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
p
la
n
s
 f
o
r 
in
fo
rm
in
g
/e
n
g
a
g
in
g
/c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
; 

•
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
 t
h
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
a
re
n
t 
c
a
re
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 p
la
n
. 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 8
th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r,
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 S
IL
C
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

p
a
re
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a
s
 A
n
n
e
x
 2
. 
  

Page 124



In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

 
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

4
 

T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 c
le
a
rl
y
 

s
e
ts
 o
u
t 
th
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ro
u
te
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 O
a
s
is
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
. 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

 (
a
) 
R
e
fe
rr
a
l 
ro
u
te
s
 i
n
to
 O
a
s
is
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
n
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t.
 

 E
n
tr
y
 a
n
d
 E
x
it
 t
o
 t
h
e
 O
a
s
is
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
h
re
s
h
o
ld
 o
f 
n
e
e
d
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
t 
is
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
u
m
 o
f 
e
a
rl
y
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
. 

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 t
o
 f
in
a
lis
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 f
ix
e
d
 f
o
r 
J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
. 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 

o
v
e
r 
S
L
A
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 w
it
h
 A
M
B
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 i
n
 w
it
h
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
a
g
re
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

L
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
th
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 h
e
ld
. 
 T
h
e
 

p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 m
o
d
e
l 
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 i
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 t
o
 g
o
 b
a
c
k
 

to
 t
h
e
 L
IL
S
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
o
n
c
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 b
y
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
 

o
f 
n
e
e
d
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
. 
  

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(b
) 
T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 o
n
 o
ff
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 

c
e
n
tr
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 L
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
lo
n
g
 w
it
h
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
. 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 P
a
rt
 o
f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 A
u
tu
m
n
 t
e
rm
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

b
)T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 
a
n
d
 

h
a
s
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 b
e
e
n
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
. 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

Page 125



In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

 
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

5
 

T
h
a
t 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

to
 l
o
b
b
y
 t
h
e
 D
C
S
F
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 e
s
ta
b
li
s
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
fu
tu
re
 

A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia
ll
y
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 

p
ro
v
id
e
s
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 f
o
ll
o
w
 

a
n
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 p
u
p
il
. 

J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(a
) 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 D
C
S
F
 s
tr
e
s
s
in
g
 

th
e
 i
m
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 
a
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 i
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 i
n
 Y
e
a
r 
F
a
ir
 A
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
ro
u
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lly
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
. 

T
h
e
 D
C
S
F
 h
a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 a
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 

fr
o
m
 1
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 
T
w
o
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
: 

1
. 
A
ll 
A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t.
 

2
. 
A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lo
c
a
l 

a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
t 
if
 t
h
e
y
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
ru
m
. 

F
u
rt
h
e
r 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 i
n
 a
u
tu
m
n
 2
0
0
8
 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(b
) 
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
u
tu
re
 A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 a
n
d
 e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
u
ilt
 

in
to
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 m
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 o
f 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
ta
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
.  

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
 s
p
o
n
s
o
rs
 o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 D
C
F
S
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rm
s
 o
f 
s
u
c
h
 a
 m
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
. 

 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 o
n
 b
o
th
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 o
n
 r
e
-

in
c
lu
s
io
n
 w
ill
 a
p
p
ly
 t
o
 a
ll 
A
c
a
d
e
m
ie
s
 f
ro
m
 1
s
t 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 
T
h
e
 D
C
S
F
 a
re
 t
o
 i
s
s
u
e
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

F
o
ru
m
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
th
a
t 
th
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
lo
c
a
l 
a
d
ju
s
tm
e
n
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 a
p
p
ly
. 

2
 

(A
c
h
ie
v
e
d
) 

ü üüü
 

Page 126



S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
in
 3
 

m
o
n
th
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 b
e
in
g
 

a
d
o
p
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
il
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m
o
re
 

s
ta
b
le
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
. 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

M
o
re
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 w
it
h
in
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 

c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
 a
 s
e
p
a
ra
te
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
n
 1
8
.0
9
.0
8
. 
 T
h
e
 J
o
in
t 
P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
P
a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 
a
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 a
n
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 i
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 -
 a
n
d
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 
a
re
 
n
o
w
 
in
 
th
e
 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
re
fl
e
c
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
/o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 
w
ri
ti
n
g
 
s
ta
g
e
 
th
a
t 
w
ill
 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 
a
ff
e
c
t 
th
o
s
e
 
a
g
e
d
 8
-1
3
, 
th
e
s
e
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 w
o
rk
 a
ro
u
n
d
: 

o
 
F
a
m
ily
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
p
a
re
n
ts
 w
it
h
 o
ld
e
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
  
 

o
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
m
in
o
ri
ty
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

o
 
E
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

o
 
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

o
 
P
la
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

o
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
re
fu
g
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
y
lu
m
 s
e
e
k
e
rs
 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 p
a
p
e
r 
s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 b
o
a
rd
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 h
o
w
 a
 

m
o
re
 s
ta
b
le
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
. 
 I
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 J
o
in
t 
P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 (
J
P
C
P
).
 F
o
r 

e
x
a
m
p
le
, 
re
c
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r,
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
th
 

in
c
lu
s
io
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 J
P
C
P
 i
s
 s
o
o
n
 t
o
 e
v
a
lu
a
te
 b
id
s
 f
o
r 
fa
m
ily
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 8
-1
3
’s
, 
p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 5
-1
3
’s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 B
M
E
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 
 

 

 
 

Page 127



S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

3
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 u
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 

p
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
il
ie
s
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

a
s
s
is
te
d
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 h
o
li
d
a
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 c
h
il
d
re
n
. 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

P
a
re
n
ts
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
s
s
is
te
d
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
: 

o
 

T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s
in
g
le
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 (
th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
) 
fo
r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
in
g
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
b
u
ild
in
g
 o
n
 w
h
a
t 
is
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 g
a
th
e
re
d
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

E
x
te
n
d
e
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
re
e
z
e
. 
 I
t 
is
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 a
b
le
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 

F
a
m
ily
 I
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 b
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
 s
in
g
le
 p
o
in
t 
in
 

ti
m
e
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
lid
a
y
. 

o
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
lid
a
y
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 m
a
il-
o
u
ts
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
‘a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
’ 
ro
u
te
s
. 

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
2
0
0
9
 

o
 

T
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 r
o
le
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
re
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 U
n
it
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 h
e
lp
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 d
ir
e
c
t 
fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 c
a
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fr
o
m
 c
e
rt
a
in
 

h
o
lid
a
y
 (
a
n
d
 o
th
e
r)
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
  

T
im
e
s
c
a
le
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 

  

6
 

(N
o
t 
fo
r 

re
v
ie
w
 t
h
is
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
) 

 

Page 128



S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

5
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 

th
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
ir
e
c
to
ri
e
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 L
e
e
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

b
a
c
k
 t
o
 u
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 

m
o
n
th
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 w
il
l 
b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
tw
o
 l
e
v
e
ls
: 

C
it
y
w
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
fo
r 
E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 b
u
ilt
 o
n
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 m
o
re
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

A
t 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le
v
e
l 
th
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 a
 m
o
re
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 a
n
d
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 a
 w
id
e
r 
o
ff
e
r 
lo
c
a
lly
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 o
n
 t
h
e
 a
b
o
v
e
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
, 
th
is
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 F
a
m
ily
 H
u
b
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 a
 m
u
c
h
 m
o
re
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 w
a
y
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 d
ir
e
c
to
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
. 
 T
h
is
 i
s
 

h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 a
 b
e
tt
e
r 
c
it
y
-w
id
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 g
a
p
s
 i
n
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

a
re
 m
o
re
 e
a
s
ily
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
n
d
 m
o
re
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
 i
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 
 I
.T
. 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

th
e
 F
a
m
ily
 H
u
b
, 
c
o
u
p
le
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
is
 c
lo
s
e
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 m
e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
ir
e
c
to
ri
e
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 c
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
h
o
lid
a
y
s
 o
f 
2
0
0
9
. 
 

 

 
 

9
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
n
 i
n
-d
e
p
th
 

re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
, 
to
 

p
ro
m
o
te
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 

o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
’s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 

u
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
n
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
. 

 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

It
 i
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 i
n
-d
e
p
th
 r
e
v
ie
w
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 t
h
is
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
to
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 s
c
o
p
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
s
u
c
h
 a
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 

W
e
 h
a
v
e
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
th
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
fo
rm
a
l 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 

w
it
h
 k
e
y
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 

T
h
is
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
is
 m
a
tt
e
r 
is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
 a
n
d
 b
e
y
o
n
d
. 

M
e
a
n
w
h
ile
, 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
it
 b
e
tt
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 o
ff
e
r 
o
f 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 u
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 i
s
 a
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
to
 t
h
is
 b
e
c
o
m
in
g
 a
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
 o
n
w
a
rd
s
. 

 
 

Page 129



S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 p
u
b
li
s
h
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
L
a
s
t 
u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

 
W
h
e
re
 w
e
 a
re
 u
p
 t
o
  

S
ta
g
e
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

1
0
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 

to
 u
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
re
e
 m
o
n
th
s
 

o
n
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 i
s
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c
o
re
 o
ff
e
r 
o
f 
u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
s
 a
v
a
il
a
b
le
 t
o
 

c
h
il
d
re
n
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

th
e
 c
it
y
. 
 

 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
e
v
e
ra
l 
k
e
y
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
re
 

o
ff
e
r 
is
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 
  
 

•
 
T
h
e
 r
o
ll-
o
u
t 
o
f 
p
h
a
s
e
 3
 o
f 
th
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
e
a
c
h
 

w
a
rd
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
 h
a
s
 a
 c
h
ild
re
n
’s
 c
e
n
tr
e
 b
y
 2
0
1
0
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 B
re
e
z
e
 Y
o
u
th
 P
ro
m
is
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o
ff
e
r 
th
is
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 c
it
y
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
lu
s
te
rs
 i
n
 e
a
c
h
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
it
y
. 

•
 
T
h
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
c
it
y
-w
id
e
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
  

 C
h
ild
re
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 a
re
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
, 
h
e
lp
in
g
 t
o
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 

re
la
te
d
 s
tr
a
n
d
s
 o
f 
w
o
rk
. 

 
 

 

Page 130



 

 1 

         

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 The purpose of the paper is to update Scrutiny on progress to date regarding the 

Leeds Inclusive Learning Strategy and progress achieved on outstanding Scrutiny 
Board Recommendations.  
 

2.0 BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

At its meeting in October 2007, Scrutiny Board considered the draft Leeds 
Inclusive Learning Strategy and appointed a working group to give more detailed 
consideration to two of the objectives: 

• The further development of specialist provision, including the role of the 
SILCs; 

• The further development of the behaviour continuum and provision, 
including the role of the pupil referral units.  

The working group was also commissioned by the Board to review progress in 
implementing the recommendations made by the Scrutiny Board (Children’s 
Services) in April 2006 arising from its inquiry into Specialist Inclusive Learning 
Centres (SILCs).  The working group met on three occasions: 5th December 
2007, 27th January and 6th March 2008.  Following presentation of the working 
group’s findings to the full Scrutiny Board, the Board agreed six 
recommendations.  Three of the six recommendations have since been signed 
off.   

Three recommendations, 1, 2 and 5 are outstanding and are the subject of further 
monitoring.  

• Recommendation 1: That Education Leeds report quarterly to the Scrutiny 
Board (Children’s Services) on any concerns regarding schools’ use of 
delegated SEN funding raised through the school improvement process, 
and how schools have responded to challenge. 

 

• Recommendation 2: That Education Leeds commits to early consultation 
with parents and professionals on any proposals for changes in the 
location of specialist SEN provision.    

 

• Recommendation 5: That Education Leeds continues to lobby the DCSF to 
ensure that the establishment of future Academies, especially in Leeds, 
provides for funding to follow an excluded pupil. 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF EDUCATION LEEDS  
REPORT TO SCRUTINY BOARD 
DATE:  January 2009 

 

SUBJECT:  Leeds Inclusive Learning Strategy 

AGENDA ITEM: 

Originator: Pat Toner 
 

Telephone: 2475613 

Page 131



 

 2 

3.0 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 

PROGRESS ON THE DELIVERY OF THE LEEDS INCLUSIVE LEARNING 
STRATEGY  
 
The purpose of the programme of activity that is contributing to the delivery of the 
strategy has been redefined.  The programme’s purpose is now;  
 

To increase opportunities for children and young people in specialist and 
mainstream settings to benefit from high-quality inclusive learning, in order 
to increase their achievement, involvement and enjoyment of learning.  All 
learners will benefit from this new provision, especially those with a 
statement of special education needs.  
Our aim is for children and young people, and their parents and carers to 
have access to a full range of services in their school setting and beyond. 
These will be professional, joined-up services, tailored for children and 
young people’s needs, and available in their area of the city. 

  
The LILS is being delivered through a programme management approach. The 
programme plan has been developed with four strands; 
 

• the promotion and further development of inclusive practice and inclusive 
schools: 

• the further development of the role of the specialist provision, including 
the role of the SILCs   

• the development of the behaviour continuum and provision, including the 
role of the PRUs 

• the further development of integrated locality working 
  
Programme activity on Strand 1 is now complete and has been signed off by the 
Programme Board. However, there will be further work required to embed the 
results of this work in school improvement policy and practice. 
 
Work on Strand 4 has progressed well since September 2008.  However, the 
Programme Board decided that the strand’s scope needed to be broader than 
was possible in this programme. Work on this strand will therefore continue under 
the aegis of the Extended Services Board.  Regular reports on progress will 
continue to be made to the LILS Programme Board. 
 
Proposals are being developed to inform the future of specialist provision for 
learners with learning difficulties and disabilities.  That is provision made in 
special schools/SILCs and in specialist resourced provision in mainstream 
schools.  A revised set of deliverables with indicative timescales have been 
developed.  These timescales have yet to be finalised as they are in part, 
dependent on Leeds City Council being secure that any proposals for change are 
sufficiently well framed.   
 
Proposals are being developed on the future pattern of specialist provision for 
learners with social, emotional and mental health needs.  That is provision made 
in the BESD SILC, in Pupil Referral Units, and in other targeted provision.  
Crucially these proposals will have to include guidance on thresholds that might 
be applied to ensure that there is equitable access to provision city wide.  
However, there is likely to be diversity of provision required to best meet the 
needs in localities.  Again, a revised set of deliverables with indicative timescales 
have been developed  but have not yet been finalised.           

Page 132



 

 3 

4.0 RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOWING SCRUTINY INQUIRY – 
JANUARY 09 
 

4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recommendation 1 
 
(a) The FFI handbook has been rewritten and reissued to all schools and learning 
settings.  Joint working practices involving Integrated Children’s Services and 
School Improvement Partners are being developed to both support and challenge 
schools in regard to their outcomes for children with SEN/LDD.   
 
The use of The National Strategies and Audit Commission Value for Money tool 
kit is an integral part of the support, challenge and school self evaluation process.   
Education Leeds were key partners in the development of this national school 
improvement tool kit. 
 
The annual reviews for children with and without statements in N2 and year 6 
have been completed.  Progress and consequent placement decisions continue to 
be monitored and delivered by Special Educational Needs, Statutory Assessment 
and Provision Officers and colleagues from the Integrated Support and 
Psychology Service. This will ensure that all placements for children with SEN will 
be aligned with the Admissions Protocol, actioned for September 2009 and 
subsequently monitored. 

 
Further work on the quality of information received from schools through the 
Annual Review is being embedded into team processes, good practice will be 
shared and areas of concern addressed though the School Improvement Policy.  
This policy is undergoing review and will be updated by the end of March 2009. 
 
 
(b) Utilising the existing data analysis and current frameworks, Funding for 
Inclusion protocols, School Improvement Policy, Analysis of School Improvement 
Advisor/Partner and OFSTED Reports  as well as joint working with colleagues 
from the Financial Services Team, three primary schools, one Specialist Inclusive 
Learning Centre and two high schools that require further support and intervention 
have been identified. A further update on how these schools have responded to 
the support and intervention provided will be given in the next quarterly update to 
the Scrutiny Board. 
 
Recommendation 2 
A working group met on 8th December 2008 to consider what progress had been 
made to date and to recommend any further steps that should be taken to ensure 
that the recommendation is achieved.  The working group indicated that there was  
a need to keep a close watch on progress with implementing this 
recommendation in the short term, in order to see that commitments now being 
made are delivered. 

A further meeting of the group has been commissioned for January 2009 to: 

• monitor short term progress; 

• review the next stage of plans for informing/engaging/consulting parents and 
professionals; 

• receive and consider  the further information identified in relation to the parent 

Page 133



 

 4 

 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 

carer consultation activity plan. 

Following the meeting on 8th December, an update on the Leeds Inclusive 
Learning Programme has been issued to parents and carers via the SILCs and 
through a range of parent support groups.  This is attached as Annex 2.    

Recommendation 5 
 
(a) The statutory funding adjustments on both permanent exclusion and on re-
inclusion will apply to all Academies from 1st April 2009. The DCSF are to issue 
consultation as to the nature of the representation required on the Schools Forum 
in order that the additional local adjustments would also apply. 
 
Given this significant shift by the DCSF, it is the view of Education Leeds that 
Scrutiny Board should consider signing of this recommendation as completed. 
 

5.0 
 
5.1 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Scrutiny Board is invited to  

• note progress to date on recommendations 1, and 2, 
and  

• consider signing off recommendation 5 as completed. 
 
 

 

Page 134



Annex  1 

 5 

 
Leeds Inclusive Learning Programme 

This is an update for parents and carers on the Leeds Inclusive Learning Programme.  

 

The purpose of the programme has been refined:  

Leeds Inclusive Learning Programme will increase opportunities for children and young 

people in specialist and mainstream settings to benefit from high-quality inclusive learning, 

in order to increase their achievement, involvement and enjoyment of learning.  All learners 

will benefit from this new provision, especially those with a statement of special education 

needs.  

Our aim is for children and young people, and their parents and carers to have access to a 

full range of services in their school setting and beyond. These will be professional, joined-

up services, tailored for children and young people’s needs, and available in their area of 

the city. 

 

Education Leeds and Leeds City Council remain fully committed to providing education in a 

specialist setting for parents and carers who want it. 

 

Education Leeds will make more effort to make sure that our most important partners are engaged, 

informed and involved. 

• We will keep children and young people, parents and carers and other important partners 

informed about our plans.  We will be open, honest and direct. 

• We will work with all our partners, and in particular parents and carers, to manage these 

changes successfully and to improve the quality of provision for all our children and young 

people. 

• We will be clear about consulting with children and young people, parents and carers, and 

other partners about any proposed changes. We will also be clear about how we use their 

responses. 

 

Education Leeds does not have any current plans to close any special schools. However, we may 

have to consider this as an option in the future and recognise the importance of being direct and 

open about any proposals.  

 

Education Leeds will be outlining how special schools will benefit from any money available for 

building schools in reports to the council’s Executive Board during 2009.  

 

 

 

 

Page 135



Annex  1 

 6 

We already have specialist resourced provision at 17 mainstream school sites. New inclusive 

learning settings are being established at Priesthorpe High School, Temple Moor High School, 

Allerton High School, Rodillian School and a number of primary schools. This will widen the 

opportunities for inclusive learning for children and young people. 

 

If you have any questions or wish to provide feedback, please contact Education Leeds on      

educ.inclusivelearning@educationleeds.co.uk 

Website: www.educationleeds.co.uk/inclusivelearning 

 

If you would like impartial advice or you want to give feedback to Education Leeds please contact 

the Leeds Parent Partnership Service.  

Telephone 0113 395 1200 

Email education.pps@educationleeds.co.uk 

Website: www.leedsparentpartnership.co.uk 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 136



 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) 
 
Date: 8 January 2009 
 
Subject: Work Programme 
 

        
 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 A copy of the board’s draft work programme is attached for members’ consideration 

(appendix 1). The attached chart reflects the discussions at the board’s December 
meeting.  

1.2 Also attached to this report is the current Forward Plan of Key Decisions (appendix 2) 
and the minutes of the Executive Board meeting on 3 December, which will give 
members an overview of current activity within the board’s portfolio area. 

 
2.0 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The board is requested to agree the attached work programme subject to any 

decisions made at today’s meeting. 

 
 
Background papers 
 
None 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Kate Arscott 
 
Tel: 247 4189 

Agenda Item 12

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

   

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 5
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9

 

D
ra
ft
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 P
la
n
 

T
im
in
g
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
  

D
P
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 –
 1
4
-1
9
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
D
P
 

In
c
lu
s
io
n
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

T
h
is
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 a
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

P
M
 

M
A
S
T
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 d
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 
R
F
S
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

A
c
t 
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
y
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 b
e
 p
u
t 
to
 

th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 

T
h
is
 i
te
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 a
ll 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd
s
 

D
P
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
  
5
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 –
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 –
 e
n
te
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s
y
s
te
m
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 a
s
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 

s
e
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 I
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 
R
P
/D
P
 

L
o
c
a
li
ty
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 

lo
c
a
lit
y
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
in
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
, 
a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
a
l 
ti
m
in
g
 –
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

D
P
 

Page 139



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

It
e
m
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

N
o
te
s
 

T
y
p
e
 

o
f 
it
e
m
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 2
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9

 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
8
/0
9
 (
O
c
t-

D
e
c
) 

A
ll 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

P
M
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 p
o
rt
fo
lio
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

T
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

b
a
s
is

 

P
M
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 

T
h
is
 i
te
m
 t
ra
c
k
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 a
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 

 
M
S
R
 

L
e
e
d
s
 I
n
c
lu
s
iv
e
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
  

A
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
 i
n
 J
u
ly
 2
0
0
8
 

P
M
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

O
fs
te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
  

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 b
ia
n
n
u
a
l 
u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 O
fs
te
d
 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 c
a
u
s
in
g
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

T
h
e
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 2
0
0
6
/0
7
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
s
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 t
o
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

P
M
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 d
a
te
 –
 7
 M
a
y
 2
0
0
9
 

In
q
u
ir
y
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 

T
o
 f
in
a
lis
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 i
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r 

T
im
in
g
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 K
e
y
: 
R
F
S
 –
 R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
P
 –
  
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

D
P
 –
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
n
e
w
 p
o
lic
y
 

M
S
R
 –
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
M
 –
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

B
 –
 B
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
) 

 

Page 140



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

 
W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

D
a
te
s
  

In
c
lu
s
io
n
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
H
y
d
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
E
lli
o
tt
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
e
n
s
h
a
w
 

M
r 
B
ri
tt
e
n
 

M
r 
F
a
lk
in
g
h
a
m
 

M
s
 F
o
o
te
 

A
g
re
e
d
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
’s
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 I
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 

8
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

M
A
S
T
 P
ro
je
c
t 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
F
e
ld
m
a
n
 

M
r 
F
a
lk
in
g
h
a
m
 

M
r 
B
ri
tt
e
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

M
u
lt
i-
A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 T
e
a
m
 (
M
A
S
T
),
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

re
q
u
e
s
t 
fo
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
  

1
5
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

1
4
-1
9
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
H
y
d
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
C
le
a
s
b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
D
ri
v
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
E
lli
o
tt
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
L
a
n
c
a
s
te
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
M
c
K
e
n
n
a
 

M
r 
B
ri
tt
e
n
 

M
r 
F
a
lk
in
g
h
a
m
 

P
ro
fe
s
s
o
r 
G
o
s
d
e
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

T
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
v
is
it
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 

Page 141



S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 
 

W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
  

 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
s
 

 
W
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

P
ro
g
re
s
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

D
a
te
s
  

E
n
te
ri
n
g
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
D
ri
v
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
L
a
n
c
a
s
te
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
M
o
rg
a
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
e
n
s
h
a
w
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
T
a
y
lo
r 

M
r 
B
ri
tt
e
n
 

M
s
 F
o
o
te
 

M
rs
 H
u
tc
h
in
s
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

T
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
v
is
it
s
 a
n
d
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 

B
o
a
rd
’s
 i
n
q
u
ir
y
 

 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

M
r 
B
ri
tt
e
n
 

P
ro
f 
G
o
s
d
e
n
 

M
r 
F
a
lk
in
g
h
a
m
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 a
g
re
e
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

In
v
o
lv
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
H
y
d
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
C
le
a
s
b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
L
a
n
c
a
s
te
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
e
n
s
h
a
w
 

M
rs
 K
n
ig
h
ts
 

M
r 
B
ri
tt
e
n
 

A
g
re
e
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

T
o
 m
e
e
t 
w
it
h
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
 f
ro
m
 L
e
e
d
s
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 G
ro
u
p
 t
o
 d
is
c
u
s
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 

o
n
g
o
in
g
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

T
o
 b
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
  

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

F
o
ru
m
 –
 P
ro
te
c
ti
n
g
 o
u
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 Y
o
u
th
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 R
O
A
R
 

T
e
rm

s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
8
 

C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 t
a
k
in
g
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

 

 

Page 142



L
E
E
D
S
 C
IT
Y
 C
O
U
N
C
IL
 

 
F
O
R
W
A
R
D
 P
L
A
N
 O
F
 K
E
Y
 D
E
C
IS
IO
N
S
 

 
E
x
tr
a
c
t 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 B
o
a
rd
 (
C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 
F
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 1
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 t
o
 3
0
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
 

 

K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
s
 

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

2
/1
/0
9
 

C
P
U
, 
P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro
u
p
 

  

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 

 
S
a
lly
 T
h
re
lf
a
ll,
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

g
e
rr
y
.h
u
d
s
o
n
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
w
a
rd
. 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

2
/1
/0
9
 

C
P
U
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r.
 

  

S
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

E
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

S
a
lly
 T
h
re
lf
a
ll,
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

jo
d
y
.s
h
e
p
p
a
rd
@
le
e
d
s
.

g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
D
is
a
b
le
d
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 

W
ilf
 W

a
rd
 w
h
ils
t 
a
 ‘
s
h
o
rt
 b
re
a
k
s
’ 

re
v
ie
w
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t.
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

2
/1
/0
9
 

N
/A
 

  

R
e
p
o
rt
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
a
n
e
l 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

m
a
ry
.c
o
u
s
in
s
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

Page 143



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 8
-1
3
 y
e
a
r 
o
ld
s
 

T
o
 a
c
c
e
p
t 
th
e
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

E
a
rl
y
 Y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

2
/1
/0
9
 

C
P
U
, 
L
C
F
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

B
o
a
rd
, 
F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 B
o
a
rd
, 

F
a
m
ily
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

P
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
u
b
-g
ro
u
p
s
 

a
n
d
 w
e
d
g
e
s
. 

T
e
n
d
e
r 
d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 

 
C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 
E
a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
th
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
p
o
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 

N
e
w
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

fo
r 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 M
e
m
o
ra
n
d
u
m
 

o
f 
U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
 p
o
lic
y
 

p
o
s
it
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
s
 m
o
v
e
s
 b
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

to
 a
d
o
p
t 
T
ru
s
t 
S
ta
tu
s
 w
h
e
re
 a
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
; 

 

•
 
A
 w
ill
in
g
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 e
n
g
a
g
e
 

th
e
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 a
 k
e
y
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 
in
 a
n
y
 t
ru
s
t 

•
 
C
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

   

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

P
a
t.
to
n
e
r@

le
e
d
s
.g
o
v
.u

k
 
 

Page 144



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

F
o
s
te
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
P
u
rp
o
s
e
 

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 S
ta
te
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

N
/A
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

liz
.s
h
in
g
le
r@

le
e
d
s
.g
o
v
.

u
k
 

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 E
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 

N
o
rt
h
 E
a
s
t 
L
e
e
d
s
 -
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 

P
a
p
e
r 

A
g
re
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 c
o
u
rs
e
 o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
:C
h
ild
re

n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

F
o
rm

a
l 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
  
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

ja
c
k
ie
.g
re
e
n
@
le
e
d
s
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

 

W
e
th
e
rb
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
's
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

D
e
s
ig
n
 c
o
s
t 
re
p
o
rt
 t
o
 i
n
je
c
t 

£
3
5
0
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
n
d
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 i
n
c
u
r 
th
is
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

S
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 c
it
y
 w
id
e
.  

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 
E
a
rl
y
 

Y
e
a
rs
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
th
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 

s
a
lly
.t
h
re
lf
a
ll@

le
e
d
s
.g
o

v
.u
k
 

 

C
la
p
g
a
te
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l-
 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 w
o
rk
s
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 t
w
o
 

fo
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
tr
y
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
c
a
p
it
a
l 

w
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
u
r 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

to
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 w
o
rk
s
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

C
la
p
g
a
te
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

  

Page 145



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

W
in
d
m
ill
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
- 

E
x
te
n
s
io
n
 W

o
rk
s
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 t
w
o
 

fo
rm

s
 o
f 
e
n
tr
y
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
c
a
p
it
a
l 

w
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
u
r 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

to
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
e
x
te
n
s
io
n
 w
o
rk
s
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 
 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

W
in
d
m
ill
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

  

D
e
s
ig
n
 C
o
s
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
- 
F
a
rs
le
y
 

C
C
 

T
o
 i
n
je
c
t 
£
3
5
0
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

to
 i
n
c
u
r 
th
is
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

T
o
 i
n
je
c
t 
£
3
5
0
k
 i
n
to
 

th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
n
d
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 

in
c
u
r 
th
is
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

D
e
s
ig
n
 C
o
s
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
- 
G
a
rf
o
rt
h
 

C
C
 

T
o
 i
n
je
c
t 
£
4
5
0
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

to
 i
n
c
u
r 
th
is
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
. 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 
 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 

P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 c
it
y
 w
id
e
. 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

Page 146



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 L
iv
in
g
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 b
a
s
e
d
 a
t 
C
la
re
m
o
n
t 

L
o
d
g
e
 b
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 

T
o
 e
x
te
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

w
it
h
 A
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 w
h
ils
t 
a
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
- 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
's
 

C
a
re
 

  

1
4
/1
/0
9
 

N
/A
 

  

R
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 

C
Y
P
S
C
 D
e
le
g
a
te
d
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
a
n
e
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
n
 1
4
th
 

J
a
n
u
ra
y
 2
0
0
9
 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 &
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
) 

m
a
ry
.c
o
u
s
in
s
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

e
th
e
rb
y
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 A
re
a
 

P
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
 o
n
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 r
e
m
o
v
e
 s
u
rp
lu
s
 

p
la
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

e
th
e
rb
y
 a
re
a
. 
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
:C
h
ild
re

n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
3
/2
/0
9
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
/M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

  

Page 147



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

B
a
n
k
s
id
e
- 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
N
e
w
ly
 

B
u
ilt
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

G
iv
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 i
n
c
u
r 
c
a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 

n
e
w
 b
u
ild
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
t 
B
a
n
k
s
id
e
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l.
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
3
/2
/0
9
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 p
u
b
lic
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
it
h
 G
o
v
e
rn
o
rs
, 

p
a
re
n
ts
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
u
s
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 i
n
 

a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
, 
fu
ll 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
b
ri
e
fi
n
g
, 
fu
ll 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

g
o
v
e
rn
in
g
 b
o
d
y
, 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
u
s
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
a
re
n
ts
, 
p
u
p
ils
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 u
s
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

  

Page 148



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

L
e
e
d
s
 B
S
F
 P
h
a
s
e
 4
 A
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

O
u
tl
in
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 

in
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
In
ta
k
e
 H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

4
/3
/0
9
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 

w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 O
B
C
: 

•
 
P
ro
je
c
t 
S
te
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
D
e
s
ig
n
 U
s
e
r 

G
ro
u
p
 

•
 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 

•
 
P
P
P
 U
n
it
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
e
a
m
 

•
 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
O
ff
ic
e
r 
(P
P
P
U
) 

d
a
v
id
.o
u
tr
a
m
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
 S
o
u
th
 L
e
e
d
s
 

H
ig
h
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l 
u
p
o
n
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 

a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 s
it
e
 

T
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
 f
in
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 c
lo
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

4
/3
/0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 S
e
p
t 
/ 
O
c
t 

0
8
, 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 D
e
c
 0
8
/J
a
n
 

0
9
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

le
s
le
y
.s
a
v
a
g
e
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

Page 149



 
K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 M
a
k
e
r 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

C
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r 

L
e
a
d
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

(T
o
 w
h
o
m
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 m
a
d
e
 a
n
d
 e
m
a
il 

a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
o
 s
e
n
d
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
) 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 c
lo
s
e
 I
n
ta
k
e
 H
ig
h
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l 
u
p
o
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
n
 

a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 s
it
e
 

T
o
 m
a
k
e
 a
 f
in
a
l 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 c
lo
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

4
/3
/0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 S
e
p
t/
O
c
t 

0
8
, 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 D
e
c
 0
8
/J
a
n
 

0
9
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

le
s
le
y
.s
a
v
a
g
e
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

R
ic
h
m
o
n
d
 H
ill
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
re
a
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 p
e
rm

is
s
io
n
 t
o
 p
u
b
lis
h
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 n
o
ti
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 l
in
k
e
d
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 

(P
o
rt
fo
lio
: 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
) 

 

1
/4
/0
9
 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 J
a
n
/F
e
b
 0
9
 

  

T
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
a
k
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L
e
e
d
s
 

le
s
le
y
.s
a
v
a
g
e
@
le
e
d
s
.g

o
v
.u
k
 

 

 

Page 150



  N
O
T
E
S
 

 K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
  
a
re
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
: 

•
 

w
h
ic
h
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 i
n
c
u
rr
in
g
 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 o
r 
m
a
k
in
g
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
v
e
r 
£
2
5
0
,0
0
0
 p
e
r 
a
n
n
u
m
, 
o
r 

•
 

a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 l
iv
in
g
 o
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 a
n
 a
re
a
 c
o
m
p
ri
s
in
g
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 

 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 P
o
rt
fo
li
o
s
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M
e
m
b
e
r 

 

C
e
n
tr
a
l 
a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 B
re
tt
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
A
n
d
re
w
 C
a
rt
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
v
e
 S
m
it
h
 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 L
e
s
lie
 C
a
rt
e
r 

L
e
is
u
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
o
h
n
 P
ro
c
te
r 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
S
te
w
a
rt
 G
o
lt
o
n
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
a
rk
e
r 

A
d
u
lt
 H
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
P
e
te
r 
H
a
rr
a
n
d
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 L
a
b
o
u
r 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
K
e
it
h
 W

a
k
e
fi
e
ld
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 M
o
rl
e
y
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
R
o
b
e
rt
 F
in
n
ig
a
n
 

A
d
v
is
o
ry
 M

e
m
b
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
r 
J
u
d
it
h
 B
la
k
e
 

 In
 c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 K
e
y
 D
e
c
is
io
n
s
 t
o
 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 a
re
 n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
, 
5
 d
a
y
s
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 s
u
c
h
 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 b
y
 w
a
y
 o
f 
th
e
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

Page 151



Page 152

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 3RD DECEMBER, 2008 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor A Carter in the Chair 

 Councillors R Brett, J L Carter, R Finnigan, 
S Golton, R Harker, P Harrand, J Procter, 
S Smith and K Wakefield  

 
 Councillor J Blake – Non voting advisory member 

  
 
 

137 Exclusion of the Public  
The substantive reports referred to under minutes 140 and 141 had been 
designated as exempt until 3rd December (1.00 pm)  and 27th November 
respectively.  This designation had arisen from embargoes on the documents 
which had substantially been the source of the contents of those reports and 
all information had been published on lifting of those embargoes. 
 

138 Declaration of Interests  
Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the item relating to 
Machinery of Government and 14-19 Commissioning Arrangements (minute 
149) as a schools and college governor. 
 
Councillor Blake declared a personal interest in the item relating to the Vision 
for Council Leisure Centres (minute 154) as an NHS Leeds Board member. 
 

139 Minutes  
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the minutes of the meeting held on 5th November 2008 be 

approved. 
 
(b) That with reference to minute 122 relating to the Deputation to Council 

regarding sports facilities in the Hyde Park area, a further report be 
brought to the next meeting of the Board. 

 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

140 Independence, Wellbeing and Choice Inspection of Adult Social Services  
Tim Willis, the lead inspector from the Commission for Social Care Inspection, 
attended the meeting and presented the Service Inspection Report following 
the inspection in Leeds which was undertaken in Leeds in July/August 2008. 
 
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the outcome of the 
inspection and presented an action plan relating to the 25 recommendations 
contained in the inspection report. 
 
 

Page 153



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

RESOLVED – 
(a) That the inspection report, the report of the Director and the action plan 

be noted. 
 
(b) That updates on progress against the action plan be brought to this 

Board as part of the Annual Performance Assessment reporting in 
December 2009. 

 
(c) That the inspection report and associated action plan be referred to the 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) for their oversight of performance 
against the targets set out in the plan. 

 
141 Annual Performance Assessment (Star Rating) for Adult Social Services 

2007/08  
The Director of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the annual 
assessment of Adult Social Care Services published by the Commission for 
Social Care Inspection on 27th November 2008 and attached to the report of 
the Director.  The response to the assessment was integrated into the action 
plan referred to in minute 140 above. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the report of the Director and the Performance Review report from 

the Commission be noted. 
 
(b) That the Annual Performance Review report be referred to the Scrutiny 

Board (Adult Social Care) for their oversight of performance against the 
targets set in respect of identified areas for improvement. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

142 Future Secondary Provision Proposal for South Leeds High School  
Further to minute 43 of the meeting held on 16th July 2008 the Chief Executive 
of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to close South Leeds 
High School and to replace it with an Academy to serve the needs of children 
and young people from the Beeston and Holbeck, City and Hunslet and 
Middleton Park wards. 
 
The Chair referred to correspondence which had been addressed to members 
of the Board in relation to this, and to the proposal referred to in minute 143 
below, and other members confirmed their receipt of the same. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the outcome of the consultation, to close South Leeds High 

School on 31st August 2009, conditional upon Department for Children, 
Schools and Families approval to open an academy on that site 
opening on 1st September 2009, be noted. 

 
(b) That approval for the publication of a statutory notice to that effect be 

given. 
 

Page 154



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

143 Future Secondary Provision Proposal for Intake High School  
Further to minute 220 of the meeting held on 16th April 2008 the Chief 
Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to close Intake 
High School Arts College and to replace it with an Academy to serve the 
children and young people from the Bramley and Stanningley ward. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the outcome of the consultation, to close Intake High School on 

31st August 2009, conditional upon Department for Children, Schools 
and Families approval to open an academy on that site opening on 1st 
September 2009 be noted. 

 
(b) That approval be given for the publication of a statutory notice to that 

effect. 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE 
 

144 Reprovision of Windlesford Green Hostel for People with Learning 
Disabilities  
Referring to minute 57 of the meeting held on 22nd August 2007 the Director 
of Adult Social Services submitted a report on the proposed change of scope 
for the scheme established to create a new supported living development for 
people with learning disabilities at Windlesford Green. 
 
The rescoping provided for a smaller development meeting the needs of 
current residents, requiring a less than best disposal of land and resulting in 
land being made available for alternative use. 
 
RESOLVED – That the changes to the scheme as previously reported be 
noted, that the revised scheme as detailed in the report be approved and that 
the terms of the proposed lease as detailed in the report also be approved. 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS AND HOUSING 
 

145 Deputation to Council - Pets in Council Houses  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report in 
response to the deputation to Council from Cats Protection on 10th September 
2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

146 Home Energy Conservation Act (HECA) (1995) - 12th Progress Report  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the 
progress made in improving the overall energy efficiency of the Leeds housing 
stock. 
 
RESOLVED – That the content of the 12th HECA progress report and its 
release to the Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber be noted. 
 

Page 155



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

147 West Yorkshire Energy Efficiency Scheme - Expenditure Discharge and 
Legal Delegation  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on 
proposals that Calderdale Council be appointed as banker for the West 
Yorkshire Regional Energy Efficiency Scheme with responsibility for 
administering the scheme budget for the period April 2008 to March 2011. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the West Yorkshire Energy Efficiency Scheme be approved. 
 
(b) That the Scheme annual and approximate sub set expenditure be 

approved for discharge. 
 
(c) That Calderdale Council continue in the role of banker for the West 

Yorkshire Energy Efficiency Scheme for the period April 2008 to March 
2011 and that the Legal Delegation Form as contained in Appendix 1 to 
the report be approved. 

 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

148 Options for changes to primary provision in the Richmond Hill Planning 
Area  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the options 
available with regard to primary education provision in the Richmond Hill 
Planning Area. 
 
The options presented in the report were: 
 
1. The expansion of Richmond Hill Primary School linked to a proposal to 

close Mount St Mary’s Primary School. 
 
2. Closure of both Richmond Hill and Mount St Mary’s Primary Schools 

and the establishment of a new school. 
 
3. Closure of Richmond Hill and Mount St Mary’s Primary Schools and 

the establishment of a joint community and Catholic Provision. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That formal consultation be undertaken on the linked proposals to: 

• Expand Richmond Hill Primary School by one form of entry with 
new community specialist provision for children with Special 
Education Needs 

• Close Mount St Mary’s Primary School. 
 
(b) That a further report be brought to the Board with regard to the land 

ownership position at Mount St Mary’s. 
 
 
 

Page 156



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

149 Machinery of Government and 14-19 (25 for Learners with Learning 
Difficulties and/or Disabilities) Commissioning Arrangements  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the proposed 
local approach to the implementation of the Machinery of Government 
changes to deliver the transfer of responsibilities from the Learning and Skills 
Council to the City Council.  The report also referred to the strategic approach 
to the commissioning for 16-19 (25 for learners with learning difficulties and/or 
disabilities) learners in Leeds from September 2009 through which the 
Council will trial the operational response to its new responsibilities. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the local approach to implementing the 

arrangements for the Council’s response to the Machinery of 
Government changes that will transfer responsibilities from the LSC to 
Leeds City Council as detailed in sections 3.1.2 and 3.1.3 of the report. 

 
(b) That the basis for the strategic commissioning arrangements for post 

16 learners in Leeds from September 2009 as detailed in sections 
3.2.2 to 3.2.4 of the report be noted, and that the Director of Children’s 
Services develop detailed arrangements for the commissioning of 
provision and for monitoring and evaluating the impact of these 
activities. 

 
(c) That a further report be brought to the Board as early as possible in 

2009 on the proposed strategic commissioning arrangements for post 
16 learners. 

 
 (Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in this item as a 

governor of Joseph Priestley College). 
 

150 Building Schools for the Future Phase 2 Priesthorpe Specialist Sports 
College  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on proposals to 
proceed with the refurbishment of Priesthorpe Specialist Sports College as 
part of Wave 1, Phase 2 of the Building schools for the Future programme. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That approval be given to the completion and entry into all necessary 

legal documentation for the Design and Build contract for Priesthorpe 
Specialist Sports College. 

 
(b) That expenditure of £16,579,338 from the capital programme be 

authorised. 
 

151 Leeds Building Schools for the Future: Follow On Project and 
Expression of Interest  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report on the ‘Follow On’ 
project for the Building Schools for the Future programme and on the 
submission of the expression of interest as the basis for transforming the 
remaining schools in BSF. 

Page 157



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the priorities identified within the Expression of Interest be 

approved as the follow on project in Leeds through additional 
investment in Building Schools for the Future. 

 
(b) That further work be undertaken to detail the specific programmes in all 

the remaining geographical areas of Leeds. 
 
 

152 2008 Audit Commission School Survey  
The Chief Executive of Education Leeds submitted a report summarising the 
results from the Audit Commission’s School Survey for 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the findings of the 2008 Audit Commission School Survey as set 

out in Appendix A to the report be noted. 
 
(b) That it also be noted that the results of the survey will be used to inform 

children’s services and partners’ service improvement plans. 
  
LEISURE 
 

153 Long Term Burial Requirements for the City  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the current position 
with regard to the supply of burial space in Leeds and options for meeting the 
expected demand for burial space for the next 50 years and beyond. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the recommended policy to establish a preference for smaller 

locally based cemetery sites combined with the extension, where 
possible, for existing sites be adopted. 

 
(b) That officers explore further the potential to extend Farnley and 

Lofthouse cemeteries including consultation with planning officers 
about the inclusion of proposals in the Local Development Framework. 

 
(c) That officers look in more detail at the potential to develop small locally 

based cemeteries at Elmete, Priesthorpe Lane, Alwoodley Gates, Tile 
Lane East Moor and Haigh Farm Rothwell and report back to this 
Board on the outcome of this work. 

 
(d) That approval be given to the development of a 5 acre Cemetery at 

Whinmoor on the site identified on Plan B attached to the report, and 
that the implementation of this development be delivered as part of a 
larger masterplan for the site involving the decant of the Council’s 
nursery from Redhall. 

 
(e) That proposals to deliver a 14 acre cemetery extension at Lawnswood 

be not progressed. 

Page 158



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

 
(f) That officers liaise with Leeds University to acquire the site of the 

American Football Field either through private treaty or Compulsory 
Purchase to deliver a 3.8 acre extension to Lawnswood Cemetery, that 
officers explore further the potential to deliver a 5 acre cemetery on the 
site of the former Elmete Caravan Park and that officers seek to 
acquire the 2.5 acre site at Horsforth Cemetery either through private 
treaty or Compulsory Purchase Order. 

 
(g) That the Capital Programme be amended to reflect schemes at 

Lawnswood £1,750,000 ,  Elmete Cemetery £743,000, Horsforth 
Cemetery Extension £350,000, Kippax Cemetery Extension £51,000 
and Harehills Cemetery £125,000, releasing £281,000 back to the 
general Capital Programme. 

 
(h) That officers liaise further with representatives of the Muslim 

community on the accommodation of Muslim burial needs in the 
Council’s network of smaller cemeteries. 

 
(i) That officers carry out consultations with the relevant Ward Members 

and Area Committees regarding these proposals. 
 

154 Vision for Council Leisure Centres  
Further to minute 74 of the meeting held on 2nd September 2008 the Director 
of City Development submitted a report on the outcome of the public 
consultation exercise undertaken in relation to the Council’s draft Vision for 
Leisure Centres. 
 
RESOLVED – 
(a) That the outcome of the public consultation exercise on the Vision for 

Council Leisure Centres be noted. 
 
(b) That officers explore in more detail the proposal to transfer Richmond 

Hill Sports Hall to community management as part of a community 
asset transfer. 

 
(c) That Sport England be requested to re-run their Facilities Planning 

Model for swimming pools provision in Leeds and in particular examine 
the implications of the Council’s draft proposals. 

 
(d) That officers consider the potential for community management for 

each of the centres most affected by these proposals and report back 
to a future meeting of this Board. 

 
(e) That officers further develop capital investment proposals for 

Aireborough, Bramley, Kirkstall, Pudsey, Otley, Rothwell, Scott Hall 
and Wetherby Leisure Centres. 

 
 
 

Page 159



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

CENTRAL AND CORPORATE 
 

155 Implications of Introducing a Living City Wage for Leeds  
The Chief Executive submitted a report on the implications of introducing a 
Living City Wage in Leeds following a resolution made by Council at its 
meeting on 9th April 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

156 Business Transformation in Leeds City Council  
(a) Organisational Programme 
 The Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, Policy and Improvement) and 

the Director of Resources submitted a joint report outlining the 
Council’s developing business transformation agenda and setting out 
the reasons behind the development, the high level scope of the 
programme of work required, initial benefits accruing from the work and 
governance arrangements to secure delivery. 

 
 RESOLVED – That the establishment of an organisational wide 

Business Transformation Programme be endorsed in the terms 
outlined on the submitted report. 

 
(b) Design and Cost Report for Key Enabling Projects 
 The Director of Resources and Assistant Chief Executive (Planning, 

Policy and Improvement) submitted a joint report on proposals for the 
delivery of the first phase of the Business Transformation Programme. 

 
 RESOLVED – 
 (a) That approval be given to the release of £7,183,000 (over a five 

year period), to be funded from the Business Transformation 
allocation in the Strategic Development Fund for the first phase 
of the Business Transformation programme. 

 
 (b) That authority be given to incur expenditure on procuring and 

implementing the key enabling projects which provide the 
foundations for delivering the Council’s Business Transformation 
aspirations. 

 
 

157 Calling In of Decision Taken on 8th October 2008  
The Chief Democratic Services Officer submitted a report on the outcome of 
the Call In of a decision of the Executive Board on 8th October 2008 regarding 
the Capital Programme Update 2008 –2012 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 160



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 14th January, 2009 

 

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

158 Deputation to Council - Spenhill Residents' Association regarding the 
Protection of Butcher Hill Playing Fields and Surrounding Land  
The Director of City Development submitted a report in response to the 
deputation to Council from the Spenhill Residents’ Association on 10th 
September 2008. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

159 Leeds Local Development Framework Annual Monitoring Report  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the City Council’s 
recommendations on the Leeds Local Development Framework for the 
Secretary of State’s consideration. 
 
An amended page of the submission was circulated at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Annual Monitoring Report be approved for submission 
to the Secretary of State pursuant to Regulation 48 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004. 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:  5th December 2008 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN: 12th December 2008 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items Called In by 12.00 noon on 
Monday 15th December 2008). 
 
 
 
 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 11th December 2008
	7 Request for Scrutiny
	8 Safeguarding Children In Leeds:  An Overview of our Leeds Safeguarding Children Board and the wider current context
	Safeguarding Children in Leeds - Appendix 1
	Safeguarding Children in Leeds - Appendix 2

	9 Children™s Services and the Children and Young People™s Plan Priorities Update (Looked After Children Focus)
	10 Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008/09
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008-09 - Appendix 1
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008-09 - Appendix 1a
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008-09 - Appendix 2
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008-09 - Appendix 3
	Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 2 2008-09 - Appendix 3 a

	11 Recommendation Tracking
	Recommendation Tracking - Appendix 1
	Recommendation Tracking - Appendix 2
	Recommendation Tracking - Appendix 3

	12 Work Programme
	Work Programme - Appendix 1
	Work Programme - Appendix 2
	Work Programme - Appendix 3


